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WHEN 
COMPLEMENTED WITH THE RIGHT 

BREEDS  
A CULTURE OF 

business processes across the 

end-to-end insurance value 

 
Adjusted EBITDA for FY 2019-20

 

Revenue generated from cloud clients

 
12-month Order Backlog

 
Diluted EPS for FY 2019-20

Strategic Partners

Revenue for FY 2019-20

 



COMPANY OVERVIEW

A good way of discovering 
limits is by constantly pushing 

constantly challenging our limits to 
see what we are truly capable of 

created simple innovative experiences for our 

Powered by Innoovvattiioonn Motivated by Paartnnnnerrshhippp Driven by GGrooowwwtthhh

KEY STRENGTHS
LEADER IN DIGITAL SOLUTIONS

them transform their businesses

EXPERT THINKING

AGILE IN APPROACH

HIGH PERFORMANCE CULTURE

of their abilities

Our Viisiioonnn

CONNECTING PEOPLE AND BUSINESSES TO 

INSURANCE IN WAYS THAT ARE INNOVATIVE, 

HYPER-RELEVANT, COMPELLING, AND PERSONAL.
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into our growth 

Key Performanncce Inndiiicattoorrrsss

Global customers

  

Product revenue during FY 2019-20

No. of operational geographies

Total Full Time Employees

 

No. of new clients added 
during FY 2019-20

Cloud customers
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No. of go-lives during 
FY 2019-20
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Cloud-Native  
solutions

solutions

DDIFFFFFFERRREENTIATION

 
business model
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Customer-focused

Solutions built to retain and 

expectations

Next-gen  
digital platform

platform

Speed 

value

Price

Expertise

and leadership
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LEADING WITH INTEGRATED SOLUTIONS

MAJESCO CLOUDINSURER®

P&C CORE SUITE

P&C INSURANCE DATA & ANALYTICS PLATFORM

L&A AND GROUP CORE SUITE

LIFEPLUS SOLUTIONS

DISTRIBUTION MANAGEMENT

A platform that facilitates creation and execution of innovative distribution 

and compensation management

PRODUCT USP:
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ACCELERATING DIGITAL 

TRANSFORMATION

DIGITAL1st® 
PLATFORM
DIGITIZE 
OPTIMIZE 
INNOVATE

  Low Code / No Code

Cloud-Native

Microservices

Built-In DevOps

Secure & Scalable

Rich & Extensible UI

Insurance Accelerators

API / Integration Hub

Plug-n-Play Ecosystem

Seamless Updates

Operational
Platform
ON-DEMAND, 

SCALABLE, SECURE

Insurance 
Apps

REUSABLE, 
TAILORABLE

Partner 
Ecosystem

ADD-ON BUSINESS, 
DATA, DISTRIBUTION 

& TECHNOLOGY 
PARTNERS

st®

Digitize, Optimize and Innovate, are needed to 

st® ONE

C
O

M
P

ET
IT
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E 

A
D

V
A

N
TA

G
E

INNOVATE

OPTIMIZE

DIGITIZE

DDDDDDIGGGIITAL MATURITY CURVE

3
INNOVATE 

Launch new & innovative products 

& services to transform to digital 

operating and business models

2
OPTIMIZE  

Expand customer engagement beyond 

transactional interactions to broader 

customer experiences

1
DIGITIZE  

Create portals for traditional products & 

channels for digitization and automation 

of existing processes

DDDIGGGITAL TRANSFORMATION

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION
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OUR INNOVATIVE BUSINESS MODEL
INNNNNNNPPPPUTS PPRRRRRRROOOOOCESS

GROWTH STRATEGIES

Organic growth             Strategic partnerships   Mergers & Acquisitions

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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FINANCIAL CAPITAL

other forms of capital

`̀̀ 11,,444335 LLakkkhs
` 41,750 Lakhs

SERVICE CAPITAL

Cloud solutions offered:
®

Digital solutions offered:
st® 

st®

st®

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

` 133,5554488 Laaakkhhs 

1888 

4700 

HUMAN CAPITAL

2,400444 

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

value as a responsible corporate citizen

7 

>400 st® platform

 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

FOCUS AREAS

Cloud and 
ecosystem

Speed and 
adoption

Enhancing 
digital 

experience

Enablement
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OOUUUUTTTTPUTS

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

` 1,04,,0488 Lakkhs 

` 13,96661 Laakhhs 

` 9,02222 Lakkhs 

SERVICE CAPITAL

65

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

HUMAN CAPITAL

333% female

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

8

65 cloud customers

1/33rd ®

KKEEEYYY IIMPACT

to build the future of their 
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FROM THE DESK OF THE 
MD & GROUP CFO

Dear Shareholders,

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

THIS REPPORRRT ISS AA TTESTIMONY TO THE 
PILLAARSSS WHHHO RREESPONSIBLY BEAR THE 
WEIGGHTT OF OUUR PRROGRESS ‘INNOVATION, 
PARTTNEERRSHHHIP && GRROWTH’

FY 2019-20 UNDER REVIEW

and enhanced overall performance helped us retain our 

10



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
 

`

stood at ` 

`

`

AGILE AND RESPONSIVE

RISING HIGHER

CLOSING THOUGHTS

Regards,
Farid Kazani

 

 
Operating revenue FY 2019-20
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Onee ooff thhhe ssuustainable ways of 
succcessssfuuullyy rreeinventing oneself 
is thhroooughh ccoonsstant analysis. It is 
impporrttannnt ttoo cchart our progress 
keepinnng ooourr ggrrowth enablers 
in mminndd. AAAt MMaajesco, we use 
our strrateeegiicc vvision to identify 
areaas oof rrreinnvveention. It not only 
helpps eexttennd oour leadership 
positiooon, usinngg innovation and 
induustttry rrelleevaance, but also 
leadds uuus ttto ccrreate our growth 
straateeggy. A ppeerrfect blend of 
straateeggic paarttnnerships, M&A, 
orgaaniic aavenuees, and innovation, 
havve ttoogeeethheer helped develop a 
moddell thaat reessonates our growth 
trajeccttoryy. 

PILLARS OF OUR 
EVOLUTION

              Innovation                         Mergers and Acquis
iti

on
s 

    

St
ra

te
gic Partnership                         Organic G

row
th
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BRINGING A CHANGE 
THROUGH INNOVATION
Innoovaaatiooon is tthhe power that 
helpps uuunlooockk nneew value. Through 
innoovaaatiooon, wwwe establish our 
grouunddd fooor bbriinnging about 
channgeees wwwhiilee ddiscovering newer 
opportttunitieess oon the way.

The new world of insurance is fast 

towards a digital makeover through 

WE ARE CONSTANTLY 

STRENGTHENING OUR 

COMPETENCIES TO DRIVE 

INNOVATIVE IDEAS BY 

EVOLVING OUR APPROACH 

TO DELIVER SOLUTIONS AND 

PLATFORMS. OUR REFINED 

APPROACH TO FOCUS ON 

DELIVERING TOMORROW-

READY SOLUTIONS TODAY HAS 

BEEN CAPTURED ALONGSIDE:

Then

Tech-focused

Feature-centric

Core-focused

On premise

Monolith

Proprietary

Waterfall 

Homegrown standards

Secretive 

Now

Customer-focused

Value-centric

Digital, data and core

Cloud

API/Microservices

Open ecosystem

Safe/Agile

Industry standards

Transparent 

 
Spent on Innovation, including 
acquisitions and other investments
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BURNS & WILCOX IMPLEMENTED MAJESCO DIGITAL1st® INSURANCE 
PLATFORM AS THE FOUNDATION FOR THEIR LATEST DIGITAL GROWTH 
STRATEGY

Next-generation platform enables wholesaler to bring innovative specialty 
insurance solutions to brokers and agents at speed and scale.

st®

st®

Case study 1:

Case study 2:

ARCH INSURANCE LIVE WITH MAJESCO BILLING FOR P&C ON MAJESCO 
CLOUDINSURER®

enterprise strategic initiative to replace multiple legacy billing solutions that 
will help deliver superior customer service and growth.
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Case study 3:

SECURA UPGRADES MAJESCO POLICY FOR P&C AND EXPANDS ADDITIONAL LINES OF 
BUSINESS AND STATES

Upgrade and expansion builds on a 25-year strategic partnership that positions them for 
the future of insurance 

15



BUILDING TRUST THROUGH 
RIGHT PARTNERSHIPS
A litttlee winnn foor onne partner is a 
littlee wwiin ffoor aannoother. Because 
the ccummmulaaativvee iss always bigger 
thann innddivviiduuall, wwhether it is for 
oppoorttuunitty oorr ggrowth. At Majesco, 
we leeveeeraggge oouur complementary 
strenngttths aaandd ooppportunities through 
our pparrrtneeershhippss. It helps us share 
our uuniiqqueeeneesss wwhile building on our 
capaabilitieees coollleectively.  

harnessed by the power of the thriving 

KPMG

CAPGEMINI

DELOITTE

 Technology Partner

ERNST & YOUNG ‘EY’

customized approach to insurers and to  their core 

PWC

IBM

MICROSOFT 
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POLICY BILLING CLAIMS DIGITAL1st ® EDW DM

Tier 1 
DWP  
> USD 5 Bn

8 8 1 2 1 - 20

Tier 2  
DWP  
USD 1 Bn to 
USD 5 Bn

6 13 2 3 5 1 30

Tier 3 
DWP USD 
300 Mn to  
< USD 1 Bn

15 17 4 3 4 - 43

Tier 4 & 5 
DWP  
< USD 300 Mn

36 26 20 5 7 1 95

65 64 27 13 17 2

188 Module Deployments

DEPLOYMENTS IN P&C TILL DATE

OUR 2020 PRODUCT ROADMAP

current needs enable future needs

RELENTLESS

INNOVATION

Cost of 
Ownership

Speed  
& Agility

Underwriting  
& Pricing

Loss Control

Productivity 

Digital 
Experience

Security & 
Compliance

17



THE FOUNDATION TO 
FAST-TRACK GROWTH
Growwtthhh iiss nnnoott bbbuilttt on what was done in 
the passssstt. IItt iss buuuilt oon what you are going to 
do tommmmoorrrrooowww. AAAt MMMMajesco, we always look 
out fforrrr opppppoorrtuuunitttiies to better ourselves at 
everry ssssttaaggeee. TThhiis isss the core foundation that 
our grooooowwwtthhh cchhaart iiss drawn upon. 

  

Total cloud subscription revenue

  

Total cloud revenue from L&A

  

Total product revenue

  

Total cloud revenue from P&C 
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Our evolution of product innovation

2016: 
®, 

2017: 

2018: 
st®  

2020: 

st®

2019: 

Increase in Cloud subscription 
business over the previous year

Product revenue contribution 
to operating revenue

A shift ttto thhhe CCloouud

19



MEASURING OUR PROGRESS
Revenue from Operations

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

82
,6

17

80
,6

04

98
,8

10

1,
04

,0
48

(` in Lakhs)

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

55
8

2,
13

1

10
,2

80

11
,7

30

(` in Lakhs)

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

7,
87

1

5,
97

6

10
,9

86

34
,2

95

(` in Lakhs)

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

44
,0

40

60
,6

49

68
,1

88

83
,0

85

(` in Lakhs)

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

67
3

28
0

7,
17

4

9,
02

2

(` in Lakhs)
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P&C | L&A | Non-insurance

LINE OF BUSINESS-WISE REVENUE (` IN LAKHS)

North America | EMEA | Others

GEOGRAPHY-WISE REVENUE (` IN LAKHS)

2
0

1
7

-1
8

2
0

1
8

-1
9

2
0

1
9

-2
0

92,370

84,676

70,689

4,288

5,627

6,8667,268

5,9775,701

2
01

7-1

8

20
18

-1

9

20
19

-2
0

81,716

69,275

61,689

17,754

1,161

28,894640

21,830502 

 |  | Support and maintenance 
License | On-premise professional services

SEGMENT-WISE REVENUE (` IN LAKHS) 

2
0

1
7

-1
8

2
0

1
8

-1
9

2
0

1
9

-2
0

16,738

28,509

26,230

33,940

2,983

6,326

42,328

37,473

12,618

18,244

21,8171,673

7,247

11,601

15,735
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OUR TIMELINE OF 
EVOLUTION 

March 2019

Vendor in the Aite Life PAS AIM Report

April 2019

st® EcoExchange

May 2019

August 2019

America*

September 2019

October 2019

®

st®

of Azure

December 2019

January 2020

st® 

May 2020

June 2020

Award for Depth of Service in the North American Policy 

Specialty ABCD Vendor View Report for the leading score
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GROWING WITH 
OUR PEOPLE
A good team is built on the 

problems that must be spotted and then solved to ensure 

TALENT DEVELOPMENT

Offshore employees

Total Full Time Employees as on March 31, 2020

Onsite employees

23



FARID KAZANI

Managing Director & Group CFO  

Experience: Three decades in corporate 

divestments

VENKATESH N. CHAKRAVARTY

Non-Executive Chairman and  

Independent Director 

Experience:

ASHANK DESAI

Non-Executive Director 

Experience:

Ahmedabad

veteran and one of the most respected 

LEADING BY EXAMPLE: 
OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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KETAN MEHTA

Non-Executive Director

Experience:

he has handled multiple functions 

behind the conceptualization and 

MADHU DUBHASHI

Independent Non-Executive Director  

Experience:

member of a start-up and as trustee of a 

VASANT GUJARATI

Independent Non-Executive Director 

Experience:

Ahmedabad

RADHAKRISHNAN SUNDAR

Executive Director  

Experience:

25



OUR TEAM: RIGHT PEOPLE WITH RIGHT SPIRIT
ADAM ELSTER - 

MANISH SHAH - 

MALLINATH SENGUPTA - Executive Vice President and Head of Delivery, Consulting,  
            and Support Services

ED OSSIE - 

26



MELISSA BLANKENBAKER - 

JIM MILLER - 

PRATEEK KUMAR - Executive Vice President, Global Sales

DENISE GARTH - Senior Vice President, Strategic Marketing 

27



LORI STANLEY - Senior Vice President & General Counsel

LAUREN HOLMES - 

FARID KAZANI - 

28



COMPANY INFORMATION
BANKERS

STATUTORY AUDITORS
 

REGISTERED OFFICE

REGISTRAR & SHARE 
TRANSFER AGENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty 

 

Mr. Ashank Desai 

Mr. Farid Kazani 

Mr. Ketan Mehta 

Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi 

Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar 

Mr. Vasant Gujarathi  

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

7th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date:

Time:

Mode: 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

I. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

 Global Economy and Information Technology

 The year 2019-20 witnessed a highly turbulent 

period in terms of economic development. While the 

economy seemed weak overall, some green shoots of 

stabilization had started to emerge towards the end of 

the year. At this juncture, the unexpected emergence of 

a major health crisis in the form of Covid-19 pandemic 

disrupted major economic activities across the globe 

and literally brought them to a grinding halt. The 

response to avoid the spread of this pandemic was a 

host of restrictions on the movement of people, goods 

and services,  along with containment measures like a 

lockdown for more than a couple of months. The impact 

of this calibrated response has had far reaching adverse 

impact on the economy across the globe surpassing 

is the contraction of the global economy which is 

projected to shrink at (3.0)% in 2020 as compared to 

2.9% in 2019. It is also estimated to gradually rebound 

normalization of economic activity helped by policy 

support, as per the International Monetary Fund (IMF) 

World Economic Report. The US economy witnessed a 

growth of 2.3% in 2019 and is expected to contract to 

(5.9)% in 2020, followed by a pick up to 4.7% in 2021. 

UK’s economy is expected to contract at (6.5)% in 2020, 

and consequently move up to 4.0% in 2021 from 1.4% 

in 2019, mainly due to persisting uncertainty over the 

outcome of UK-EU trade negotiations and Covid-19 

2021 and 2022, respectively, led by positive impact from 

structural reforms and monetary policy support. The 

forecast assumes that the Covid-19 impact would fade 

in the second half of 2020, allowing containment efforts 

to slowly scale back, while re-establishing consumer 

to predict the exact global economies’ growth due to 

unprecedented health crisis. 

 2019 was a year of strong demand with a market 

characterized by shift from traditional legacy services to 

digital technologies, DevOps and As-a-Service models. 

According to the National Association of Software and 

Services Companies (NASSCOM) Strategic Review 

2020 report, the global Information Technology and 

Business Process Management (IT-BPM) industry grew 

at 5.6% in revenue terms to USD 1.5 trillion in 2019. 

The growth was majorly driven by enabling digital at the 

core of enterprise, augmenting customer experience 

and digital operations, powered by technologies such 

Learning (AI) and Machine Learning (ML), Internet of 

Things (IoT), Augmented Reality (AR) and Virtual Reality 

(VR), blockchain, business intelligence, cyber security 

and data analytics. IT services witnessed a growth of 

3.5% led by rising demand for application development 

and  management services. The Americas continue 

to account for the largest share of the market. Across 

the globe, economies and businesses are reeling 

under demand depression, increasing unemployment, 

these challenges have provided an opportunity for 

new businesses to prosper, based on a new digital 

reality. The world is thinking about implementing ways 

and means to reduce the disruption caused to the 

humanity. This is the perfect time to focus on digital 

transformation by realizing the necessities accelerating 

it. The repercussions of the pandemic are expected to 

compel the customers to accelerate their shift to digital. 

Digitalization in every industry including BFSI, Retail, 

coming years. Post COVID-19 crisis, working remotely 

is expected to be a new norm requiring stronger cyber 

security measures leading to acceleration of technology 

trends like core modernization, data modernization and 

cloud computing. 

 Indian Economy and Information Technology

 The year 2020 is expected to be the year of digital 

transformation. Technology has become mainstream 

in our daily lives and this trend will continue in years 

ahead, to reshape business conduct and consumer 

behavior. 

 According to NASSCOM, the domestic IT-BPM industry 

revenue grew at 7.7% from USD 177 Billion in Financial 

The domestic IT-BPM witnessed growth, driven by 

various government initiatives to use digital platforms, 

and Indian enterprises across industries are rapidly 

implementing digital technologies to adapt to a changing 

competitive landscape. IT services revenue grew at 

MAJESCO | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Contd.)

6.7% to USD 97 Billion in 2019-20 from USD 91 Billion 

enterprises focus more towards digital transformation 

projects. India continues to be a preferred destination 

for IT services, attributable to strong execution 

capabilities of Indian IT companies, cost advantages, 

favorable talent landscape and increased government 

focus on IT infrastructure.

 India’s software product market increased by 9.6% to 

focus of organizations on digital transformation 

followed by the increasing intervention of technologies 

like AI, Automation, Cloud Computing and Blockchain, 

among others. 

 As per IBEF (India Brand Equity Foundation), the 

insurance industry in India is expected to touch USD 

industry is upbeat, due to variety of factors like growing 

middle class, young insurable population and growing 

awareness of the need for retirement planning. Insurers 

are using emerging technologies, to transform their IT 

systems and platforms. 

II. STRENGTHS AND OPPORTUNITIES

 The global insurance industry is projected to spend 

USD 235 Billion on IT products and services in year 

2020 as insurers continue to modernize their systems 

and deploy emerging technology in pursuit of digital 

business, according to Gartner’s research report. 

 Key takeaways from Novarica’s survey

 Novarica surveyed more than 100 insurer Chief 

Insurance Technology Research Council, for their 12th 

2020 as insurers seek to improve speed to market, 

distributor service and analytics capabilities. 

There is a continuing shift towards digital and 

data/ analytics, and a continuing embrace of cloud 

and Agile development. Security spending is also 

growing as a share of budget and as a key challenge 

for CIOs.

savings. Speed to market, distributor ease of doing 

business and business intelligence/ analytics are 

the most common asks from IT, but more than 

a third of insurers also want reduced operating 

expenses just as much.

half of “grow” and “transform” spending. More 

than 50% of insurers are planning for new systems 

or major enhancements in portals, business 

intelligence and predictive analytics.

 Digital leaders will increase to invest in new business 

models, products, processes including customer 

engagement and distribution models aligned to a 

more digital economy and growing demographic. 

More insurers will look to expand to alternative digital 

channels such as marketplaces and embedded insurance 

offerings with other businesses decreasing the cost of 

customer acquisition while expanding reach.

 From a longer term horizon, the digital and cloud focus 

will continue across all aspects  of an insurer’s operating 

model. Development of partner ecosystems, whether 

for technology, data, channels or other needs will 

rapidly build out, not only changing how insurers work 

with partners, but also within new ecosystems such as 

and more.

 Further, Covid-19 crisis is poised to be a potential game 

changer for the insurance industry, requiring insurers to 

address both their current and future business models at 

the same time. The organizations that strategically invest 

in their business and technology are well positioned for 

growth and success in current crisis environment, while 

those lagging will have to accelerate their investments 

to stay relevant in today’s market. This brings a huge 

opportunity for Majesco’s core business, which serves 

the Property and Casualty (“P&C”) and Life and Annuity 

(“L&A”) segments. 

III. COMPANY REVIEW

 Majesco is a global leader of cloud-based solutions 

that enable P&C, L&A and Group insurance businesses 

to meet the demands of today’s digital customer. Over 

200 insurance companies worldwide in P&C, L&A and 

modernizing, optimizing or creating new business 

models with Majesco solutions. Our platforms connect 

people and businesses to insurance in ways that are 

innovative, hyper-relevant, compelling and personal. 
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Majesco’s Product Offerings

CloudInsurer®

 Property & Casualty Core Suite (Policy, 

Billing, Claims)

 Life & Annuities and Group Core Suite 

(Policy, Billing, Claims)

 LifePlus Solutions (AdminPlus, AdvicePlus, 

IllustratePlus, DistributionPlus)

Distribution Management

Data and Analytics

Digital1st® Insurance

Digital1st® Platform

Digital1st® EcoExchange

Digital1st® Engagement

A. Majesco P&C Core Suite

 A powerful core systems suite empowering business 

growth and innovation for P&C personal, commercial, 

workers’ compensation and specialty insurance. 

 Majesco P&C Core Suite provides core system 

capabilities, including policy, billing and claims. It gives 

 In April, 2019, we unveiled version 11 of Majesco P&C 

Core Suite which was made available to our customers 

enhancements along with new features, for further 

improving speed to value, customer experience, ecosys-

tem connectivity and cloud delivery across all suite 

products with simple, easy and quick upgrade.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Contd.)

B. Majesco L&A and Group Core Suite

 A powerful core system suite empowering business 

growth and innovation for individual, group and 

 Majesco L&A and Group Core Suite uniquely supports 

platform, recognizing that nurturing and retaining 

customers, regardless of where they originate, is critical 

to insurers’ growth strategies. The suite provides 

essential core insurance capabilities for policy, billing 

and claims. The powerful design allows for rapid 

growth.

 In April, 2019, we unveiled version 11 of Majesco L&A 

and Group Core Suite which was made available to our 

customers in October, 2019. The new version includes 

enable customers’ transformation to meet the demands 

of a new era of insurance.

C. Majesco LifePlus Solutions

 Majesco LifePlus Solutions are in use for individual life, 

pensions and wealth management in Europe. Majesco 

LifePlus Solutions empower providers to consolidate 

digital-ready, optimize and improve business processes 

D. Insurance Distribution Management Software

 Insurance Distribution Management Software is a 

robust distribution management platform designed 

to manage multiple channels, complex compensation 

schemes, high-volume changes, innovative contests 

and to offer personalized payment schedules and self- 

service. It supports all lines of business for L&A and P&C 

on a single platform.

E. Data and Analytics Platform

 A sophisticated platform that helps insurers to use 

data as a strategic asset, putting information in the 

hands of the right people at the right time. It’s a robust 

business  intelligence and analytics tool with 300+ 

standard business reports, dashboards, KPIs for claims, 

underwriting, policy and billing functions.
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F. Majesco Digital1st® Insurance

 Majesco Digital1st® Insurance platform is a ground-

breaking digital and micro-services based cloud-only 

platform solution, designed to enable the next era of 

new business models, new products and customer 

engagement. It can subscribe to third-party services 

and real-time data sources that traditional core systems 

different customer segments and user requirements. 

 In April, 2019, we further announced a wide range of 

ready-to-use partner apps available in the Majesco 

Digital1st EcoExchange marketplace – a part of Majesco 

Digital1st Insurance solutions. Majesco Digital1st 

EcoExchange includes dynamic, real-time marketplace 

of pay-per-use insurance apps built with Majesco and 

its rich ecosystem of data and solution partners.

 Our market leading software, consulting and services 

uniquely underpin the entire insurance value chain, 

and empower insurers with the agility, innovation and 

speed, to  maximize their transformation opportunities. 

Majesco is well positioned to capitalize the business 

momentum, leveraging favourable market trends, on 

account of its scale, product reputation, success of 

implementations and breadth of solutions.

 The Results

 Majesco’s continuous focus on growth strategies 

Quadrant for Life Insurance Policy Administration 

Systems, North America.

Quadrant for P&C Core Insurance Platforms, 

North America.

in-Class’ Vendor in the P&C Policy Administration 

and L&A Core Systems.

Novarica for P&C Insurance Platforms.

Technology for L&A in North America.

IV. BUSINESS REVIEW 

 Our cloud-based strategy resonates the market. During 

the year, we continued supporting new and existing 

customer growth plans, launching new products, 

upgrading product offerings, focusing on operational 

partners in the industry to reach new markets and to 

support our customers in shaping the future of their 

business.    

 Partnerships

 In April, 2019, we entered a partnership with Data Robot, 

the leader of automated machine learning, to accelerate 

insurance industry. This partnership integrated AI and 

Automated Machine Learning (AML) capabilities with 

Majesco solutions, in order to help insurers optimize 

the business, while driving growth and innovation.

 In May, 2019, we entered an alliance partnership 

with Capgemini. Majesco and Capgemini are working 

together to bring insurance innovation and digital 

capabilities to the implementations of Majesco’s L&A 

and Group Core Suite in order to help insurers achieve 

speed to value. 

 Since then, we have established partnership alliance 

for a go to market strategy with following large System 

Ernst & Young (EY): EY provides insurance 

companies with a customized approach to core 

insurance systems transformations. Its consulting 

and implementation offerings align well with 

Majesco’s core systems for P&C and L&A.

KPMG: KPMG’s dedicated insurance operations 

and technology practice provide digital 

transformation and end-to-end technology 

operations and business process improvement 

related aspects of core systems implementation.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC): Majesco 

and PwC are working with insurers to deliver 

core systems led business transformation. 

The implementation offerings align well with 

Majesco’s P&C and L&A systems and Distribution 

Management offering. 
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 In October, 2019, we announced the availability 

of Majesco Cloud solutions in the Microsoft 

Azure Marketplace. Majesco CloudInsurer® and 

Majesco Digital1st Insurance® were architected to 

relationship with Microsoft will help enrich our 

solutions with innovative cloud capabilities, as well 

helping the industry accelerate its journey to the 

future of insurance with speed and scale.

 Update on Acquisition

 In January, 2020, we expanded our L&A business in 

North America with the announcement of the strategic 

acquisition of InsPro Technologies Corporation, a U.S. 

based software leader in the life and annuity insurance 

market (“InsPro”). The transaction got completed in 

April, 2020.

 InsPro brings an insurance administration and 

marketing system that supports group and individual 

market, worksite and website generated business. 

Majesco expands their customer portfolio of leading 

insurers and third-party administrators who currently 

process over 15 Million policies daily, including some 

with over a Million policies each. 

 The expertise, talent and experience that the InsPro 

team brings is critical to meeting the demands of today’s 

digital customer and reinforces Majesco’s commitment 

to creating a future of insurance that is agile, nimble and 

fast. InsPro also strengthens and supports Majesco’s 

strategy to continue leading the industry with 

innovative, cloud-based solutions that help carriers 

take advantage of current market opportunities.

 Operating Revenue 

 We generated an operating revenue of `

constant currency terms. The Company expanded 

`  

` 9,021 Lakhs in FY 2019-20. We expect the revenue 

from our cloud offerings to grow at a faster pace as 

compared to other areas of our business. Analysis of 

revenue by offerings is provided below.

 Operating Revenue by Offerings

(Amount ` in Lakhs)

Offerings Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2020

Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2019

Y-o-Y 
Growth 

License     6,326  112.07%

Cloud Subscription 15,735 11,601 35.63%

Support & 
Maintenance

                      

Product Revenue (A) 43,878 32,829 33.66%

% of Operating 
Revenue 

42.17% 33.22% -

Professional 
Services Revenue (B)  
(including Cloud 
Implementation 
Revenue)

60,170 65,981 (8.80%)

% of Operating 
Revenue 

-

Total Operating 
Revenue (A+B)

1,04,048 98,810 5.30%

 Region-wise Revenue by Offerings

(i) North America 

(Amount ` in Lakhs)

Offerings Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2020

Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2019

Y-o-Y 
Growth 

License 6,026 2,470 144.00 %

Cloud Subscription 14,932 33.70 %

Support & 
Maintenance

14,516 30.22 %

Product Revenue (A) 39,861 28,154 41.58 %

% of Operating 
Revenue 

43.15 % 33.25 % -

Professional 
Services Revenue (B)  
(including Cloud 
Implementation 
Revenue)

52,508 56,522 (7.10 %)

% of Operating 
Revenue 

66.75 % -

Total Operating 
Revenue (A+B)

92,369 84,676 9.08 %
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(ii) Europe

(Amount ` in Lakhs)

Offerings Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2020

Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2019

Y-o-Y 
Growth 

License 271 319 (15.04%) 

Cloud Subscription 433

Support & 
Maintenance

1,169 1,272

Product Revenue (A) 2,243 2,024 10.91%

% of Operating 
Revenue 

37.52 % 29.47 % -

Professional 
Services Revenue (B)  
(including Cloud 
Implementation 
Revenue)

3,734 4,842 (22.88%)

% of Operating 
Revenue 

70.53 % -

Total Operating 
Revenue (A+B)

5,977 6,866 (12.94 %)

(iii) Others (APAC/ India)

(Amount ` in Lakhs)

Offerings Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2020

Year 
ended on 

March 
31, 2019

Y-o-Y 
Growth 

License 194

Cloud Subscription - - -

Support & 
Maintenance

1,746 2,456

Product Revenue (A) 1,774 2,650 (33.05 %)

% of Operating 
Revenue 

31.11 % 36.46 % -

Professional 
Services Revenue (B)  
(including Cloud 
Implementation 
Revenue)

3,927 4,618 (14.96 %)

% of Operating 
Revenue 

63.54 % -

Total Operating 
Revenue (A+B)

5,701 7,268 21.56 %

V. PERFORMANCE REVIEW

 Key Financials

 On a consolidated basis, we registered total operating 

revenue of `

à-vis `

Operating Revenue, Region-wise and Line of Business-

wise is mentioned below. 

 Operating Revenue by Regions

Region Year ended on 
March 31, 2020

Year ended on 
March 31, 2019

Growth 
%

` in 
Lakhs

% of 
Revenue

` in 
Lakhs

% of 
Revenue

North 
America

 92,370  9.1

Europe  5,977  5.70 6.90  (12.9)

Others 
(India / 
APAC)

 5,701  5.50 7.40  (21.5)

Total  1,04,048  100.00 98,810 100.00 -

 Operating Revenue by Line of Business

Line of 
Business

Year ended on 
March 31, 2020

Year ended on 
March 31, 2019

Growth 
%

` in 
Lakhs

% of 
Revenue

` in 
Lakhs

% of 
Revenue

Property 
& Casualty

69,275 70.10  17.9

Life & 
Annuities

21.00 29.20 (24.4)

Non-
Insurance

502 0.50 640 0.70 (21.6)

Total 1,04,048 100.00 98,810 100.00 -

March 31, 2019 is ` 9,023 Lakhs and ` 7,174 Lakhs 

respectively. Other comprehensive income for the year 

ended on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is ̀  3,972 

Lakhs and ` 13 Lakhs respectively. Total comprehensive 

income for the year ended on March 31, 2020 and 

March 31, 2019 is ` 12,995 Lakhs and `

respectively.

31, 2019 attributable to our equity shareholders, 

after considering share of non-controlling interests is 

` 6,915 Lakhs and ` 5,404 Lakhs respectively. Other 

comprehensive income for the year ended on March 

31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 attributable to our equity 

shareholders, after considering share of non-controlling 

interests is ` 2,943 Lakhs and ` 9 Lakhs respectively. 

Other comprehensive income includes changes in 

translation of foreign operations and re-measurement 
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gain/ (loss) on gratuity plan. Total comprehensive 

income for the year ended on March 31, 2020 and 

March 31, 2019 attributable to our equity shareholders, 

after considering share of non-controlling interests is ` 

` 5,413 Lakhs respectively.

 Balance Sheet items

 Non-current Assets

 Fixed Assets

 Tangible assets including ROU assets as on March 31, 

2020 were ` 4,500 Lakhs vis-à-vis ` 3,051 Lakhs as 

on March 31, 2019. This included a gross addition of ` 

` 2,113 Lakhs 

for the year ended March 31, 2020, deduction of ` 17 

Lakhs and foreign exchange translation adjustment of ` 

42 Lakhs.

 Goodwill as on March 31, 2020 were ` 26,160 Lakhs 

vis-à-vis ` 24,706 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019. The 

increase in goodwill is mainly on account of foreign 

exchange translation adjustment. 

 Other intangible assets as on March 31, 2020 were 

` 5,139 Lakhs vis-à-vis ` 6,071 Lakhs as on March 31, 

2019. This included a gross additions including assets 

acquired of ` 21 Lakhs for purchase of computers 

software, amortization of `

on March 31, 2020 and foreign  exchange translation 

adjustment of ` 335 Lakhs.  

 Financial Assets

` 415 Lakhs as on 

March 31, 2020 vis-à-vis ` 713 Lakhs as on March 31, 

2019. The decrease is mainly on account of mark-to-

market gains  receivable on outstanding derivative 

contracts.

 Current Assets

 Current Investments and Cash & Bank Balances

 Total current investments and cash & bank balances 

as on March 31, 2020 was ` 41,750 Lakhs vis-à-vis ` 

40,313 Lakhs in the previous year. Net cash generated 

in operations was ` 11,945 Lakhs and payment for 

` 437 Lakhs and purchase 

of shares in subsidiary was ` 11,306 Lakhs during year 

` 20,490 Lakhs, proceeds from the issue of equity shares 

was ` 1,612 Lakhs, payment for dividend including 

dividend distribution tax was ` 1203 and repayment of 

lease liability was `

31, 2020.

 Trade Receivables

 Trade receivables as on March 31, 2020 stood at  

` ` 11,960 Lakhs as on March 31, 

2019. 

 Current Financial Loans, Financial Assets and Other 

Current Assets

` 111 Lakhs as on March 

31, 2020 vis-à-vis ` 2,114 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019. 

The decrease is mainly on account of reduction in other 

advances  and receivable due. Other current assets 

were at ` 16,600 Lakhs as on March 31, 2020 vis-à-vis  

` 15,670 Lakhs as on March 31, 2019.

 Shareholders’ Funds

 Total shareholders’ funds as on March 31, 2020 stood at 

` 69,799 Lakhs vis-à-vis ` 67,701 Lakhs as on March 31, 

2019. 

 Non-current Liabilities

`

Lakhs as on March 31, 2020 vis-à-vis ` 2,092 Lakhs as 

on March 31, 2019. 

 Provisions and Non-current other liabilities

 Total non-current other liabilities stood at ` 3,277 

Lakhs as on March 31, 2020 vis-à-vis ` 5,104 Lakhs as 

on March 31, 2019.

 Current Liabilities

 Financial Liabilities

decreased to ` 16,471 Lakhs vis-à-vis ` 14,622 Lakhs as 

on March 31, 2019. The increase is mainly on account of 

trade payable ` 1,396 Lakhs.

 Other Current Liabilities and Provisions

 Other current liabilities and provisions as March 31, 

2020 decreased to ` ` 7,597 

Lakhs as on March 31, 2019. 

 Days Sales Outstanding (DSO)

 DSO as on March 31, 2020 is 114 days vis-à-vis 92 days 

as on March 31, 2019. 
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 Order Backlog 

 The 12-month executable order backlog as on March 

31, 2020 was ` ` 67,011 Lakhs 

for the year ended on March 31, 2019. Total value of 

orders booked during FY 2019-20 was ̀  

vis-à-vis `

 Key Financial Ratios (Consolidated)

 [Pursuant to Schedule V (B) to the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015]

Sr. 
No.

Key Financial Ratios 
(Consolidated)

2019-20 2018-19

(i) 13.03 12.13

(ii) 7.05

(iii)
Days Sales Outstanding 
(No. of days)

114 92

(iv) Current Ratio 2.26 2.99

(v) Debt Equity Ratio (%) 0.10 4.39

(vi) Return on Net Worth (%) 9.91

 Return on Net Worth is higher for the year ended March 

 Client wins

 We added eight new clients during the year, few of 

marquee names across verticals in North America and 

the UK.

 a. 

replaced its complex, legacy applications from 

multiple products, carriers, programs and 

channels with Majesco P&C Core Suite on Majesco 

CloudInsurer® combined with Majesco Enterprise 

Data Warehouse and Majesco Insurance and Data 

Analytics Platform.

 b. Avinew, the InsurTech company reinventing auto 

insurance for the age of autonomous and semi-

autonomous vehicles, chose Majesco P&C Core 

Suite on Majesco CloudInsurer® as the foundation 

of its business operations.

 c. Stillwater Insurance, a US insurer operating in 

all 50 states, selected Majesco Claims for P&C on 

Majesco CloudInsurer® with Majesco Enterprise 

Data Warehouse for data analytics capabilities.

 d. Ullico Casualty Group, LLC (UCG), a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Ullico, Inc., selected Majesco 

P&C Core Suite and Majesco Enterprise Data 

Warehouse on Majesco CloudInsurer® to 

underpin their digital transformation and growth 

strategy.

 Human Assets

 As on March 31, 2020, our workforce strength stood 

at 2,512, of which 479 were based on site at various 

locations, while 2,033 were in India. 

VI. BUSINESS OUTLOOK 

 Today, Cloud is playing a crucial role in digital 

transformation of the insurance industry globally which 

is more eminent with the Covid-19 experience. Majesco 

had an early start in designing its robust insurance-

focused core system platforms for both P&C and L&A 

insurance, along with the Digital1st Insurance platform. 

Together they opened the door to new ways of doing 

business, engaging with customers, bringing products 

to market faster and capturing rapidly unfolding market 

opportunities. Insurers are increasingly shifting from 

today’s pace of change. Providing speed of operations 

and innovation for insurers’ growth, relevance and 

success is most important for us. Majesco’s business 

performance in the FY 2019-20 shows the growing 

success of our cloud-based strategy and solutions that 

help insurers adapt to digital insurance 2.0 era. 

 Key Focus Areas for Majesco during new Normal

to support customers for their critical and 

immediate business and Information Technology 

requirements, ensure speedy implementation, 

accelerate digital customer experiences and 

expand adoption of cloud to provide business 

discretionary expenses and ensuring tighter 

management of working capital requirements.

deliver to new and existing Tier 1-2 accounts.

of the North America L&A strategy. 
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necessary investments to support sustainable level 

of work from home environment post COVID-19.

VII. RISK GOVERNANCE 

 Risk resistance forms the core of our DNA. Majesco has 

a strong Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) function 

in place which oversees our risk management on an 

ongoing basis. The primary objective of ERM function 

is to provide a framework that improves risk response 

decisions; reduces operational surprises and thereby, 

The ERM policy, approved by the Board, lays down 

the risk management process, expected outcomes, 

governance and reporting structure. The policy also 

stresses on the importance of the existence of a strong 

risk culture for the ERM to succeed. 

 Our solid risk governance model ensures that risk 

management principles are followed across the 

organization, along with the inculcation of a risk culture. 

The ERM process and policy, both, are executed through 

the Risk Management Committee (RMC), represented 

by the business and functional heads within Majesco. 

The Board of Directors oversees the risk management 

process and together with the Audit Committee, 

key risks on a quarterly basis. A discussion of key risks 

and concerns and measures aimed at mitigating them, 

are discussed below.

 Strategic: We could be vulnerable to strategy, 

innovation and business or product portfolio related 

industry trends, customer preferences or returns on 

R&D investments. 

 

 Macroeconomic: Risks emanating from the changes in 

regulatory or political changes and alterations in the 

competitive landscape, can affect our operations and 

outlook. Any adverse movement in economic cycles in 

our target markets and volatility in foreign currency 

exchange rates, can negatively impact our performance. 

 

 Competition: We operate in a highly competitive 

industry and compete with bigger players. Shifts in 

clients’ and prospective clients’ dispositions can affect 

our business. 

 

 Dependence on key personnel: Our management 

team–one of the best in the industry–is a critical 

enabler of our operational successes. Any loss of 

personnel through attrition or other means, may impact 

our performance negatively. 

 

 Clients and accounts: Our Company’s strategy entails 

engagement with a few key customers and building 

long-term relationships with them. Any shift in 

customer preferences, priorities and internal strategies 

can adversely affect our operations and outlook. 

 

 Cyber security: With more organizations moving to 

newer areas of engagement like cloud-driven business 

model and mobile computing, among others, this 

risk has emerged as a high category risk across the IT 

industry.

 

 Contractual, execution and delivery: Our operating 

performance can be subjected to risks beyond our 
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priorities or other reasons. 

 

 Data protection and privacy: The leakage and misuse of 

risk of non-compliance of privacy and data protection 

laws.

 

 M&A: Well-considered, properly evaluated and 

strategic acquisitions form part of our growth strategy. 

There is no guarantee, however, that an acquisition will 

as anticipated at the time of entering the transaction.

 

 Covid-19: The Covid-19 pandemic is rapidly evolving 

and having a material impact on how many businesses 

are operating. 

 

 Additionally, there are multiple other risk factors that 

we need to consider and manage. The Board and the 

senior management continually assess our operations 

and the external environment, to identify potential 

risks and take meaningful mitigation actions against 

each, ensuring that the growth targets and strategic 

objectives are achieved.

VIII. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR 

ADEQUACY

 A strong internal control system is pervasive in 

our Company. It is commensurate to our business’s 

nature, size and complexity. We have a robust and 

comprehensive internal control system for all the major 

reporting. Our systems for internal control and risk 

management, go beyond what is mandated. It adapts 

and encourages best practices and reporting matrices to 

identify opportunities and risks regarding our business 

operations.

 Our internal controls are supplemented by an internal 

audit program and periodic reviews by the management. 

our Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee reviews 
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To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the 7th Board of 

the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

( ` in Lakhs)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone

Continuing 
Operations*

Discontinued 
Operations*

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2020

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2020

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2019

Year 
ended 
March 

31, 2020

Year 
ended 

March 31, 
2019

Revenue from 
operations

 

Information technology 
services

- - -

Reimbursement of 
expenses from customers

710 912 - - - 70

Rental Income - - 1,024 974 - -

Total Operating Revenue 1,04,048 98,810 1,024 974 - 1,935

Other Income 2,172 2,359 - -

Total Income 1,06,220 1,01,620 1,839 3,333 - 1,935

other expenses
1,120 1,303 -

Depreciation and 
amortization expenses

3,401 1,961 62 69 - 73

Finance costs 202 361 34 - -

Total Expenses 95,987 91,614 1,216 1,400 - 2,162

Exceptional items – 
expense/ (income)

(1,497) (274) - - -

11,730 10,280 2,492 1,933 -  (227)

Tax expense 2,707 3,106 95 534 -  (45)

9,022 7,174 2,397 1,399 -  (182)

Other Comprehensive 
Income

3,972 13 - - -  (1)

Total Comprehensive 
Income

12,995 7,187 2,397 1,399 -  (183)

Earnings per share of 
face value of ` 5/- each

Basic (`) 19.14 4.95 - (0.64)

Diluted (`) 23.46 4.76 - (0.62)

*Revenue from India Insurance Products Services Business was sold 
with effect from April 1, 2019 and accordingly, has been considered as 
discontinued operations. The Company amended its Memorandum of 
Association to include renting of property as one of the main objects and 
accordingly rental income is considered as revenue from operations and 

Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-
AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

2. COVID-19 IMPACT
 The COVID-19 pandemic is rapidly evolving and having a 

material impact on how the businesses operate. Majesco 
Leadership Team continues to actively monitor the situation 
to minimize any impact on its employees, customer projects, 
service and support.

 Majesco Group has taken immediate action and the majority 
of employees have been working remotely since March 16, 
2020. Since then, all business operations of the Company have 
been functioning normally. We have adopted best practices 
for working virtually with our customers to ensure projects 
continue to move forward. The swift implementation of the 
plan has ensured that we have not experienced any disruptions 
to our business operations.

3. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

a) Consolidated operations

 The Majesco Group registered total operating revenue of ` 

to `

` 9,023 lakhs for the year 
` 7,174 

lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2019. Analysis of the 
Operating Revenue region-wise, offering-wise and line of 

business-wise is provided below.

 Breakup of Operating Revenue by regions

Region Year ended on 
March 31, 2020

Year ended on 
March 31, 2019

` in lakhs % of 
Revenue

` in lakhs % of 
Revenue

North America 92,370

Europe 5,977 5.74 6.90

Others  5,701 5.49 7.40

Total Operating 
Revenue

1,04,048 100.00 98,810 100.00

 Operating Revenue by offerings

Offerings Year ended on 
March 31, 2020

Year ended on 
March 31, 2019

` in lakhs % of 
Revenue

` in lakhs % of 
Revenue

License 6,326 3.02

Professional Services 33,940 32.62 37,472 37.92

Cloud 41,965 40.33 40,110 40.59

Support 20.97

Total Operating 
Revenue

1,04,048 100.00 98,810 100.00

 Breakup of Operating Revenue by Line of Business

Line of Business Year ended on 
March 31, 2020

Year ended on 
March 31, 2019

` in lakhs % of 
Revenue

` in lakhs % of 
Revenue

Property & Casualty 69,275 70.11

Life & Annuities 29.24

Non-Insurance 502 640 0.65

Total Operating 
Revenue

1,04,048 100.00 98,810 100.00
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b) Standalone Operations

 (i) Continuing Operations

  Your Company reported a total income of  

`

as compared to ` 3,333 lakhs for the year ended 

of ̀  2,397 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 

` 1,399 lakhs for the 

year ended March 31, 2019.

 (ii) Discontinued Operations

  During the year ended March 31, 2020, there was 

no income earned by the Company as well no loss 

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the 

Company earned total income of ` 1,935 lakhs and 

incurred net loss of `

4. RESERVES

 No amount is proposed to be transferred to reserves for 

the year ended March 31, 2020.

5. DIVIDEND

 The Board of Directors have approved and paid interim 

dividend @ 40% i.e. ̀  2/- per equity share of face value of 

`

ensuing 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company 

(“AGM”).

6. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

 During the year under review, there was no change in 

authorized share capital of the Company.

 During the year under review, the Company allotted 

3,56,506 equity shares of face value of ` 5/- each, to 

various employees in Majesco group and Managing 

Director & Group CFO of the Company, on exercise 

of vested stock options. These equity shares rank 

 in all respects with existing equity shares of the 

Company.

 As on March 31, 2020, the paid-up share capital of 

your Company stood at ` 14,35,09,735/- comprising 

` 5/- each.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN MARCH 31, 2020 

AND DATE OF THIS REPORT & CHANGE IN NATURE 

OF BUSINESS

 The Company’s US Subsidiary Majesco entered into 

Merger Agreement on January 30, 2020, for Merger 

with InsPro Technologies Corporation, a US based 

software leader in the life and annuity insurance 

market. In consideration for Merger, Majesco (USA) 

paid USD 12 million, subject to adjustments (including 

for cash and certain debt of InsPro) on April 1, 2020. 

Accordingly upon closing of the Merger, InsPro 

Technologies Corporation has become a direct wholly-

owned subsidiary of Majesco (USA) and a step-down 

subsidiary of the Company with effect from April 1, 

2020. The Company has made relevant disclosures 

in this respect to the Stock Exchanges, as required 

under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

.

8. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

 Your Company has one direct subsidiary namely 

Majesco (USA), in which it holds 74.10% stake as on 

March 31, 2020. Majesco (USA), has eight direct and 

indirect wholly owned subsidiaries as on March 31, 

2020.

 In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act, 

Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 

which form part of this Annual Report. As required 

under Section 129(3) of the Act read with Rule 5 of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement 

statements of the subsidiaries in the prescribed form 

AOC-1 is enclosed as Annexure – I to this Report.

 In accordance with Section 136 of the Act, the separate 

audited accounts of the subsidiary companies will 

ir.majesco.com/ and the Members desirous of obtaining 

the accounts of the Company’s subsidiaries may obtain 

the same upon request. These documents will be 

available for inspection by the members, till the date of 

AGM. Any member who wishes to inspect shall send a 

request for the same on the e-mail id of the Company i.e. 

investors.grievances@majesco.com.

 The Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries, 

adopted by your Board, in conformity with the SEBI 

Listing Regulations can be accessed on the Company’s 
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 The details of subsidiary and step down subsidiaries as on March 31, 2020 are given below.

(` in Lakhs)

Name of the Subsidiary Date of 
Incorpo-

ration

Country Business Turnover 

As on March 
31, 2020

As on March 
31, 2019

As on March 
31, 2020

As on March 
31, 2019

Majesco 07-Apr-
1992

USA Information 
Technology 

Services

(4,613) (4,371)

Step Down Subsidiary

Majesco Software and 
Solutions Inc.

03-Jun-
1991

USA Information 
Technology 

Services

5,150

Majesco Canada 
Limited

09-Feb-
2009

Canada Information 
Technology 

Services

202 397 9 (2.03)

Majesco Sdn Bhd 29-Apr-
2000

Malaysia Information 
Technology 

Services

3,399 35 (650)

Pte. Limited**
26-Mar-

1991
Singapore Information 

Technology 
Services

301 (541) 14

Majesco Software and 
Solutions India Private 
Limited$

21-Oct-
2014

India Information 
Technology 

Services

37,662 4,604

Majesco (UK) Limited$ 23-Oct-
2014

UK Information 
Technology 

Services

2,652 4,404 115 166

Limited# (acquired)
02-Nov-

1999
Ireland Information 

Technology 
Services

- NIL (1,099) NIL

Exaxe Limited# 
(acquired)

16-Sep-
1994

Ireland Information 
Technology 

Services

3,325 2,462 (156) 705

 $Majesco Software and Solutions India Private Limited and Majesco (UK) Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Majesco Software and 
Solutions Inc. and step-down subsidiaries of Majesco (USA).

down subsidiary of Majesco (USA). 

9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

 In accordance with Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Regulations, Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of 

this Annual Report.

10. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

 In accordance with Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, Business Responsibility Report forms part of this 

Annual Report.
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11. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 To the best of their knowledge and belief and according 

to the information and explanations obtained by them, 

your Directors make the following statement in terms 

of sub-sections (3) (c) and (5) of Section 134 of the Act 

 a) In preparation of the Financial Statements 

the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures, if any;

 b) We have selected such accounting policies and 

applied them consistently and made judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so 

as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 

of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and of the 

date;

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act, for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities;

 d) Financial Statements of the Company had been 

prepared on a going concern basis;

 e) We have laid down Internal Financial Controls to 

be followed by the Company which are adequate 

and operating effectively; and

 f) We have devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and such systems are adequate and operating 

effectively.

12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 As on date of this report, the Company has seven 

Directors, out of those three are Independent Directors 

including one Woman Independent Director.

 a) Resignation of Mr. Jyotin Mehta (DIN: 00033518) 

as an Independent Director of the Company

appointed as an Independent Director for tenure 

4, 2023, resigned from the Company with effect 

his resignation from the Company.

 b) Appointment of Mr. Vasant Gujarathi (DIN: 

06863505) as an Independent Director of the 

Company

appointed as an Additional Independent Director 

3, 2020, not liable to retire by rotation. Proposal 

for his appointment as an Independent Director 

is being placed for the approval of members of 

the Company at the ensuing AGM. The Board 

recommends appointment of Mr. Vasant Gujarathi, 

from March 3, 2020 to March 2, 2025, for approval 

by the members at the forthcoming AGM.

  In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Vasant Gujarathi is 

a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered 

in Audit, Financial Systems, Operations, Risk 

Management, Regulatory Compliance, Internal 

Audit Services, IT strategy implementation, Talent 

Management, Corporate Governance review & 

Advisory Services, Ethics Assessment and Program 

Development, etc. will add immense value on the 

Board of the Company.

 c) Re-appointment of Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty 

(DIN: 01102892) and Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi (DIN: 

00036846) as Independent Directors

  The tenure of Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty and 

Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi expired on April 29, 2020. 

Proposal for their re-appointment as Independent 

Directors will be placed for the approval of 

members of the Company. The Board recommends 

re-appointment of Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty 

and Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi, as Independent 

30, 2020 to April 29, 2025, for approval by the 

members.

 d) Re-appointment of Mr. Farid Kazani (DIN: 

06914620) as Managing Director & Group CFO 

of the Company
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Managing Director & Group CFO is due to expire 

on July 3, 2020. Proposal for his re-appointment as 

Managing Director & Group CFO will be placed for 

the approval of members. The Board recommends 

re-appointment (including remuneration payable 

and other terms of re-appointment) of Mr. Farid 

Kazani as Managing Director & Group CFO, for 

tenure of three years from July 4, 2020 to July 3, 

2023, for approval by the members.

 e) Retirement by rotation

Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the 

forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offers himself 

for re-appointment. The Board recommends his 

re-appointment.

 f) Independent Directors

  All the Independent Directors have furnished 

declaration of Independence stating that they 

meet the criteria of independence as provided 

under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 

there has been no change in the circumstances 

which may affect their status as Independent 

Directors during the year.

  Further, they also declared that they have complied 

with Rule 6 (1) of the Companies (Appointment 

with respect to the inclusion of name in the data 

bank created by the Indian Institute of Corporate 

Affairs.

 g) Key Managerial Personnel

2019-20

Managing Director & Group CFO

– Executive Director

  During the year under review, there were no 

changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company.

 h) Number of Board Meetings

  The Board of Directors of the Company met six 

of the Board meetings and the attendance of the 

Directors, are given in Corporate Governance 

Report which forms part of this report.

13. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 Your Company has duly constituted the Committees 

required under the Act read with applicable Rules made 

there under and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

 The Company has an Audit Committee with the 

constitution, powers and role as are prescribed under 

Listing Regulations.

 The other statutory committees of the Board are given 

 i) Investors’ Grievances and Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee

 ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 iii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

 Details with regard to composition, powers, role, 

meetings held and attendance of members at meetings 

of the relevant Committee are provided in the Report 

on Corporate Governance which forms part of this 

Annual Report.

14. BOARD’S PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

 In compliance with requirement of the provisions 

thereunder and Schedule IV to the Act as well as 

Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 

performance evaluation of the Board as a whole and 

individual directors was carried out during the year 

had adopted the Internal methodology for carrying out 

Board Evaluation exercise.

 Mr. Ashank Desai, Non-Executive Director was 

requested to lead the performance evaluation 

exercise. A structured questionnaire was prepared 

and circulated, after taking into consideration, inputs 

received from the Directors, covering various aspects 

of the Board’s functioning such as Board Structure & 

Development, Board Meetings & Materials, Key Board 
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Responsibilities & Reporting, Board Management 

Relationship, Board Committees’ Effectiveness, Board 

Mission.

 The outcome of the evaluation of the Board was 

comprehensively discussed at the meeting of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board 

Meeting.

 Performance Evaluation process for Independent 

Directors was based on the declarations received from 

of independence as required under the Act and SEBI 

Listing Regulations.

15. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

 The Company has a policy on remuneration of Directors 

and Key Managerial Personnel. The policy is approved 

by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

the Board of Directors of the Company.

 This policy is available on website of the Company 

ir.majesco.com/policies/.

16. PEOPLE PRACTICES

 Majesco Group deploys its intellectual capability 

to create and deliver intellectual property-driven 

solutions that make a positive business impact for its 

global clients. For this, the key success enabler and most 

vital resource is world-class talent. Majesco Group 

continually undertakes measures to attract and retain 

such high quality talent.

continuous progress and improvement, constantly on 

the lookout for creating better employees experience 

over the last year.

 Project DeLorean: It is a combination of process 

improvements and new system implementations based 

on our three-year strategy that will transform the way 

Majesco operates. This is a huge investment in the 

future and enable our people capabilities with best-in-

 - HCM Implementation:

Absences. Idea is to bring in a single sign-on system 

to integrate all aspects of employee life cycle under 

one system, empower managers and employees to 

manage their own system transactions thereby 

has also helped in streamlining various processes 

to cut out redundancies.  helps by providing 

employees with an intuitive, personalized user 

system to manage personal and employment 

information easily and securely.  module 

provides end-to-end functionality to request time 

off and view time off balances, along with easy-to-

use approval features for managers.

 - ADP Implementation: Payroll services in India 

is now being managed by Global Delivery Center 

through Automatic Data Processing, Inc. (ADP®), 

one of the world’s largest providers of business 

outsourcing solutions. This also provides self-

service functionality for employees.

 Cheers for Peers: We have implemented a new rewards 

offers everyone a chance to give and receive recognition 

for outstanding achievements. Through an interactive 

social platform, employees will have the opportunity 

to recognize and thank their teams and peers for their 

contributions to Majesco’s success.

 Policy Updates: As part of continuous improvement, 

policies have been periodically reviewed to make them 

more business relevant and employee friendly.

 Career Architecture: Following industry best 

practices, the entire organization hierarchy structure 

was revamped and streamlined with the new career 

architecture. Career Architecture is an initiative that has 

helped create transparency and understanding around 

how job titles and job grades at Majesco are organized 

relative to job responsibilities and scope. Career 

Architecture has served as a foundation to power our 

talent programs including recruitment, compensation & 

total rewards, career growth, succession planning and 

talent development.

 3E Workshop: A cross-functional workshop was 

organized for leaders from all business units and 

corporate functions. Agenda of the workshop was 

to understand importance of 3E - Engage with 

customers, Energize teams & Excel in collaborative 

working; Identify barriers to effective collaboration; 
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Brainstorm ways to collaborate amongst line managers 

across geographies; Finalize top 10 action plans to 

implement. First of these action plans is streamlining 

the onboarding process to provide seamless integration 

of new joiners to the organization with a view to create 

implemented.

 Remote Onboarding: In view of the current pandemic 

rolled out remote onboarding since March’20. Entire 

onboarding process is done online seamlessly as well 

as mandatory trainings and corporate induction. This 

has helped to equip new joiners to accustom to Majesco 

work culture and align to the business needs faster.

 GeekCafe: Continuous learning plays an important 

role in improving productivity. GeekCafe is an initiative 

to leverage the expertise within to build a better 

knowledge base and help employees improve their 

been instituting this in various Business Unit’s across 

offshore.

 Managing Remote Teams Training: In an effort to enable 

business continuity and align to new normal of remote 

working, we have rolled out a training for all managers 

on managing remote teams. This program gives insights 

working, tips to manage teams better and how to keep 

times to help improve productivity.

 Navigating the Remote Life: In conjunction with the 

above training, we have also started a communication 

campaign for all employees with a few tips on how to 

navigate the remote life better. This series includes 

information from managing daily remote working, 

ergonomics, staying healthy to maintaining a positive 

outlook during the pandemic situation.

 As on March 31, 2020, Majesco Group had a total 

headcount of 2512 (including contactors’ employees). 

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation 

for the contributions made by employees to the 

Company during the year under review.

17. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

 A strong internal control system is pervasive in the 

Company. The Company has documented a robust and 

comprehensive internal control system for all the major 

18. INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

controls commensurate with the size, scale and 

complexity of its operations.

 During the year, such controls were tested and 

no reportable material weakness in the design or 

operations were observed. The Company has policies 

and procedures in place for ensuring proper and 

its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

information.

various accounting policies, accounting hygiene and 

accuracy of provisions and other estimates.

19. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

M/s. Varma & Varma, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration no. 004532S), M/s. MSKA & Associates, 

105047W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of 

the Company by the Board of Directors of the Company 

on July 4, 2019 till the 6th AGM.

 Further, pursuant to Section 139(1) and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

at the 6th AGM held on August 6, 2019, M/s. MSKA 

& Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm 

a period of 5 consecutive years from the conclusion of 

the 6th AGM till the conclusion of the 11th AGM of the 

the Company.

 Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors is 

The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are 

reservation or adverse remark. Therefore, it does not 

call for any further comments.
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20. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

 In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there 

under, M/s. Abhishek Bhate & Co., Company Secretary 

in Practice, has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor 

of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditor 

is enclosed as Annexure – II to this report. The report is 

or adverse remark. Therefore, it does not call for any 

further comments.

21. INTERNAL AUDITOR

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Internal 

Audit function is performed by M/s. Suresh Surana & 

Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants. The Internal 

Auditor presents its report to the Audit Committee. 

The scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology 

for conducting the internal audit has been formulated 

in consultation with the Audit Committee.

22. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

 During the year under review, neither Statutory 

Auditors nor Secretarial Auditor have reported to the 

Audit Committee any instances of fraud committed 

terms of Section 143(12) of the Act.

23. RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Company has clearly laid out framework to 

implement and monitor Risk Management Plan of the 

Company. The Audit Committee quarterly reviews 

the risks and remedial measures taken in this regard. 

at its meeting on quarterly basis. The various risks are 

appropriate steps/ measures are taken/ initiated, to 

24. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR 

INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013

 Details of loans, guarantees, investments covered under 

are provided in the notes to the Financial Statements.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

year under review, were at arm’s length basis and are 

in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act 

and SEBI Listing Regulations. There were no material 

by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key 

Managerial Personnel etc. which may have potential 

 All the Related Party Transactions are presented to 

the Audit Committee and Board for their approval. 

Omnibus approval is given by Audit Committee for 

the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in 

nature. A statement of all Related Party Transactions 

is presented before the Audit Committee and Board on 

quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms 

and conditions of the transactions. The said transactions 

are approved by Audit Committee as well as by Board.

 The Related Party Transactions Policy as approved by 

the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website at 

 There are no such related party transactions required 

to be reported in Form AOC-2, enclosed as Annexure – 

III to this report.

26. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

 Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act, the extract 

of annual return in Form MGT-9 is enclosed as           

Annexure – IV to this report and the same is placed 

27. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

 In compliance with the requirement of the Act and the 

SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has established a 

Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil mechanism and the same is 

com/policies/.

 The employees of the Company are made aware of the 

said policy at the time of joining the Company.

28. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

 Majesco Group follows a strict zero tolerance towards 

sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a 

Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual 

harassment at workplace in line with the provisions 
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(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 

the Rules thereunder, for prevention and redressal of 

complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.

 Since the strength of female employees in the Company 

is less than 10, the Company does not have an Internal 

Complaint Committee (ICC)  however, Majesco as 

a group has more than 10 female employees and have 

constituted ICC in accordance with requirements as 

prescribed under aforementioned statute.

received any complaint on sexual harassment.

29. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

scheme plan I of the Company and the ESOP plan is 

in compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee 

 Disclosure in compliance with the SEBI (Share Based 

granted stock option equal to or exceeding 1% of the 

issued share capital of the Company at the time of grant 

of options.

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

 In compliance with Section 135 of the Act, the Board of 

Directors of the Company has formed a CSR Committee. 

The composition of CSR Committee and brief outline 

of the CSR policy of the Company with the initiative 

undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during 

the year are set out in Annexure – V of this report in the 

format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The CSR Policy is 

ir.majesco.com/policies/.

31. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND 

REMUNERATION

 The information required in terms of Section 197(12) of 

the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 

I. Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014

 a) Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 

median remuneration of the employees (“MRE”) of 

Name of the Director Ratio to MRE

Executive Directors

Mr. Farid Kazani 7.19x

Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar 0.62x

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty Not Applicable

Mr. Ashank Desai Not Applicable

Mr. Jyotin Mehta Not Applicable

Mr. Ketan Mehta Not Applicable

Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi Not Applicable

Mr. Vasant Gujarathi Not Applicable

 b) Percentage increase in remuneration of each 

Name of the Director/ Key 
Managerial Personnel

% increase in 
remuneration* 

year 2019-20

Mr. Farid Kazani 32.40%

Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar NIL

Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty Not Applicable 

Mr. Ashank Desai Not Applicable

Mr. Jyotin Mehta Not Applicable

Mr. Ketan Mehta Not Applicable 

Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi Not Applicable 

Mr. Vasant Gujarathi Not Applicable

Mr. Kunal Karan, Chief 17.90%

Mrs. Varika Rastogi, Company 
Secretary

15.00%

  *Remuneration comprises of Gross Salary and 

Incentive as per Plan.

  #The Median salary for the Company has changed 

upward since the majority of the employees who 

were part of the India business delivery programs 

were transferred to its step down subsidiary 

against 79 employees with a median salary INR 
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9,12,371 in March 2019, there were 6 employees 

as on March 2020 where in the median salary 

2019).

 d) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of 

 e) Average percentage increase made in salaries of 

employees other than Managerial Personnel in 

16.36% in the salaries of Managerial Personnel.

remuneration policy of the Company

II. Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014

 The statement containing particulars of employees in 

terms of remuneration drawn is provided in a separate 

regard to Section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report 

excluding the aforesaid annexure, is being sent to all the 

members of the Company and others entitled thereto. 

The said annexure is open for inspection and any 

member who wishes to inspect shall send a request for 

the same on the e-mail id of the Company i.e. investors.

grievances@majesco.com.

32. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 

THE REGULATORS

material orders were passed by the regulators or courts 

or tribunals impacting the going concern status and 

operations of the Company.

33. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

 Your Company has not accepted any deposits from 

public in terms of Section 73 and/ or 74 of the Act.

34. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO

 (a) Conservation of energy: considering nature of 

business of the Company, energy costs constitute 

a small portion of the total cost and there is not 

much scope for energy conservation.

(i) the steps taken or impact on 

conservation of energy.
Not 

Applicable
(ii) the steps taken by the company for 

utilizing alternate sources of energy

(iii) the capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment’s

 (b) Technology absorption:

(i) the efforts made towards 

technology absorption

Not 

Applicable

(ii)

improvement, cost reduction, 

product development or import 

substitution

(iii) in case of imported technology 

(imported during the last three years 

reckoned from the beginning of the 

(a) the details of technology 

imported

(b) the year of import

(c) whether the technology been 

fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 

absorption has not taken place, 

and the reasons thereof

(iv) the expenditure incurred on 

Research and Development

Nil   

(` 77 lakhs 

for FY 

 (c) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

  Total foreign exchange used and earned by 

Majesco Limited

(` in Lakhs)

Year ended 
March 31, 

2020

Year ended 
March 31, 

2019

Exchange used 75

Exchange earned Nil 22
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35. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 The Company has complied with corporate governance 

requirements as prescribed under the Act and the SEBI 

Listing Regulations. A separate section on corporate 

governance practices followed by the Company 

& Co., Company Secretary in Practice, forms an integral 

part of this report.

36. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

 The Company has complied with all applicable 

mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India.

37. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

 Your Directors place on record their appreciation for 

employees at all levels, whose hard work and solidarity 

have contributed to the growth and performance of 

your Company. Your Directors also thank the customers, 

vendors, bankers and shareholders of the Company for 

their continued support.

 Your Directors also thank the Central and State 

Governments and other statutory authorities for their 

continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Majesco Limited

Venkatesh N. Chakravarty

Non-Executive Chairman & Independent Director
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

ST 

ANNEXURE -II

To,

The Members,

MAJESCO LIMITED

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by Majesco Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).  Secretarial  Audit  was  conducted  in  a  manner  that  provided  

me  a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon. 

representatives  during  the  conduct  of  secretarial  audit,  I  hereby  report  that  in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
st, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 

that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

st

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings.

 (a) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 (c) The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Prohibition  of  Insider  Trading) Regulations, 2015;

applicable to the Company during the audit period);

to the Company during the audit period);

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client 
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 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the audit period); and

Company during the audit period).

I further report that, based on the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant documents 

(i) Software Technology Parks of India rules and regulations;

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

The  Board  of  Directors  of  the  Company  is  duly  constituted  with  proper  balance  of  Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of  the  Board  of  Directors  that  took  place  during  the  

period  under  review  were  carried  out  in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

I further   report   that   there   are   adequate   systems   and   processes   in   the   Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that:  

(a) During the year Company has passed resolution for sale and transfer of India Insurance Products & Services Business on 

(b) The Board of Directors at its meeting held on March 16, 2020 approved for payment of Interim Dividend @ 40% of the face 

value of share.

I further report that at the Annual General Meeting held on August 6, 2019, the Shareholders approved the Special resolution for 

Alteration of Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company with 99.99% majority. 

 For Abhishek Bhate & Co                                 

CS Abhishek Bhate

Practicing Company Secretary
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Annexure I to Secretarial Audit Report

LIST OF DOCUMENTS

1.  Corporate Matters

  1.1.1  Board Meeting

  1.1.2  Audit Committee

  1.1.3  Nomination and Remuneration Committee

  1.1.4  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

  1.1.5  Investors’ Grievances and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

  1.1.6  General Meeting

 1.2  Agenda papers for Board Meeting along with Notice;

 1.3  Annual Report 2019;

 1.4  Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015;

 1.5  Policies framed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations;

 1.7  Disclosures made with the SEBI;
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Annexure II to Secretarial Audit Report

To,

The Members,

MAJESCO LIMITED

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 

in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed, provided reasonable basis for my opinion.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations 

and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For Abhishek Bhate & Co                                 

CS Abhishek Bhate

Practicing Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE – III

Form AOC-2

 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to 

in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 

thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

parties which is not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

 The details of material contract or arrangement or transaction at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31, 2020 are 

Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of 
Contract/ 

Arrangement/ 
Transaction

Duration of 
Contract/ 

Arrangement/ 
Transaction

Salient terms 
of Contract/ 

Arrangement/ 
Transaction 

including the 
value

Date of 
approval of the 

Board, if any

Amount paid as 
advance, if any

Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board

Majesco Limited

Venkatesh N. Chakravarty

Non-Executive Chairman & Independent Director
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ANNEXURE – IV

Form No. MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

1. CIN 

2. Registration Date June 27, 2013

3. Name of the Company Majesco Limited 

4. Category/ Sub-Category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares

5. MNDC, MBP-P-136, Mahape,  Navi Mumbai – 400 710

6. Whether listed company Yes

7. Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer 

Agent (RTA) Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, 

Telangana 500 032

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover* of the Company shall be stated

Sl. 

No.

Name and Description of main 

Products/Services

NIC Code of the Product/ Service % to total turnover of the Company

1. Real Estate Activity 100%

*Total turnover has been considered as per Section 2(91) of Companies Act, 2013.

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. 
No.

Name and Address of Subsidiary 
Company

CIN/ GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of Shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1. Majesco 

110C, Morristown, New Jersey 07960

Foreign Company Subsidiary 74.10

2 Majesco Software and Solutions Inc.

110C, Morristown, New Jersey 07960

Foreign Company Step-Down 

Subsidiary

100.00

3 Majesco Canada Limited

2500, Toronto, ON M5G 1Z3

Foreign Company Step-Down 

Subsidiary

100.00
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Sr. 
No.

Name and Address of Subsidiary 
Company

CIN/ GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of Shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

4 Majesco Sdn Bhd 

Plaza Sentral, Jalan Stesen Sentral 5, Kl 

Sentral 50470 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah 

Persekutuan, Malaysia

Foreign Company Step-Down 

Subsidiary

100.00

5 Foreign Company Step-Down 

Subsidiary

100.00

6 Majesco Software and Solutions India 

Private Limited 

Business Park, Mahape, Navi Mumbai – 

400 710

Step-Down 

Subsidiary

100.00

7 Majesco UK Limited

Reading, RG1 2EG, UK

Foreign Company Step-Down 

Subsidiary

100.00

Exaxe Holdings Limited

Grand Canal Dock Dublin 2, Ireland

Foreign Company Step-Down 

Subsidiary

90.00

9 Exaxe Limited

Grand Canal Dock Dublin 2, Ireland

Foreign Company Step-Down 

Subsidiary

100.00

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning  
of the year April 1, 2019

No. of Shares held at the end  
of the year March 31, 2020

%

Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Share

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

NIL 25.54 NIL 24.53 (1.01)

b. Central Govt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

c. State Govt. (s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d. Bodies Corp. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

e. Banks/ FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

f.Any Other (Ram Family Trust 
I, Girija Ram acting in capacity 
of trustee)

5,00,000 NIL 5,00,000 1.76 5,00,000 NIL 5,00,000 1.74 (0.02)

Sub-total (A)(1) 77,40,283 NIL 77,40,283 27.31 75,40,283 NIL 75,40,283 26.27 (1.04)

(2) Foreign

a. NRIs Individuals NIL 12.13 NIL (0.15)

b. Other – Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning  
of the year April 1, 2019

No. of Shares held at the end  
of the year March 31, 2020

%

Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Share

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Share

c. Bodies Corp. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d. Banks/ FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

e. Any Other NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sub-total (A)(2) 34,37,889 NIL 34,37,889 12.13 34,37,889 NIL 34,37,889 11.98 (0.15)

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

1,11,78,172 NIL 1,11,78,172 39.44 1,09,78,172 NIL 1,09,78,172 38.25 (1.19)

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a. Mutual Funds 1,200 33,69,072 35,62,124 1,200 35,63,324 12.41 0.52

b. Banks/ FI 40,256 NIL 40,256 0.14 NIL (0.06)

c. Central Govt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d. State Govt. (s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

e. Venture Capital Funds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

f. Insurance Companies NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

g. FIIs 22,51,013 1,600 22,52,613 7.95 1,600 10.09 2.14

h. Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL

i. Others (Alternative 
Investment Fund)

NIL 2,52,922 NIL 2,52,922
0.50

Sub-Total (B)(1) 57,67,508 2,800 57,70,308 20.36 67,31,103 2,800 67,33,903 23.46 3.10

2. Non-Institutions

a.  Bodies Corp.

i.  Indian 19,61,397 2,400 19,63,797 6.93 16,56,493 2,400 (1.15)

ii. Overseas 200 NIL 200 0.00 200 NIL 200 0.00 NIL

b. Individuals

i. Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh

52,94,742 1,72,970 54,67,712 19.29 1,55,902 49,43,979 17.22
(2.07)

ii. Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of ` 1 lakh

29,55,909 NIL 29,55,909 10.43 34,32,633 NIL 34,32,633 11.96
1.53

c.  Others

i. Non Resident Individuals 9,21,972 11,573 9,33,545 3.29 9,00,240 3.16 (0.13)

ii. Foreign National 11,260 NIL 11,260 0.04 10,975 NIL 10,975 0.04 NIL

iii. NBFC 51,150 NIL 51,150 350 NIL 350 0.01 (0.17)

iv. Clearing Member NIL 0.03 NIL 0.10 0.07

v. Trust NIL 0.02 6,040 NIL 6,040 0.02 NIL

Sub-total (B)(2) 1,12,10,018 1,86,943 1,13,96,961 40.21 1,08,23,772 1,66,100 1,09,89,872 38.29 (1.92)

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

1,69,77,526 1,89,743 1,71,67,269 60.56 1,75,54,875 1,68,900 1,77,23,775 61.75
1.19

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL

Grand Total (A+B+C) 2,81,55,698 1,89,743 2,83,45,441 100.00 2,85,33,047 1,68,900 2,87,01,947 100.00 NIL

ANNEXURE -IV (CONTD.)

59

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW



(ii) Shareholding of Promoters and Promoters group

Sl.

No.

Name of the Shareholder Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year April 1, 2019

Shareholding at the end of the year 
March 31, 2020

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

Encumbered 
to total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

Encumbered 
to total shares

1. Mr. Ashank Desai 30,99,552 10.93 NIL 30,99,552 NIL (0.13)
2. Mr. Sudhakar Ram 6.45 24.57 16,31,763 5.69 (0.76)
3. Mr. Ketan Mehta 27,19,361 9.59 NIL 27,19,361 9.47 NIL (0.12)
4. Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar NIL NIL (0.06)
5. Mrs. Rupa Mehta 1.70 NIL NIL (0.02)
6. Mrs. Usha Sundar 4,60,000 1.62 NIL 4,60,000 1.60 NIL (0.02)
7. Mrs. Girija Ram 1,63,600 NIL 1,63,600 0.57 NIL     (0.01)

Mrs. Padma Desai 1,55,200 0.55 NIL 1,55,200 0.54 NIL (0.01)
9. Ms. Samvitha Ram 0.36 NIL 0.36 NIL NIL
10. Ms. Avanti Desai 0.29 NIL NIL (0.01)
11. Mr. Chinmay Ashank Desai 71,600 0.25 NIL 71,600 0.25 NIL NIL
12. Mr. Varun Sundar 64,000 0.23 NIL 64,000 0.22 NIL (0.01)
13. Mr. Shankar Sundar 64,000 0.23 NIL 64,000 0.22 NIL (0.01)
14. Mr. Tanay Mehta 6,400 0.02 NIL 6,400 0.02 NIL NIL
15. Ram Family Trust I 5,00,000 1.76 NIL 5,00,000 1.74 NIL (0.02)

(iii) Change in Promoters (including Promoter Group) Shareholding

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Promoter and 
Promoter group

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

as on April 1, 2019

Date Reason Increase/ Decrease in 
Shareholding

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year

No. of

Shares

% of total

Shares 
of the 

Company

No. of

Shares

% of total

Shares 
of the 

Company

No. of

Shares

% of total

Shares 
of the 

Company
1. Sudhakar Ram 6.45 6.45

24.05.2019 Sale of Shares (2,00,000)        (0.70) 16,31,763 5.75

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sr. 
No.

For each of the Top Ten shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year April 1, 2019

Cumulative Shareholding at the 
end of the year March 31, 2020

No. of Shares % of total shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of total shares 
of the Company

1 13,55,743 6.44
2 Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited A/C 11,62,371 4.10 11,05,252
3 Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited 3.46
4 IDFC Focused Equity Fund 3.44 12,62,917 4.40
5 DSP Small Cap Fund                                                 9,00,126 9,00,126 3.14
6 Madhulika Agarwal 2.36 2.33
7 Ashish Kacholia                                                            6,66,123 2.35 3.11

Sixteenth Street Asian Gems Fund 2,07,726 0.73 2,50,226
9 Akash Prem Prakash 2,00,000 0.71 2,00,000 0.70
10 Chetan Jayantilal Shah 1,35,000 2,00,000 0.70
11 Veritable, L.P. A/C Vemf - A, L.P. 0.54 0.61
12 UBS Principal Capital Asia Limited 0.03 0.03
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Directors 
and KMP

Date Reason Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year April 

1, 2019

Cumulative Shareholding at 
the end of the year March 31, 

2020

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

1 Mr. Venkatesh N. 
Chakravarty 

April 01, 2019 20,000 0.07 20,000 0.07

March 31, 2020 20,000 0.07

2 Mr. Ashank Desai* April 01, 2019 30,99,552 10.93 30,99,552

March 31, 2020 30,99,552

3 Mr. Farid Kazani April 01, 2019 1,21,201 0.43 1,21,201 0.43

May 20, 2019 Sale of shares 1,476 0.00 1,19,725 0.43

May 27, 2019 Sale of shares 450 0.00 1,19,275 0.43

March 16, 2020 Purchase of 
share (ESOP)

46,246 0.15 1,65,521

March 24, 2020 Purchase of 
share 

2,129 0.00 1,67,650

March 31, 2020 1,67,650

4 Mr. Jyotin Mehta^ April 01, 2019 NIL NIL NIL NIL

March 31, 2020 NIL NIL

5 Mr. Ketan Mehta April 01, 2019 27,19,361 9.59 27,19,361 9.47

March 31, 2020 27,19,361 9.47

6 Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi April 01, 2019 1,000 0.00 1,000 0.00

March 31, 2020 1,000 0.00

7 Mr. Radhakrishnan 
Sundar

April 01, 2019

March 31, 2020

Mr. Vasant Gujarathi # April 01, 2019 NIL NIL NIL NIL

March 31, 2020 NIL NIL

9 Mr. Kunal Karan (Chief April 01, 2019 1,400 0.00 1,400 0.00

March 31, 2020 1,400 0.00

10 Mrs. Varika Rastogi 
(Company Secretary)

April 01, 2019 5 0.00 5 0.00

March 31, 2020 5 0.00

Total 73,39,487 25.88 73,85,936 25.72

* appointed w.e.f. May 31, 2019.

^ resigned w.e.f. March 02, 2020.

# appointed w.e.f. March 03, 2020.
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V.   INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 

excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

(i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL

(ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

(iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL

+ Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL

- Reduction NIL NIL NIL NIL

Net Change NIL NIL NIL NIL

(i)  Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL

(ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

(iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/ or Manager

(Amount in `)

Sr.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/ WTD/ Manager Total 
AmountFarid Kazani 

(Managing Director 
& Group CFO)

Radhakrishnan 
Sundar 

(Executive Director)

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of 
Income Tax Act, 1961

1,60,63,014 24,00,000

(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 
1961

NIL

Act, 1961
NIL NIL

NIL

2. Stock Option NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL

4. Commission

- - -

- others - - -

5.

Contribution to Superannuation Fund 7,92,000 NIL 7,92,000

Contribution to Provident Fund 6,33,600 9,21,600

Contribution to National Pension Scheme NIL

Performance Bonus/ Incentive for FY 2019-20 55,02,000 NIL 55,02,000

Total 3,73,25,981 26,88,000 4,00,13,981

6. 1,00,00,000 NIL 1,00,00,000

Grand Total 4,73,25,981 26,88,000 5,00,13,981

Ceiling as per the Act As per Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

ANNEXURE -IV (CONTD.)

MAJESCO | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

62



B. Remuneration to other Directors

I. Independent Directors

(Amount in `)

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors

Mr. Venkatesh 
N. Chakravarty

Mrs. Madhu 
Dubhashi

Mr. Jyotin 
Mehta^

Mr. Vasant 
Gujarathi #

Total 
Amount

Fee for attending Board meetings 4,35,000 4,35,000 3,60,000 75,000 13,05,000

Audit Committee 2,30,000 50,000 8,40,000

Nomination & Remuneration Committee 2,00,000 2,00,000 NA NA 4,00,000

Investors’ Grievances and Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee

1,50,000 NA NA NA
1,50,000

Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total 10,65,000 9,15,000 5,90,000 1,25,000 26,95,000

Ceiling as per the Act As per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

^ resigned w.e.f. March 02, 2020.

# appointed w.e.f. March 03, 2020.

a. Other Non-Executive Directors

(Amount in `)

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors

Mr. Ketan  Mehta Mr. Ashank Desai* Total Amount

Fee for Board meetings NIL NIL NIL

Fee for attending meetings of Audit Committee,  Nomination 

& Remuneration Committee, Investors’ Grievances and 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

NIL NIL

NIL

Commission NIL NIL NIL

Others NIL NIL NIL

*appointed w.e.f. May 31, 2019.
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD

(Amount in `)

Sl.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total 
AmountMr. Kunal Karan

Chief Financial 

Mrs. Varika Rastogi

Company Secretary

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of Income 

Tax Act, 1961

43,02,672
66,65,495

(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 

1961

32,400 NIL
32,400

Act, 1961

NIL NIL
NIL

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4. Commission

- - -
- others - - -

5.
Contribution to Superannuation Fund NIL
Contribution to Provident Fund
Contribution to National Pension Scheme NIL
Performance Bonus/ Incentive 15,32,000 4,52,000
Total 64,47,449 29,02,201 93,49,650

VII.  PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the 
Companies 

Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT 
/ COURT]

Appeal 
made, if any

A. COMPANY
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board 

Majesco Limited

Venkatesh N. Chakravarty

Non-Executive Independent Chairman
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ANNEXURE – V

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities/ Initiatives for the Financial Year 2019-20

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder]

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a 

reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.

 The CSR Policy has been laid out for the Company to comply with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. We, at Majesco, are committed to spending up to 

constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on June 1, 2015, to meet the requirements of the 

ir.majesco.com/policies/.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Name of the Director Designation Composition

Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty Non-Executive Independent Chairman Chairman

Mr. Farid Kazani Managing Director & Group CFO Member

Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar Executive Director Member

 ` 755.33 lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above):  ` 15.25 lakhs

` 15.25 lakhs

(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Locations Amount 
Outlay 

(Budget) 
Projects or 
Programs 

wise

Amount 
spent 
on the 

Projects or 
Programs

Cumu-
lative 

Expendi-
ture up to 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent: Direct 

or through 
implement-
ing agency*

District (State)

1.
thalassaemia patients

a. Estimate the number of blood 
transfusions per month.

b. Place orders with the supplier of 

the day care centre.

blood transfusion.

Santacruz 
-  Mumbai, 
Maharashtra

7.32 7.32 7.32 Think 
Foundation
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(` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Locations Amount 
Outlay 

(Budget) 
Projects or 
Programs 

wise

Amount 
spent 
on the 

Projects or 
Programs

Cumu-
lative 

Expendi-
ture up to 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent: Direct 

or through 
implement-
ing agency*

District (State)

2. Aajivika: Creating sustainable livelihood 
opportunities for underprivileged women 
artisans

a. To mobilize work opportunities 
for skilled underprivileged women 
through exhibitions, job work and 
orders.

b. To build capacities of underprivileged 
women to be self-employed.

Livelihood Dharavi, Khar, 
Mahim, Vasai 
- Mumbai, 
Maharashtra

5.00 5.00 5.00 Srujna 
Charitable 
Trust

3. Construction of residential education 
institution for tribal children

a. Construction of residential school for 
tribal children.

The next phase of the project aims to 

b. Provision of formal education to tribal 
children.

c. Ensure improvement of overall health 
of the children and eradication of 
malnourishment.

d. Ensure holistic development of 
children from tribal backgrounds 
in areas of academics, sports, arts, 
culture and citizenship virtues.

Education Sandalpur – 
Khategaon, 
Dewas, Madhya 
Pradesh

2.15 2.15 2.15 Parivaar 
Education 
Society

4. Mastek Foundation Project 
Monitoring 
and 
Evaluation

Andheri - 
Mumbai, 
Maharashtra

Total Funds 15.25 15.25 15.25

 *Amounts are given through Mastek Foundation, who got the project implemented through NGOs.

Not Applicable

objectives and Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Majesco Limited

Venkatesh N. Chakravarty

Non-Executive Chairman & Independent Director
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Our mission is to inspire our employees to contribute back to 

the community by sensitizing them to the issues and needs 

of the community and engaging them with the community 

through volunteering and giving back to society. Apart 

scale and build their capabilities through our core skill of 

Information Technology. 

Mastek Foundation, our CSR wing, inscribed this mission on 

GIVE, ENGAGE and BUILD.  

GIVE

Giving back to society has been an integral part of Mastek 

Foundation’s mission since 2002. Its CSR initiatives are 

aligned with the United Nations Sustainable Development 

Goals. 

received support towards their social development 

projects focused on diverse social causes such as education, 

healthcare and livelihood, through our CSR grants.

Looking beyond CSR Spends

Beyond the CSR spends, our employees are encouraged to 

Organisations. Additionally, Mastek Foundation organises 

annual fundraiser events, such as crowd-funding platforms 

to support social causes in collaboration with credible Non-

a) Our employees (including employees of step-down 

subsidiary Majesco Software and Solutions India 

Private Limited) donated ` 

social projects focused on holistic child development 

and disaster relief. 

b) Mastek Foundation’s annual musical fundraiser event 

called “Inspired”, brings all stakeholders and donors 

together to support a social project by a credible Non-

funding platform.

As education is one of the most substantial aspects in the 

overall economic and social development of the society, 

Mastek Foundation envisioned to contribute by making 

it accessible to underprivileged and destitute children. In 

light of the need, they collaborated with Parivaar Education 

Society through “Inspired 2019” towards construction of a 

residential school institution in Khategaon, Dewas, Madhya 

children by providing access to quality education and holistic 

development.

Lending a Helping Hand

When natural disasters strike, Mastek Foundation has been 

for operations on ground zero.  To meet the need of the 

hour, Mastek Foundation stepped forward with Majesco 

Mastek Foundation in association with Goonj, a Non-

victims. 

pledged to support integrated education, health and 

nutrition expenses of underprivileged children in 

Bihar and the donations were channelled through SOS 

Children’s Villages of India.

ENGAGE

Employee Involvement beyond funds

Giving one’s time, skills and expertise is the true spirit of our 

CSR Program. The success of our CSR initiatives depends 

largely upon the active “volunteering” of Majesco employees 

who believe they can and should make a difference to the 

lives of fellow human beings, especially those who are not 

as privileged as many of us. The involvement of Company’s 

employees in community projects is immensely important 

and helps to bring employees, the Company and the 

community closer together. Brief summary on involvement 

2019, Majesco employees extended their support by 

donating boxes of clothes. These donations served as 

during, ground zero operations by Goonj.
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Majesco employees with donated boxes of clothes

Project Deep Blue Season 5 Winners

K.J. Somaiya Institute of Engineering & Information Technology. 
Mumbai, Maharashtra Problem Statement - Measuring Visual 
Acuity

b) Rallying around a cause, such as blood donation, 

increases employee engagement and gives them 

the opportunity to make a positive difference in 

the community. Majesco employees participated 

in the blood donation camp organized on World 

Thalassemia Day. Blood donation camp was organized 

in collaboration with Think Foundation for Thalassemia 

patients in May, 2019.

c) The Mastek Foundation’s Run initiative has developed 

through the unwavering support of Majesco employees, 

Mastek employees, Marathoners and Running 

Enthusiasts, NGOs and Volunteers, to bring peace and 

social change through running since 2013. 

 Mastek Foundation organised its eighth annual Mastek 

Foundation Run in November 2019, in which 1,331 

runners belonging to diverse groups participated. 

Vision for this year was to inspire the society towards 

The funds raised through this platform sponsored the 

education of underprivileged children in Bhuj, Gujarat 

and provided support towards creating sustainable 

livelihood opportunities for the underprivileged women 

artisans of Mumbai, Thane and Palghar in Maharashtra.

BUILD

of the last four seasons, Project Deep Blue witnessed the 

registered, from 14 engineering colleges across Mumbai. 

They developed solutions surrounding long term capacity 

planning for water management, measure visual acuity with 

a cost-effective solution, predict queue wait time and urban 

sanitation and public health issues with an emphasis on 

deploying technology for waste segregation. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES (CONTD.)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE 

Majesco Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Majesco” 

or “the Company”) strongly believes that instilling good 

corporate governance practices in each & every function 

of the organization leads to achieve sustainable growth 

and enhances long term value for all the stakeholders. The 

Company always endeavors to carry its business operations 

in a fair, transparent and ethical manner and also holds itself 

accountable and responsible to the society it belongs. The 

Company considers it imperative to abide by the laws and 

regulations of the land in letter and spirit and is committed to 

the highest standards of corporate ethics.

Majesco’s Governance structure broadly comprises of the 

Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board at the 

apex level and the Management structure at the operational 

level. This layered structure brings about a harmonious 

blend in governance as the Board sets the overall corporate 

objectives and provides direction to the Management to 

achieve these corporate objectives within a given framework, 

thereby bringing about an enabling environment for value 

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

a. Size and Composition of the Board

 The Board comprises of majority of Non-Executive 

Information Technology, Insurance, Finance, Marketing 

and Strategic Management. As on March 31, 2020, 

the Board consisted of seven Directors comprising 

two Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Non-

Independent Directors and three Non-Executive 

Independent Directors, including one Woman 

Independent Director. Composition of the Board 

is in compliance with Regulation 17(1) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015

) and the Companies Act, 2013 

 

 The details of each member of the Board along with 

number of directorship(s)/ committee membership(s) 

held by Directors in companies other than the Company 

along with all other requisite information are given 

herein below.

Name of the 
Director & DIN

Designa-
tion

Original 
Date of 

Appoint-
ment

Direc-
torship 
in other 
Indian 

Compa-
nies

Position held 
in Committees 
of the Board of 

other Indian Public 
Companies

Share- 
holding as 
on March 
31, 2020

As Chair 
person

As 
Member

Mr. Venkatesh 
N. Chakravarty$  

Non-Exec-
utive Inde-
pendent 
Chairman

15.09.2014 NIL NIL NIL 20,000

Mr. Ashank 
Desai*  

00017767)

Non-Ex-
ecutive 
Director 
(Promot-
er)

31.05.2019 4 1 2 30,99,552

Mr. Farid 
Kazani  

06914620)

Managing 
Director 
& Group 
CFO

15.09.2014 2 NIL NIL 1,67,650

Mr. Jyotin 
Mehta#  

Non-Exec-
utive Inde-
pendent 
Director 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Mr. Ketan 
Mehta  

Non-Ex-
ecutive 
Director 
(Promot-
er)

29.04.2015 NIL NIL NIL 27,19,361

Mrs. Madhu 
Dubhashi$   

Non-Exec-
utive Inde-
pendent 
Director

29.04.2015 9 1 3 1,000

Mr. Radhakrish-
nan Sundar  

00533952)

Executive 
Director 
(Promot-
er)

01.06.2015 NIL NIL NIL

Mr. Vasant 
Gujarathi**   

Non-Exec-
utive Inde-
pendent 
Director

03.03.2020 1 1 NIL NIL

$Re-appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director 

with effect from April 29, 2020 for their second term of 5 

consecutive years, subject to approval of the members at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting.

*Appointed as Non-Executive Promoter Director w.e.f.  

May 31, 2019.
#Resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 

March 2, 2020.

**Appointed as Non-Executive Additional Independent 

Director w.e.f. March 3, 2020.

Notes:

1) There are no inter-se relationships between our Board 

members.

2) Directorships in other companies include all 

companies, whether listed or unlisted and exclude 

foreign companies, other bodies corporate, guarantee 

3) Number of directorship of the Directors are within 

the permissible limits as prescribed under Section 

165 of the Act and Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing 

Regulations.  

69

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Contd.)

4) Necessary disclosures regarding change in Committee 

positions, if any, have been made by all the Directors, 

during the year under review. None of the Director is 

a member of more than ten Committees or Chairman/ 

all Indian Public limited companies. For this purpose, 

only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee has been considered as required under 

Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

List of Directorship in other Listed Entities

Name of the 
Director

Name of other Listed Entity Category of 
Directorship

Mr. Venkatesh N. 
Chakravarty 

None Not Applicable

Mr. Ashank Desai Mastek Limited  Non-Executive 
Director

NRB Bearings Limited  Independent 
Director

Mr. Farid Kazani None Not Applicable

Mr. Jyotin Mehta Not Applicable

Mr. Ketan Mehta None Not Applicable

Mrs. Madhu 
Dubhashi  

Pudumjee Paper Products Limited Independent 
Director

Tube Investments of India Limited Independent 
Director

Sanghvi Movers Limited Independent 
Director

Mr. 
Radhakrishnan 
Sundar 

None Not Applicable 

Mr. Vasant 
Gujarathi

None Not Applicable 

b. Skills, Expertise and Competence of the Board of 

Directors

 Considering size and nature of business of the Company 

and its material subsidiary, the Directors should possess 

one or more skills, expertise and competencies as 

mentioned below.

Skills/ 
Expertise/
Competen-
cies

Description Name of the Director

Technology
knowledge in technology 
industry to identify oppor-
tunities & threats for the 
Company’s core business and 
ability to review the competi-
tive business strategies.

Sundar

Global 
Business

Ability to guide in driving busi-
ness success in varied geogra-
phies, with an understanding 
of diverse business environ-
ments, broad perspective on 
global market opportunities.

Chakravarty

Sundar

Skills/ 
Expertise/
Competen-
cies

Description Name of the Director

Mergers 
and Acqui-
sitions

Ability to evaluate potential 
target in line with the Compa-
ny’s strategy, appropriate val-
uation of transaction and op-
erational integration structure 
with the Company’s culture.

Financial 
Acumen

Ability to evaluate and analyze 
-
-

reporting processes.

Risk Man-
agement

Ability to identify key risks 
impacting the Company’s busi-
ness and contribute towards 
development of control mech-
anism for risk mitigation.

Chakravarty

Board Gov-
ernance

Ability to contribute to the 
Board’s role towards setting 
& upholding the highest stan-
dards of governance & ethics, 
integrity and protection of 
shareholders’ interests.

c. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

 In order to familiarize the Independent Directors 

with the business of the Company, an appropriate 

induction programme for new Directors and ongoing 

familiarization programme for the Independent 

Directors is conducted by the Company. The details of 

the said familiarization programme are available on the 

Company’s website at web link 

investor-communications/. Further, regular updates 

are provided to the Board by the Company’s Senior 

Management in areas of operations, industry trends, 

regulatory compliances, competition, strategy and 

future outlook.

 At the time of appointment/ re-appointment, a formal 

letter of appointment/ re-appointment is issued to 

every Director, including an Independent Director. The 

appointment letter, inter alia, explains role, functions, 

duties and responsibilities as a Director of the Company 

under various provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. Format of the letter of appointment is 

available on our website, at .

 The aforesaid programs help the Directors to 

understand the Company, its business and the 

regulatory framework in which the Company operates 

Director of the Company.
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d. Meeting of Independent Directors

 The Independent Directors of the Company met once in 

year, without the attendance of the Executive and Non-

Executive Directors and members of the Management 

of the Company. In the said meeting, the Independent 

Directors reviewed the matters as stated in the SEBI 

Listing Regulations and as per the Act. Action items, if 

any, are communicated and tracked to closure, to the 

satisfaction of Independent Directors.

e. Declaration from Independent Directors

 The Independent Directors have furnished declarations 

that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 

down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 

16(1) (b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion 

Regulations and are independent of the management.

an Independent Director of the Company for a period 

the expiry of his tenure, with effect from March 2, 2020, 

was no other material reason for his resignation.

f. Attendance of the Directors at Board Meetings and 

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 

 During the year ended March 31, 2020, six Board 

meetings were held on May 15, 2019, August 13, 2019, 

November 14, 2019, December 12, 2019, February 10, 

2020 and March 16, 2020. 

 Attendance of the Directors at Board meetings held 

during the Financial year (FY) 2019-20 and AGM held 

on August 6, 2019, is given below.

Name of the Director Number of Board 
Meetings

AGM

Held Attended

Mr. Venkatesh N. 
Chakravarty

6 6 Y

Mr. Ashank Desai* 5 4 Y

Mr. Farid Kazani 6 6 Y

Mr. Jyotin Mehta# 5 5 Y

Mr. Ketan Mehta 6 5 N

Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi 6 6 N

Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar 6 5 Y

Mr. Vasant Gujarathi** 1 1 N.A.

 *Appointed as Non-Executive Promoter Director w.e.f. 

May 31, 2019.

 #Resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director 

w.e.f. March 2, 2020.

 **Appointed as Non-Executive Additional Independent 

Director w.e.f. March 3, 2020.

g. Board Procedures

 The calendar of Board meetings is decided in 

consultation with Board members and the schedule 

of such meeting is communicated to all the Directors 

well in advance. The Board meets at least once in each 

quarter, with not more than four months gap between 

two meetings. Additional meetings are held based on 

necessity. The Board meets inter alia to review the 

All the items on the Agenda are accompanied by detailed 

notes giving information on the related agenda item and 

made by the concerned Management representatives 

at the meetings. The Agenda papers are circulated well 

in advance before each meeting to all the Directors. 

The Board members in consultation with the Chairman 

may bring up other matters for discussion at the Board 

meetings.

 All the requisite information as mentioned in Regulation 

17(7) read with Part A of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing 

Regulations is regularly placed before the Board for its 

consideration.

 To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities 

properly, the directors are effectively briefed at every 

Board meeting. Senior Management members are also 

invited to attend the meetings to provide additional 

inputs on the items being discussed by the Board. All 

major matters involving policy formulation, strategy 

and business plans etc. are considered by the Board.

 The minutes of the Board meetings are circulated to 

all Directors. The minutes of meetings of the Audit 

Committee and other Committees of the Board are 

noted on regular basis by the Board at its meetings.

B. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 The Board has constituted following committees and 

laid out terms of reference for each committee.

 (i) Audit Committee
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 (ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 (iii) Investors’ Grievances and Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee

 (iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

(i) Audit Committee 

 Terms of Reference 

 (b) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration 

and terms of appointment of auditors;

 (c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 

other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors;

 (d) Review, with the management, of the annual 

before submission to the Board for approval, with 

Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s Report in terms of 

Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013;

practices and reasons for the same;

based on the exercise of judgment by the 

management;

report

 (e) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 

board for approval;

 (f) Review with the management, the statement of 

uses/ application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc., 

as the case may be), the statement of funds utilized 

for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/ prospectus/ notice and the report 

submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring 

the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights 

issue, and making appropriate recommendations 

to the board to take up steps in this matter;

 (g) Review and monitoring of the auditor’s 

independence & performance and effectiveness of 

audit process;

related party transactions of the Company;

 (i) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 (j) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the 

Company, wherever it is necessary;

 (k) Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk 

Management Systems/ Policies;

 (l) Review, with the management, of performance of 

Statutory and Internal Auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;

 (m) Review the adequacy of internal audit function, 

reporting structure coverage and frequency of 

structure coverage and frequency of internal 

audit;

by the internal auditors into matters where there 

is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of 

internal control systems of a material nature and 

report the matter to the Board;

 (p) Discussion with statutory auditors before the 

audit commences, about the nature and scope of 

audit and have post-audit discussion to ascertain 

any area of concern;

 (q) Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults 

in payment to depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in the case of non-payment of 

declared dividends) and creditors, as may be 

applicable;
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 (r) Review the functioning of the Whistle-Blower 

Mechanism;

experience, background, etc. of the candidate;

 (t) Review the utilization of loans and/ or advances 

from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding ` 100 Crores or 10% of the 

asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing loans / advances / investments; 

and

 (u) To carry out any other functions as may be assigned 

by the Board of Directors of the Company.

  The minutes of the Audit Committee are also 

circulated to the Board of Directors. The Chairman 

of the Audit Committee apprises the Board on 

the recommendations made by the committee. 

Committee reviews the areas to be covered by the 

internal audit and approves annual internal audit 

programme for the current year. The Committee 

reviews the performance of the internal auditor 

and statutory auditor and advises the Board on 

the re-appointment of internal and statutory 

auditors. During the year under review, the Board 

accepted all the recommendations made by the 

Audit Committee.

 Details of composition, meetings held and attendance 

during FY 2019-20.

 The Committee met six times on May 15, 2019, August 

13, 2019, November 14, 2019, December 12, 2019, 

February 10, 2020 and March 16, 2020.

Name of the 
Member

Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Jyotin Mehta# 
(Chairman)

Independent 
Director

5 5

Mr. Vasant 
Gujarathi* 
(Chairman)

Independent 
Director

1 1

Mrs. Madhu 
Dubhashi 

Independent 
Director

6 6

Mr. 
Radhakrishnan 
Sundar

Executive 
Director

6 5

Mr. Venkatesh N. 
Chakravarty

Independent 
Director

6 6

 #Resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director 

w.e.f. March 2, 2020.

 *Appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director 

w.e.f. March 3, 2020.

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 Terms of Reference 

positive attributes and independence of a director 

and recommend to the Board a policy relating to 

the remuneration of the directors, key managerial 

personnel and other employees;

 (b) To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance 

of Independent Directors and the Board of 

Directors;

 (c) To devise a policy on diversity of the Board of 

Directors;

Director or who may be appointed in senior 

management of the Company in accordance with 

the criteria laid down and recommend to the 

Board their appointment and removal;

 (e) To ascertain whether to extend or continue the 

term of appointment of the Independent Director, 

on basis of performance evaluation report of 

Independent Directors;

 (f) To decide, formulate and amend detailed terms 

and conditions of the Employees Stock Option 

Plan, governed by the guidelines issued by SEBI 

2014 and as amended from time to time;

employees of the Company under the scheme and 

the Company; 

 (h) To recommend compensation structure of the 

Managing/ Executive Director;

 (i) To recommend performance incentives to be paid 

to Managing/ Executive Director.

attending Board/ Committee meetings;

 (k) To ensure the following—

  i. the level and composition of remuneration 

and motivate directors of the quality required 

to run the Company successfully;
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  ii. relationship of remuneration to performance 

is clear and meets appropriate  performance 

benchmarks; and

  iii. remuneration to directors, key managerial 

personnel and senior management involves 

objectives appropriate to the working of the 

Company and its goals.

 (l) To recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in 

whatever form, payable to senior management. 

Senior Management shall comprise all members of 

management one level below the Board including 

 Details of composition, meetings held and attendance 

during FY 2019-20

times on May 15, 2019, August 13, 2019, November 14, 

2019, December 12, 2019 and March 16, 2020. 

Name of the 
Member

Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mrs. Madhu 
Dubhashi 
(Chairperson)

Independent 
Director

5 5

Mr. Ketan Mehta Non-Executive 
Director

5 4

Mr. Venkatesh N. 
Chakravarty

Independent 
Director

5 5

 During the year, performance evaluation exercise of 

the Board as a whole, Board Committees and Peer 

Evaluation of the Directors was carried out by following 

internal methodology, details of which are provided in 

the Board of Directors’ Report.

 Criteria of Performance Evaluation of Independent 

Directors

 i. Independent Directors are expected to bring 

in objectivity and independent view during the 

Board’s deliberations relating to the Company’s 

strategy, performance and risk management and 

corporate governance.

 ii. Independent Directors are also expected to 

expectations of their role, to the satisfaction of the 

Board.vv
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shall not involve themselves in situations which 

of the Company. It is accepted and acknowledged 

that they may have business interests, other than 

those of the Company. As a precondition to their 

appointment as Independent Directors, they 

are required to declare their directorships and 

interest to the Board, in writing in the prescribed 

format, at the time of their appointment.

 iv. The key elements in which every Independent 

Performance, Risk, People, Reporting and 

Compliance.

(iii) Investors’ Grievances and Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee

 Terms of Reference 

 (a) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of 

voting rights by shareholders;

 (b) Review of adherence to the service standards in 

respect of various services being rendered by the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent; and

 (c) Review of various measures and initiatives taken 

by the Company for improving shareholders’ 

services such as to reduce quantum of unclaimed 

dividends, to ensure timely receipt of dividend 

warrants/ annual report/ statutory notices by the 

shareholders of the Company.

 Details of composition, meetings held and attendance 

during FY 2019-20

 The Committee met six times on May 15, 2019, August 

February 10, 2020 and March 16, 2020.

Name of the 

Member

Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Venkatesh 

N. Chakravarty 

(Chairman) 

Independent 

Director

6 6

Mr. Farid Kazani Managing 

Director & 

Group CFO

6 6

Mr. 

Radhakrishnan 

Sundar

Executive 

Director

6 5
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 Mrs. Varika Rastogi, Company Secretary and 

Committee.

 Your Company has designated e-mail ID, investors.

grievances@majesco.com for the redressal of any 

shareholders’ related grievances exclusively for the 

purpose of registering service requests by members/ 

stakeholders. Your Company has also displayed the said  

e-mail ID under Investors section at its website 

ir.majesco.com/others/ and other relevant details 

prominently, for investors/ shareholders’ awareness.

 Details of request received and resolved during the FY 

2019-20

Nature of 
Request

Opening 

Balance 

as on 

April 1, 

2019

Re-

ceived

Re-

solved

Out-
standing 

as on 
March 

31, 2020

Non-receipt of 

Dividend

NIL 22 22 NIL

Non-receipt of 

Annual Report

NIL 20 20 NIL

Non-receipt of 

shares

NIL 11 11 NIL

 All requests were resolved to the satisfaction of 

shareholders.

(iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR 

Committee)

 The Board has constituted the CSR Committee as per 

the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 along with 

applicable rules.

 Terms of Reference 

 a) Formulation and recommendation to the Board, 

a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which 

shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by 

Companies Act, 2013;

 b) Recommendation of the amount of expenditure to 

be incurred on the activities;

 c) Monitoring of the Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy of the Company from time to time.

 Details of composition, meetings held and attendance 

during FY 2019-20

 The Committee met three times on August 13, 2019, 

February 10, 2020 and March 16, 2020.

Name of the 
Member

Category No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Venkatesh 
N. Chakravarty 
(Chairman)

Independent 
Director

3 3

Mr. Farid Kazani Managing 
Director & 

Group CFO

3 3

Mr. 
Radhakrishnan 
Sundar

Executive 
Director

3 3

C. REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS DURING THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

 i. During the year, there was no pecuniary 
relationship or transaction between the 
Company and any of its Non-Executive Director/ 
Independent Directors apart from sitting fees paid 
to Independent Directors for attending meetings 
of the Board and Committees.

  Details of sitting fees paid to Independent 
Directors are provided in Form MGT-9, attached 
as Annexure-IV to the Board of Directors’ Report.

 ii. Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive 
Directors

  Members of the Company at 3rd AGM held on 
August 11, 2016 has approved the payment of 
remuneration by way of commission to Non-
Executive Directors, sum not exceeding 1% per 

Executive Directors in aggregate for one FY. 

Executive Directors during the FY 2019-20.

  Mr. Venkatesh N. Chakravarty, Independent 
Director and Chairman, was granted 6,725 stock 
options on July 25, 2011 at grant price of `
per option. The said options were granted pursuant 
to the Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) 
between Mastek Limited, Majesco Limited and 
Majesco Software and Solutions India Private 

their respective orders dated April 30, 2015 and 
as per clause 16.2 of the Scheme, Majesco Limited 
has issued one stock option to eligible employee/ 
Directors for every stock option held by them in 
Mastek Limited as on record date i.e. June 15, 

2015.
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 iii. Remuneration paid to Executive Directors 

  Details of the remuneration paid to Executive 

Directors are provided in Form MGT-9, attached as 

Annexure IV to the Board of Directors’ Report. 

were granted to Mr. Farid Kazani, Managing 

Director & Group CFO. Options shall vest at the 

rate of 33.33% at the end of each year from the 

date of grant. First option shall vest only after a 

period of twelve months from the date of grant. 

Vested options can be exercised within a period of 

seven years from the date of vesting.

  Service Contract, Notice Period and Severance Pay

  The Company has executed contract with  

Mr. Farid Kazani, Managing Director & Group 

CFO, for a period of three years with effect from  

July 4, 2017 to July 3, 2020, and his notice period 

for resignation is three months.

  Further, the Company is proposed to enter into 

contract for re-appointment of Mr. Farid Kazani, 

Managing Director & Group CFO for a further 

period of three years with effect from July 4, 2020 

to July 3, 2023, subject to approval of members at 

ensuing AGM and his notice period for resignation 

under the said contract is also proposed as three 

months. 

  Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar was re-appointed as 

Executive Director of the Company for the period 

 

May 31, 2021 and his notice period for resignation 

is three months.

D. GOVERNANCE TO SHAREHOLDERS

AGM held during last three years

Financial 
Year

Details of date, day, time and 
venue of AGM 

Summary of Special 
Resolution(s) passed

 

Suites By Radisson”, Plot No. 
X-4/5-B, TTC Industrial Area, 
MIDC, Mahape, Shilphata 
Road, Navi Mumbai – 400 701

Alteration of Objects 
Clause of Memoran-
dum of Association of 
the Company.

Financial 
Year

Details of date, day, time and 
venue of AGM 

Summary of Special 
Resolution(s) passed

By Radisson, Plot No. X-4/5-B, 
TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, 
Mahape, Shilphata Road, Navi 
Mumbai – 400 701

Re-appointment of  
Mr. Radhakrishnan 
Sundar as an 
Executive Director 
of the  
Company.

2016-17

 
Exotica, Plot no. 16, Sector 
19D, Palm Beach Road, Vashi, 
Navi Mumbai – 400 705 

Re-appointment of  
Mr. Farid Kazani as 
Managing Director of 
the Company.

Extraordinary General Meetings (EGM) held during last 

three years

Financial 
Year

Details of date, day, 
time and venue of 
EGM 

Summary of Special 
Resolution(s) passed

2019-20 N. A. N. A.

N. A. N. A.

 

by Sheraton, Sector 
30 A, Vashi, Navi 
Mumbai – 400 701

i. Increase in the Authorized 
Share Capital and 
consequently alteration 
to the Capital Clause 
of Memorandum of 
Association of the 
Company.

ii. Alteration of Articles 
of Association of the 
Company.

iii. Further Issue of Securities.

Details of Postal Ballot

No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through 

the year under review, approval of shareholders of the 

Company was sought through Postal Ballot and details of the 

March 16, 2019

(IST) to April 30, 2019 at 

April 30, 2019

April 30, 2019
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Summary of Voting Pattern:

Description 
of the 
Resolution

Type of 
Resolution

No. of votes 
polled

Votes cast in favor Votes cast against

No. of votes % No. of 
votes

%

Sale and 
transfer 
of India 
Insurance 
Products 
& Services 
Business on 
slump sale 
basis.

Special 1.19

Mr. Mukesh Sarswat, Practicing Company Secretary, was 
appointed as the scrutinizer for carrying out the above postal 
ballot exercise in a fair and transparent manner.

Procedure for Postal Ballot:

applicable provisions of the Act read with the related rules, 
the Company provided electronic voting (e-voting) facility, 
in addition to physical ballot, to its members. For this 
purpose, the Company had engaged the services of National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). Postal ballot notices 
and forms  were dispatched, along with postage-prepaid 
business reply envelopes to the registered  m e m b e r s / 

The Company had also published a notice in the newspapers 
declaring the details of dispatch of notice, cut-off date, 
e-voting period and other mandatory requirements. Voting  
rights were reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares 
registered in the names of the members as on the cut-
off date. Members who wanted to exercise their votes by 
physical postal ballot were requested to return the forms, 
duly completed and signed, to the scrutinizer on or before 
the close of voting period and those using e-voting option 

of e-voting.

On completion of scrutiny, the Scrutinizer submitted his 
report to the Company Secretary of the Company and the 
results of the voting were announced by the Company 
Secretary of the Company. The results are displayed on 
the Company’s website, 
communications/, besides being communicated to the Stock 
Exchanges, Depository and Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent. The resolution is deemed to have been passed on the 
last date for receipt of duly completed Postal Ballot Forms 
and Remote E-voting i.e. April 30, 2019.

Communication with the Shareholders

The Board of Directors of the Company approves the 

format prescribed under Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing 

to the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed time. The 

in newspapers Financial Express (English) and Mumbai 
Lakshadeep (Marathi).

The Company’s website has a separate section where the 

are also displayed on the Company’s website at 
ir.majesco.com/financial-information/quarterly-earnings/. 
Annual Reports of the Company are also available on the 
website in a user-friendly and downloadable form. Other 
information relating to quarterly shareholding pattern, 
quarterly corporate governance report are available on the 
Company’s website at .

E. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

Seventh AGM

Seventh AGM of the Company for the FY 2019-20 is 
scheduled to be held on Thursday, September 24, 2020 at 

Visual Means (OAVM) mode.

Financial Year

The tentative dates of meeting of the Board of Directors for 

follows.

Book Closure Date

From Saturday, September 19, 2020 to Thursday,  
September 24, 2020 (both days inclusive)

Dividend

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on  
March 16, 2020, approved Interim dividend for FY 2019-20 
at the rate of 40% i.e. ` 2/- per equity share of face value of  
` 5/- each. The said dividend has duly been paid within 30 
days of date of declaration.

Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

Name and Address of the Exchange Stock Code ISIN

National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Com-
plex,  Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051 

MAJESCO

BSE Limited (BSE)

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal 
Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001

The Company has paid listing fees to the Stock Exchanges for 
the FY 2020-21.
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Market Price Data

Monthly high and low price of equity shares of the Company 

Month and year BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited

High (`) Low (`) Volume 
(Total 

traded 
quantity)

High (`) Low (`) Volume 
(Total 

traded 
quantity)

April 2019 530.00 46,211 530.00

May 2019 553.00 72,239 554.75 491.70 10,03,730

June 2019 559.00 49,731 4,60,254

July 2019 450.05 1,32,355 447.00

August 2019 494.95 37,412 495.00 399.30 7,44,539

September 2019 456.50 410.00 456.70 410.00

October 2019 462.00 401.00 19,712 462.00 405.00 4,41,047

November 2019 454.00 396.25 59,523 454.40

December 2019 421.95 364.35 422.25 364.00 6,14,496

January 2020 433.15 42,476 433.70 375.35

February 2020 451.00 360.00 40,279 451.95 359.20 6,70,146

March 2020 405.00 170.55 407.65 167.95 6,10,533

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) and Contact details

The name of the Company’s RTA is changed to KFin 
Technologies Private Limited from Karvy Fintech Private 
Limited effective December 5, 2019. The Company has 
communicated this information to the stock exchanges and 
also made it available on the Company’s website.

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,  Financial District, 

  

Share Transfer System

The SEBI, effective from April 1, 2019, has barred physical 

transfer (except cases of transmission or transposition) 

of shares of listed companies and mandated transfer 

investors are not barred from holding shares in physical form. 

Transfer of equity shares in electronic form are effected 

through the depositories with no involvement of the 

Company.

We request shareholders whose shares are in the physical 

mode to dematerialize their shares and update their bank 

accounts and email IDs with the respective depository 

participants to enable us to provide better service.

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2020

Range no. of 
shares

No. of 
Sharehold-

ers

% to 

Holders

No. of 

Shares

% to 

Equity

1- 500

501-1000 5.13

1001-5000 4.03 6.29

5001-10000 109 0.52 2.73

10001 and above 132 0.63

Total 21,046 100.00 2,87,01,947 100.00

Dematerialisation of Shares

As on March 31, 2020, 99.41% of our shares were held in 

dematerialized form and the rest in physical form. Shares 

Date Status of shares - Physical versus Demat Mode

Physical % Demat % Total

March 31, 
2020

0.59 99.41

March 31, 
2019

0.67 99.33

Summary of Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2020

Sr. 
No. 

Description As on March 31, 2020

No. of Shares % Equity

I Promoter Shareholding 

Indian Promoters 26.27

Non-Resident/ Foreign  
Promoters

Total (I) 1,09,78,172 38.25

II Institutional Shareholding

Mutual Funds 35,63,324 12.41

Alternate Investment Fund 2,52,922

Foreign Portfolio Investors & 
Foreign Institutional Investor         

10.09

Banks 

Total (II) 67,33,903 23.46

Majesco Share Price Performance Versus NSE’s S&P CNX 500
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Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible 

instruments  

There are no outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants except 

stock options granted to the employees of the Company 

and its subsidiaries. Outstanding stock options after vesting, 

when exercised, shall increase the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company to that extent.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk & hedging 

activity

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on account 

of nature of its transactions. The Company, in accordance 

with its risk management policies and procedures, enters 

into hedging transactions with the banks. Please refer notes 

to the Financial Statements in this regard. The Company 

does not have any exposure hedged through commodity 

derivatives.

The Company does not deal in commodities and hence the 

disclosure is not required to be given for commodity hedging 

activities.

Off-shore Development Centers

The Company’s step-down subsidiary has Off-Shore 

Software Development Centers at Mahape, Navi Mumbai 

available elsewhere in the Annual Report.

Address for correspondence by shareholders/ investors

Company Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Mrs. Varika Rastogi

Company Secretary

MNDC, MBP-P-136,

Mahape, Navi Mumbai – 400 710

investors.grievances@
majesco.com

www.majesco.com

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

 

review

Not applicable

Sr. 
No. 

Description As on March 31, 2020

No. of Shares % Equity

III Public Shareholding (exclud-
ing above categories)

1,09,89,872 38.29

Grand Total (I+II+III) 2,87,01,947 100.00

F. OTHER DISCLOSURES

 Disclosure of Related Party Transactions

 The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of 

related party transactions and also on dealing related 

party transactions. This policy is available on the website 

. During the year 2019-

have been entered into by the Company with the 

Promoters, Directors or Management or their relatives. 

related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to 

 All related party transactions were executed with prior 

approval of Audit Committee.

 Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, 

strictures imposed on the listed entity by the Stock 

Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority

 The Company has complied with all requirements 

other Regulations and guidelines of SEBI. No penalties 

or strictures imposed on the listed entity by the Stock 

Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any 

matter related to capital markets, during last three 

years.

 Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy 

 The Company has in place the necessary vigil 

mechanism as envisaged under Section 177 of the 

Act and Regulation 22 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

During the year under review, no personnel has been 

denied access to the Audit Committee.

 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements 

and adoption of non-mandatory requirement of SEBI 

Listing Regulations

 The Company has disclosed and complied with all 

mandatory requirements under the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. The details of these compliances have 

been given in the relevant sections of this report.

 Among non-mandatory requirements of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, the Company has complied with the 
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The position of Chairman and Managing Director/ 

An Independent Non-Executive Chairman heads the 

Board. Managing Director is separate position.

 Shareholders’ Rights

Results along with the press release and key highlights 

are made available on the website of the Company 

quarterly-earnings/. 

 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

 Reporting of Internal Auditor

reports directly to the Audit Committee, attends the 

Audit Committee meetings and interacts directly with 

the Audit Committee.

 Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries

 The Company has a policy on Material Subsidiary and 

same is placed on the website of the Company at 

ir.majesco.com/policies/.  

 Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions

 The Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions 

is available on the Company’s website at 

ir.majesco.com/policies/.

 Commodity price risk and commodity hedging 

activities

 The Company does not deal in commodities and hence 

the disclosure is not required to be given for commodity 

hedging activities.

 Details of utilization of funds raised through 

placement 

 During the year 2019-20, the Company has not raised 

32(7A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

 Mr. Abhishek Bhate & Co., Company Secretary in 

of the Directors on the Board of the Company has 

or continuing as director of companies by the SEBI/ 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory 

Annexure A.

 Recommendations of Committees of the Board

 There were no instances during the FY 2019-20, 

wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations 

made by any committee of the Board.

 Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its 

subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

entity of which the statutory auditor is a part

 Total fees of `

services, was paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, 

on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all 

statutory auditor is a part.

 Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013

 Majesco Group follows a strict zero tolerance towards 

sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a 

Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual 

harassment at workplace in line with the provisions 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 

the Rules thereunder, for prevention and redressal of 

complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.

year – Nil 

 ii. Number of complaints disposed of during the 

 iii. Number of complaints pending as on end of the 

 Compliances with Corporate Governance disclosure 

Regulations

 The Company complies with all mandatory requirements 

as per Regulations 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2) of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations. There were no instances of 

non-compliance on any matter related to the capital 

markets.
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Regulations, MD and CFO have issued Compliance 

not contain any untrue statement and these statements 

represent a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs.

Annual Report.

 Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ 

unclaimed suspense account

 Not Applicable

 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

undertaken on a quarterly basis and the audit covers 

the reconciliation of the total admitted capital with 

NSDL and CDSL and the total issued and listed capital.

total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement with the 

total number of shares in physical form and the total 

number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and 

CDSL.

 Accounting treatment in preparation of Financial 

Statements

 Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) as prescribed 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, have been 

the Company in all material aspect.

 Internal Controls

 The Company has a formal system of internal control 

testing which examines both the design effectiveness 

and operational effectiveness to ensure reliability of 

regulatory compliances. The Company’s business 

processes are on SAP platforms and has a strong 

discipline and accountability.

 From the FY 2020-21, the Company has opted to 

maintain the business processes on NetSuite platform, 

which will improve business operations across the sales, 

organizations. It will provide better business insights, 

streamlined business processes and a standardized 

technology platform, enabling Company to serve its 

 Information for shareholders on the internet

 The Company actively communicates its strategy 

markets. The Senior Executives of the Company 

along with M/s. Christensen Investor Relations India 

Private Limited - our Investor advisor regularly meet 

the analysts. The Press release, Analysts’ conference 

calls as well as the presentations at analysts meetings 

are organized by  M/s. Christensen Investor Relations 

India Private Limited - our Investor advisor. Decisions 

in such meetings are always limited to information 

that is already in the public domain. Please access the 

homepage at www.majesco.com and register yourself 

for regular updates.

 Management Discussion and Analysis

 As required by the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 

Management Discussion and Analysis is provided 

separately in the Annual Report.

 Code of Conduct

 The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Business 

Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the 

Board and all employees. The Company believes in 

“Zero Tolerance” to bribery and corruption in any form.

 The Code lays down the standard of conduct which 

is expected to be followed by the Directors and the 

employees in their business dealings and in particular 

on matters relating to integrity in the workplace, in 

business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The 

Code gives guidance through examples on the expected 

behaviour from an employee in a given situation and the 

reporting structure.

 All the Board Members and the Senior Management 

All Management staff were required to complete an 

e-learning module in this regard.

 Prevention of Insider Trading

 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for 

Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by 

Designated Persons and Immediate Relatives with a 

view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors 
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and designated employees of the Company. The Code 

requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s 

shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company 

shares by the Directors and the designated employees 

while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 

information in relation to the Company and during 

the period when the trading window is closed. The 

Company Secretary is responsible for implementation 

of the Code.

 In order to have proper Internal Control System as 

mandated by the SEBI, the Company has implemented 

an Insider Trading Monitoring tool. This tool facilitates 

obtaining pre-clearance approval, submitting initial 

disclosures, period-end disclosures and continuous 

disclosures on trading in shares of Majesco Limited. 

It helps the Company to monitor trading in shares of 

the Company by Promoters/ Directors/ Designated 

Employees/ other Insiders and maintain the data in 

electronic form.

& Co., Company Secretary in Practice (Membership 

the Annual Report for compliance with the SEBI Listing 

Regulations.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

MAJESCO LIMITED 

Mastek New Development Centre, MBP-P-136,

Mahape, Navi Mumbai, Mumbai,

Maharashtra – 400 710 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Majesco Limited 

10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(DIN) status on the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 
Company

1 Mr. Ashank Datta Desai 00017767 31/05/2019

2 Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi 29/04/2015

3 Mr. Ketan Mehta 29/04/2015

4 Mr. Radhakrishnan Sundar 00533952 01/06/2015

5 Mr. Venkatesh Narayanan Chakravarty 15/09/2014

6 Mr. Vasant Vitthaldas Gujarathi 03/03/2020

7 Mr. Farid Lalji Kazani 06914620 15/09/2014

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 

affairs of the Company.

For Abhishek Bhate & Co

CS Abhishek Bhate 

Proprietor

ACS – 27747, COP – 10230
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE 
COMPANY BY THE BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

To the Members of Majesco Limited

of the Company, which is available at www.majesco.com.

the Company.

Farid Kazani

Managing Director & Group CFO

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

31, 2020, as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management, my examination was 

limited to the procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 

In my opinion, and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Abhishek Bhate & Co

CS Abhishek Bhate 

Proprietor

ACS – 27747, COP – 10230
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

 a) these statements do not contain any material untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading;

 b) these statements together present, a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2)  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 

fraudulent, illegal or violates of the Company’s code of conduct.

Yours faithfully,

Farid Kazani  Kunal Karan

Managing Director & Group CFO
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Introduction 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), vide its circular dated December 26, 2019, has mandated the top 1,000 

as per clause (f) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. The Report outlines the organization’s performance from the environmental, social and governance perspective.

Majesco Limited (“the Company”), being part of the top 1,000 listed entities, has developed this Business Responsibility Report 

based on the suggested framework of SEBI and the National Voluntary Guidelines, released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company

2. Name of the Company Majesco Limited

3. Registered address MNDC, MBP-P-136, Mahape, Navi Mumbai – 400710, 

Maharashtra

4. Website

5. E-mail id investors.grievances@majesco.com

6. Financial Year reported April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 

activity code-wise)

List three key products/services that the Company 

manufactures/ provides (as in balance sheet)

Please note that Majesco (USA) is engaged in the business of 

providing software, consulting and information technology services 

for Life & Annuity (L&A) and Property & Casualty (P&C) insurers.

9. Total number of locations where business activity is 

undertaken by the Company

a. Number of International Locations  (Provide 

details of major 5) 

The Company’s material subsidiary (along with its subsidiaries) has 

presence in North America, UK, Ireland, Malaysia and Singapore.

b. Number of National Locations Navi Mumbai – Airoli and Mahape, Pune

10. Markets served by the Company- Local/ State/ 

National/ International 

The Company carries out business activity only in India.

The Company’s material subsidiary carries out business activity in 

North America, UK, Ireland, Malaysia, Singapore and India.

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars FY 2019-20 Standalone  
(` in Lakhs)

FY 2019-20 Consolidated 
(` in Lakhs)

1. Paid-up Capital  1,435 1,435

2. Total Turnover 1,024

3. 2,397 9022

4. Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as Majesco Limited – ` 15.25 Lakhs
Majesco Software and Solutions India Private Limited 
(Indian step-down subsidiary) – `
Total – ` 93.10 Lakhs

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been 
incurred Majesco Limited activities - Table I 

Majesco Software and Solutions India Private Limited 
(Step-down subsidiary) – Table II
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Majesco Limited CSR activities – Table I

Sr. 
No.

Amount spent on 
the Projects or 

Programs  
(` in Lakhs)

Amount spent: 
Direct  or through 

implementing 
agency*

1.

a. Estimate the number of blood transfusions per month.

7.32 Think Foundation

2. Aajivika: Creating sustainable livelihood opportunities for underprivileged 

women artisans

a. To mobilize work opportunities for skilled underprivileged women through 

exhibitions, job work and orders.

b. To build capacities of underprivileged women to be self-employed.

5.00 Srujna Charitable 
Trust

3. Construction of residential education institution for tribal children

a. Construction of residential school for tribal children.

b. Provision of formal education to tribal children.

c. Ensure improvement of overall health of the children.

d. Eradicate malnourishment through provision of daily four course meals and 

an early starter snack for children, throughout the year.

e. Ensure holistic development of children from tribal backgrounds in areas of 

academics, sports, arts, culture and citizenship virtues.

2.15 Parivaar Education 
Society

4. Mastek Foundation

Total Funds spent towards CSR activities 15.25

Majesco Software and Solutions India Private Limited (Indian step-down subsidiary) – Table II

Sr. 
No.

CSR Project/Activities Amount spent on 
the Project  
(` in Lakhs)

Name of the 
Implementing 

NGO

1. Project 1: Construction of residential education institution for tribal children

a. Construction of residential school for tribal children.

b. Provision of formal education to tribal children.

c. Ensure improvement of overall health of the children.

d. Eradicate malnourishment through provision of daily four course meals and 

an early starter snack for children, throughout the year.

e. Ensure holistic development of children from tribal backgrounds in areas of 

academics, sports, arts, culture and citizenship virtues.
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project/Activities Amount spent on 
the Project  
(` in Lakhs)

Name of the 
Implementing 

NGO

Project 2: Sponsorship for a Seva Kutir towards quality education and 

healthcare for tribal children

a. Elimination and reduction of chronic hunger and severe malnourishment 

among children. 

b. Lower incidence of sickness.

c. Overall improvement of children’s educational status, increased motivation 

to study and complete school education.

d. Learning of good habits and behavioral patterns such as those relating to 

cleanliness of the body and surroundings and civic virtues.

writing comprehension, etc. For instance, depending on their age/grade, 

ability to read words, sentences paragraphs etc. 

etc, depending on their age/grade.

g. Improvements in learning outcomes of other subjects such as social science, 

science etc.

21.70 Parivaar Education 

Society

2. Purchase of medicines for treatment of tribal patients at MAHAN Trust’s 

Mahatma Gandhi Tribal Hospital

a. Treatment of serious patients.

b. Treatment of patients on OPD basis.

c. Treatment of youths and adults (16 to 60 years).

15.00

3. Happy Kids Program

a. Academic growth. 

b. Extra-curricular activities.

c. Social empowerment.

d. Career mapping and guidance.

10.00 Ra Foundation

4. Sponsorship for cardiac operations of underprivileged children

a. Alleviate the burden of child health and relieve families from related debt by 

providing high quality cardiac surgeries.

06.00 Sri Sathya Sai 

Sanjeevani Center 

Care

5. Sponsorship for nutrition program of specially abled children and adults

a. Develop the challenged children and adults to the extent possible as per their 

individual capabilities.

b. Provision of timely food and holistic nutrition.

06.00 Sangopita
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Sr. 
No.

CSR Project/Activities Amount spent on 
the Project  
(` in Lakhs)

Name of the 
Implementing 

NGO

6. Rahat: Relief & rehabilitation for Covid-19 affected migrant labourers

a. Reach comprehensive family kits of essentials – largely dry ration, personal 

care material to the affected communities in areas well known for migration 

and related geographies.

05.00 Goonj

7. Treatment and relief for Covid-19 affected patients 10.00

Mastek Foundation 04.15

Total funds spent towards CSR activities 77.85

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Companies?

Directors’ Report. 

2. Does the Subsidiary Companies participate in the Business Responsibility Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then 

indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s) 

 The Company`s Indian step-down subsidiary, Majesco Software and Solutions India Private Limited, participates in the 

Business Responsibility initiatives of the Company.

3. Does any other entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in the BR 

initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/entities [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 

60%] 

 No.

SECTION D: BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for Business Responsibility

 Business Responsibility functions are inter alia monitored by Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company, 

formed as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 (a) Details of the Director responsible for implementation of the Business Responsibility Policy 

 (b) Details of the Business Responsibility head

No. Particulars Details 

1 DIN Not Applicable

2 Name Mrs. Varika Rastogi

3 Designation Company Secretary 

4 Telephone number 

5 E-mail ID Varika.Rastogi@majesco.com
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2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) Business Responsibility Report Policy/Policies  

 The National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business released by 

Principle 1 P1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with ethics, transparency and accountability.

Principle 2 P2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 

their life cycle.

Principle 3 P3 Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees.

Principle 4 P4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those 

who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

Principle 5 P5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

Principle 6 P6 Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

Principle 7 P7

manner.

P8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

Principle 9 P9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible 

manner.

(a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1 Do you have a policy/policies for?  Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

2 

stakeholders? 

 Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

3 Does the policy conform to any national/international standards?  N NA N Y* NA NA NA Y* N

4

signed by MD/owner/CEO/appropriate Board of Directors?** 

 Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

5 Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online 

7

internal and external stakeholders? 

 Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

Does the Company have in-house structure to implement the 

policy/policies?

 Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

9 Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanism 

related to the policy/policies to address stakeholders’ grievances 

related to the policy/policies? 

 Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

10

the working of this policy by an internal or external agency? 

 Y NA Y Y NA NA NA Y Y

 *Corporate Social Responsibility Policy has been formed in accordance with requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

 **As per Company practice, all the policies are approved by the concerned functional head depending upon the nature of 

the policy. Each policy has a policy owner and the respective policy owners are responsible for implementation of the policy. 

Implementation of policies is reviewed as a part of internal governance.
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3. Governance related to Business Responsibility 

 (a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of 

Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO assess 

the Business Responsibility performance of the 

Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, annually, 

more than 1 year. 

Responsibility Report to the Company, going 

forward, the BR performance will be assessed 

annually.

 (b) Does the Company publish a Business 

Responsibility or a Sustainability Report? What 

is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How 

frequently it is published? 

Business Responsibility Report. It would be 

the Annual Report of the Company.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE 

Principle 1: Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with 

ethics, transparency and accountability.

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and 

corruption cover only the Company? Yes/No. Does 

it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/

Contractors/NGOs/Others? 

 The policy covers the Company only.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received 

satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, 

provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. 

 Nil.

Principle 2: Product Lifecycle Sustainability

Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe 

and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle.

1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design 

has incorporated social or environmental concerns, 

risks and/or opportunities.

 Not Applicable.

2. For each such product, provide the following details in 

respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material, 

etc.) per unit of product (optional):

 (a) Reduction during sourcing/production/
distribution achieved since the previous year 
throughout the value chain?

  Not Applicable.

 (b) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, 
water) has been achieved since the previous 
year?

  Not Applicable.

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

 Not Applicable.

4. Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local and small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work?

 Not Applicable.

5. Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes, what is the percentage of 
recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 
5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 
50 words or so.

 Not Applicable.

Principle 3: Employee Wellbeing 

Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees.

1. Please indicate the total number of employees.

 As on March 31, 2020, the strength of permanent 

employees on roll stood at 2404 Employees (on 

consolidated basis).

2. Please indicate the total number of employees hired 
on temporary/contractual/casual basis.

  As on March 31, 2020, the strength of employees hired 

on sub-contractual stood at 94 and direct consultant 

stood at 14 (on consolidated basis).

3. Please indicate the number of permanent women 
employees.

 As on March 31, 2020, the strength of permanent 

4. Please indicate the number of permanent employees 
with disabilities.

 Nil.

5. Do you have an employee association that is recognized 
by management?

 No.

6. What percentage of your permanent employees is 
members of this recognized employee association?

 Not Applicable.
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7. Please indicate the number of complaints relating 
to child labor, forced labor, involuntary labor, sexual 

No. Category No. of 
complaints 

year 

No. of 
complaints 
pending as 

on end of the 

1 Child labour/forced 
labour/involuntary 
labour 

 Not 
Applicable

 Not 
Applicable

2 Sexual harassment  Nil  Nil

3 Discriminatory 
employment 

 Nil  Nil

8. What percentage of your employees were given safety 
& skill upgradation training in the last year?

Safety 
training

Skill up-
gradation 

training

Permanent Employees 100%

Permanent Women 
Employees

100% 97.90%

Casual/Temporary/
Contractual Employees

100%

Principle 4: Stakeholder Engagement

Businesses should respect the interests of, and be 
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who 
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

1. Has the Company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders? Yes/No

 Yes, the Company has mapped its stakeholders as a part 

of its stakeholder engagement process.

 1)  Customers/Clients;

 2)  Shareholders/Investors;

 3)  Employees;

 4)  Vendors;

 5)  Regulatory Bodies;

 6)  Industry Forum; and

 7)  Community.

the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized 
stakeholders?

 Yes, the Company commits to operate in an 

economically, socially and environmentally responsible 

manner. The Company’s initiatives in the areas of 

Corporate Social Responsibility are targeted to bring 

meaningful difference in the lives of marginalized 

section of community.

3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

 As a part of CSR initiative, the Company and its Indian 

step-down subsidiary, has partnered with NGOs, 

NGOs belong to the marginalized, economically weaker 

and disadvantaged sections of the society. The CSR 

program manager of Mastek Foundation updates the 

Company about various implementations made under 

respective projects in various locations.

Principle 5: Human Rights

Businesses should respect and promote Human Rights.

1. Does the policy of the Company on Human Rights 
cover only the Company or extend to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

 Not Applicable.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received 

satisfactorily resolved by the management?

 Not Applicable.

Principle 6: Environmental Management

Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to 
restore the environment.

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 
Company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

 No.

2. Does the Company have strategies/initiatives to 
address global environmental issues such as climate 
change, global warming, etc.? Y/N. If yes, please give 
hyperlink for webpage etc.

 No.

3. Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N

 No.

4. Does the Company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if yes, whether 

 No.
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5. Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives 

energy, etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web 

page etc.

 No.

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company 

within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for 

 Yes, the Company has obtained Maharashtra Pollution 

7. Number of show cause/ legal notices received from 

CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 

 No show cause notices were received by the Company 

either from CPCB or SPCB.

Principle 7: Public Advocacy

regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

1. Is your Company a member of any trade and chamber 

or association? If yes, name only those major ones that 

your business deals with.

 The Company is member of The National Association of 

Software and Service Companies (NASSCOM).

2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above 

associations for the advancement or improvement of 

public good? Yes/No; if yes, specify the broad areas 

(drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic 

Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy 

Security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business 

Principles, Others)

 Not Applicable.

Principle 8: Inclusive Growth

Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable 

development.

initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to 

Principle 8? If yes, details thereof.

 Yes, the Company considers Corporate Social 

Responsibility as an important aspect of its operations. It 

has aligned its thrust areas in line with the requirements 

of Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013. To oversee 

implementation of various initiatives, the Company 

has formed a Board Level Committee called Corporate 

Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through 
in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/
government structures/any other organization?

 The projects were undertaken through Mastek 

Foundation.

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your 
initiative?

 No.

4. What is your Company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects - Amount in INR and 
the details of the projects undertaken?

 The Company and its Indian step-down subsidiary 

cumulatively spent total ` 93.10 Lakhs towards various 

CSR activities during 2019-20. The details of the 

amount incurred and areas covered are mentioned in 

foregoing paragraphs of this report.

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

 The total spend was contributed to the corpus of 

“Mastek Foundation” which was formed to pursue CSR 

activities, as may be permitted under the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as 

amended.

Principle 9: Value for Customers

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their 
customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer 

 Nil.

2. Does the Company display product information on 
the product label, over and above what is mandated, 
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (additional 
information)

 Not Applicable.

the Company regarding unfair trade practices, 
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive 

about 50 words or so.

 Nil.

4. Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/
consumer satisfaction trends?

 No.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Majesco Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

 

Basis for Opinion

  issued 

Emphasis of Matter

Key Audit Matters
 

Sr. No Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

1 Valuation and Recognition of slump sale of business 

undertaking

Our audit procedures in respect of this area include but are 

not limited to:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)

Sr. No Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

standalone 

Other Matter
st
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 

For MSKA & Associates 

 

Anita Somani 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF MAJESCO LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

For MSKA & Associates 

 

Anita Somani 

 

 

ANNEXURE A 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

MAJESCO LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

 

.

Name of the 
statute

Nature of dues Amount  Rs. Period to which 
the amount 
relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

ANNEXURE B 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
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ANNEXURE B 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTD.)

For MSKA & Associates 

 

Anita Somani 
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF MAJESCO LIMITED

[  to in  f under  on   and  in the  

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”)

We have audited the internal     to standalone  statements of  the 

as of  31  in   our audit of the standalone  statements of the  for the  

ended on that date

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The s  is  for  and  internal   based on the internal 

   to standalone  statements  established  the   the essential 

 of internal  stated in the   on  of Internal      

issued  the Institute of   of India the  These   the 

 and  of  internal   that    for  the  

and eff   of its business   to s the  of its assets the  and 

 of frauds and errors the  and  of the  and the   of reliable 

 information as  under the 

Auditors’ Responsibility

  is to  an  on the s internal     to standalone  

statements based on our audit We  our audit in   the   and the  on 

issued   and deemed to be  under  of the to the extent  to an audit of internal 

 Those  and the    that      and  and 

 the audit to obtain reasonable  about  internal     to standalone  

statements  established and maintained and if     in all material 

 audit involves   to obtain audit  about the internal     to 

standalone  statements and their   audit of internal     to 

standalone  statements   an  of internal     to standalone 

 statements  the  that a material  exists and  and  the  and  

 of internal  based on the assessed The    on the auditor s  

the assessment of the  of material misstatement of the standalone  statements  due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit   have obtained is  and  to  a basis for our audit  on the 

s internal     to standalone  statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

 s internal     to standalone  statements is a   to  

reasonable   the  of   and the  of standalone  statements for 

external  in       s internal    

 to standalone  statements  those  and  that 1  to the  of 

 that in reasonable detail  and   the  and  of the assets of the 

 reasonable  that  are  as  to   of standalone  

statements in      and that  and  of the  are 

 made  in    of  and  of the and 3  reasonable 

   or   of  use or  of the s assets that 

 have a material  on the standalone  statements

ANNEXURE C 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

MAJESCO | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

100



ANNEXURE C 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTD.)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial Statements 

 of the inherent limitations of internal     to standalone  statements  the 

 of  or   override of material misstatements due to error or fraud   

and not be  of  evaluation of the internal     to standalone  

statements to future  are  to the  that the internal     to standalone  

statements     of  in or that the  of   the  or 

  deteriorate

Opinion

In our the  has in all material internal     to standalone  

statements and  internal     to standalone  statements    as 

at  31 based on the internal    to standalone  statements  established  the 

  the essential  of internal  stated in the  

For MSKA & Associates 

 

Anita Somani 
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 ` 

Particulars Notes As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Investments
 33  31 
 11 

11  3 
Total non-current assets  54,241  41,581 
Current assets

Investments
13

 11 

Total current assets  3,203  13,292 
 -    905 

Total assets  57,444  55,778 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Total equity  56,132  54,057 
Liabilities

Total non-current liabilities  27  586 
Current liabilities

 11 

Total current liabilities  1,285  799 
Total liabilities  1,312  1,385 

for sale
 -  336 

Total Equity and Liabilities  57,444  55,778 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

 ` 
Particulars Notes  For the year ended 

March 31, 2020
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2019
INCOME

Total income  1,839  3,333 
EXPENSES

31

Total expenses  1,216  1,400 
 623  1,933 

33
 2,492  1,933 

Income tax expense

Total income tax expense  95  534 
 2,397  1,399 

 -  (227)
Tax expenses of Discontinued operations  -  (45)

 -  (182)
 2,397  1,217 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Continuing operations

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year from continuing 
operations (D)*

(0)  - 

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year from discontinuing 
operations (E)

35  - (1)

(0) (1)
 2,397  1,216 

`
`

`
`

`
`

`

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(A) Equity share capital

 ` 

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

`

 11 

Closing  2,87,01,947  1,435  2,83,45,441  1,417 

(B) Other equity

 ` 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Employee stock 
options outstanding 

account

Securities 
premium

  General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  2,397  2,397 

Balance as at March 31, 2020  2,206  24,850  2,806  24,835  54,697 

`
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (CONTD.)

 Nature and purpose of reserve

(a) Employee Stock options outstanding account (ESOOA)

(b) Securities premium        

(c) General reserve

(d) Retained earnings

 ` 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Employee stock 
options outstanding 

account

Securities 
premium

  General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total

Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  1,217  1,217 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  2,295  24,003  2,806  23,536  52,640 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi

105

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW



STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

 ` 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments for:

 158  (128)

Changes in working capital:

 13 

 13 

Cash generated/(used) in operations  265  (23)

 (176)  (569)

Investment in subsidiaries

 1,039  246 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (CONTD.)

 ` 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

 (865)  290 

 (2)  (33)

 13 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  7  9 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 13)

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

`

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi
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1 GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION

 

 

 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation 

(a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

 

(b) Basis of measurement

 

 

(c) Use of estimates

 

i)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

and intangible assets:

 

ii)  The fair value measurements and valuation 

processes:

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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iii)  Actuarial valuation:

 

iv) Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary:

 

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

 

 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

 

Property, plant and equipment Useful Life

 

 

 

 

2.3 Investment properties

 

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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2.4 Intangible assets and amortization

 

 

Intangible assets

 

 

2.6 Leases

 Company as a lessor

 

 Transition to Ind AS 116

 

 

(a) Short-term obligations

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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 Gratuity

 Compensated absences

(c) Share based payments

 

2.8 Foreign currency transactions

i)  Functional and presentation currency: The 

ii)  Foreign currency transactions and balances: 

are translated at the rate on the date of 

2.9 Fair value measurement

 

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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measurement is unobservable 

 

2.11 Revenue recognition

 

2.12 Other Income

 

2.13 Taxes

 

(a) Current income tax

 

and there is an intention to settle the asset and 

(b)  Deferred tax

 

the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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2.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

 

 

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents 

 

2.16 Financial instruments
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and

 

 

 c) Investment in subsidiaries 

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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2.17 Contributed equity

 

 

2.18 Earnings per share

 

 

 

 

 

2.20 Rounding off amounts

 

2.21 Impact of COVID-19
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3 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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5  INVESTMENT PROPERTY

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  

March 31, 2019

Gross Block

 -  1,099 

Less : Accumulated depreciation

 -  369 

Net block  -  730 

Note:

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  

March 31, 2019

 -  30 

 -  695 

` `

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 ` 
Particulars  Gross block Depreciation  Net block 

As at  
April 1, 

2019

 Addi-
tions/ 

Adjust-
ments 

 Deduc-
tions/ 

Adjust-
ments 

Assets of 
disposal 

group 

as held for 
sale

 As at 
March 

31, 
2020 

As at  
April 1, 

2019

 For the 
year 

Deduc-
tions/ 

Adjust-
ments

 Assets of 
disposal 

group 

as held for 
sale 

 As at 
March 

31, 
2020 

As at 
March 

31, 
2020 

As at 
March 

31, 
2019 

Total  -  -  -  - -  -  -  -  - -  -  - 

 ` 
Particulars  Gross block Depreciation  Net block 

As at  
April 1, 

2018

 Addi-
tions/ 

Adjust-
ments 

 Deduc-
tions/ 

Adjust-
ments 

 Assets of 
disposal 

group 

as held for 
sale 

As at 
March 

31, 
2019

 As at  
April 1, 

2018 

 For the 
year 

 Deduc-
tions/ 

Adjust-
ments 

 Assets of 
disposal 

group 

as held for 
sale 

 As at 
March 

31, 
2019 

As at 
March 

31, 
2019 

As at 
April 1, 

2018 

 13 
Total  40  -  -  (40) -  5  13  -  (18) -  -  35 

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS- NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019
A. Investment in subsidiary - quoted

Majesco

` `

Total (A)  51,500  39,934 
B. Other investments - unquoted

` -

Total (B) -
 51,500  39,984 

Aggregate book value of:

Aggregate market value of:

Aggregate impairment of:

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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8 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Unsecured, considered good

 33  31 

Total  33  31 

9 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

 11 

Total  11 -

10 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

` `

Total  778  572 

11 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

 1 

Total  3  - 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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12 FINANCIAL ASSETS CURRENT - INVESTMENTS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

A. Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted)

Total  2,750  8,238 

B. Other investments - unquoted

`

Total (B)  50 -

 2,800  8,238 

` `

12.1 Aggregate value of quoted and unquoted investments is as follows:

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Aggregate book value of:

Aggregate market value of:

Aggregate impairment of:

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

12.2 Details of investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) designated at FVTPL:

Particulars Face Value  

(in `)

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents consists of the followings:

Total  7  9 

`

14 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

 - 

 - 

 11 

Total  11  4,500 

14.1 `
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15 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total  126  36 

16 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

Total  -  150 

17 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

 1 

 3 

 1 

Total  259  359 

Note: ` `

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

123

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

18 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Authorized

`

Total  2,500  2,500 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

`

Total  1,435  1,417 

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

No. of shares Amount in  

` Lakhs

No. of shares Amount in  

` Lakhs

 11 

Outstanding at the end of the year  2,87,01,947  1,435  2,83,45,441  1,417 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares: 

`

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Number of 

shares 

 % of holding 

in the class 

 Number of 

shares

 % of holding 

in the class

Ketan Mehta

Total  92,99,956 32.40%  90,06,419 31.76%

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

19 OTHER EQUITY

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019
(A) Employee Stock options outstanding account (ESOOA)

Closing balance  2,206  2,295 

(B) Securities premium

Closing balance  24,850  24,003 

(C) General reserve 

Closing balance  2,806  2,806 

(D) Retained earnings

Closing balance  24,835  23,536 

Total  54,697  52,640 

`

20 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  

March 31, 2019

Total  -  382 

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - NON CURRENT

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Total  27  18 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

22 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Total  -  5 

23 TRADE PAYABLES

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

 11 

Total  11  68 

24 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

 11  3 

Total  1,137  688 

25 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

 3 

Total  128  37 

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - CURRENT 

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total  9  6 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

27 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Total  1,024  974 

28 OTHER INCOME

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

 1 

Total  815  2,359 

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

 1 

Total  711  544 

30 FINANCE COSTS

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Total  34  28 

31 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Total  62  69 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

32 OTHER EXPENSES

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

 1 

 11 

Total  409  759 

Payment to auditors for:

 13 

Total  17  24 

33 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Total  1,869  - 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

34 INCOME TAX

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(a) Deferred tax relates to the following: 

Deferred tax assets

 117  43 

Deferred tax liabilities

 1 

 11 

Deferred tax asset / (liability), net  106  (181)

(b) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net): 

Closing balance  106  (181)

(c)
Loss  

 534  (92)

`
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

 ` 

 Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

(d) Income tax expense - Continuing operations (A)

Total  95  534 

(e) Income tax expense - Discontinued operations (B)

Total  -  (45)

(f) Reconciliation of tax charge

Income tax expense  95  534 

35

of `

` `
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

 ` 
Particulars  Year ended   

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019
Discontinued operations
Income

Total income  -  1,935 
Expenses

 11 

 -  1,018 

 13 
 -  73 

`  33 

 1 
 3 
 1 

 1 

 1 
 3 
 3 

 -  1,071 
Total expenses  -  2,162 

 -  (227)
Income tax expense

Total income tax expense  -  (45)
 -  (182)

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Other comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year from discontinued operations  -  (1)
Total comprehensive Income / (loss) from discontinued operations for the year  -  (183)
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B.  Carrying amounts of the total assets to be disposed and  the total liabilities to be settled as at  March 31, 2020

 ` 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Total non-current assets  -  311 

Current assets

Total current assets  -  594 

Total assets  -  905 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities  -  35 

Current liabilities

 31 

Total current liabilities  -  301 

Total liabilities  -  336 

 -  569 

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

 - 

Total  -  29 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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36 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(a)

(b) Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares considered for basic 
EPS

(c) Earnings per share (Face value per share ` 5/- each (Previous year ` 5/- each))

`  8.42  4.31 

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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37 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

 11 

 -  1 
Total  25  18 

(B)

i) Actuarial assumptions

11

ii)

 1 

Present value of obligation at the end of the year  63  118 
iii) Change in fair value of assets

 3 

 54  122 
iv)

and Loss

Total  6  5 
v)

 3 

Total  (2)  - 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

vi) Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet:

Net liability/ (asset) recognized in Balance Sheet  9  (4)

vii) Expected contribution to the fund in the next year  9  10 

viii) Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

In (%) In ` In (%) In `

 113 

 113 

 ` 

Particulars

ix)

 `  
(C) 

i) Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet:

Net liability recognized in Balance Sheet  27  24 

 9  6 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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38 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME 

(a) Nature and extent of employee stock option scheme that existed during the year:

 Plan I

`

`

 

`

` `

` `

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Number WAEP (`) Number WAEP (`)

Add:

Less:

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

(b) Stock options exercised during the year :

`

(c) 

Particulars Options 
Outstanding

Weighted 
Average Exercise 

Price (`)

 Weighted Average 
remaining Contractual 

Life (years) 

As at March 31, 2020

Range of exercise price (`)

As at March 31, 2019

Range of exercise price (`)

(d) Information on stock options granted during the year :

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

`

`

(e)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

39 LEASE

Non-cancellable operating lease

As a lessor

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable 

operating leases are receivable as follows:

40 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Name of the Related Party Country Relationship

1

3

India

Ireland

Ireland

(B) Other related parties with whom the Company had transactions during the year

 List of Key management personnel:

id K
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(C) Details of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business: 

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Kunal Karan 

 1 

 ` 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2020

Provident 
Fund

National 
Pension Scheme

Gratuity  Leave 
encashment 

 Superannuation  Share based 

 3 

 3  1 

Kunal Karan  1  1 

 1 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Provident 
Fund

National 
Pension Scheme

Gratuity  Leave 
encashment 

 Superannuation  Share based 

 3 

Kunal Karan   1  1  1 

 1 

 1 

`

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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 x. Consideration received by Company on exercise of options

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

(D) Amount due to / from related party

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

i

 3  33 

(E) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

41 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

A. Guarantees:

`

Total  -    7,416 

B. Capital and other commitments

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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42 SEGMENT REPORTING

43 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 ` 

Fair Value and Carrying Amount As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Fair value 
through 

loss

Fair value 
through Other 
comprehensive 

income

Amortized 
Cost

Fair value 
through 

loss

Fair value 
through Other 
comprehensive 

income

Amortized 
Cost

FINANCIAL ASSETS- NON CURRENT

 33  31 

 11 

FINANCIAL ASSETS- CURRENT

Investments

 11 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- NON 
CURRENT

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- CURRENT

 11 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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44 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Level 1 (Quoted price in active markets)

Level 2 (Based on observable inputs)

45  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

(A) Market risk

 Foreign currency risk

 Interest rate risk

(B) Credit risk

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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(C) Liquidity risk

` `

` `

` `

` `

46 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

`

value of `

` `

 

@ ` `

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total debt

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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47 UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY BALANCES

 ` 

Particulars Currency As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Foreign 
currency in 

Lakhs

` in Lakhs Foreign 
currency  in 

Lakhs

` in Lakhs

1

1

1

48 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE

` `

 ` 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

In Cash Yet to be 
paid in cash

Total In Cash Yet to be 
paid in cash

Total

 11  11 

49 CHANGE IN OBJECTS CLAUSE OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION:

50 ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL STAKE IN MAJESCO, USA

`

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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51

` `

52 DISAGGREGATE REVENUE INFORMATION

 ` 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Revenue by offerings-Included under discontinued operations (Refer note 35)

Total  -    1,935 

Revenues by contract type

Time and Materials

Total  -    1,935 

Revenue by offerings-Included under Continuing operations

 1,024  974 

53 PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES HAVE BEEN REGROUPED/ RECLASSIFIED TO CONFIRM PRESENTATION AS PER IND AS 

AS REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE III OF THE ACT.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

145

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Majesco Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion 

Basis for Opinion 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 

Emphasis of Matter

Key Audit Matters 

Sr. No Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

1 Revenue Recognition

and disclosures of revenues and other related balances 

Our audit procedures in respect of this area include but are 

not limited to:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)

Sr. No Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

The application of the revenue accounting standard 

obligations and the appropriateness of the basis used 

to measure revenue recognized over a period in respect 

collation of information in respect of disaggregated 

 out a combination of procedures involving enquiry and 

Read and analysed the distinct performance 

Samples in respect of revenue recorded for time and 

of approved time sheets including customer 

Considered the terms of the contracts to determine 

the transaction price including any variable 

consideration to verify the transaction price used to 

compute revenue and to test the basis of estimation 

estimated efforts from the time recording and 

Selected samples of contracts and performed a 

estimating the remaining efforts to complete the 

Selected samples from all streams of contracts 

to carry out a detailed analysis on recognition of 

Evaluated appropriateness of disclosure provided 
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Sr. No Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

Tax expenses and related disclosures

Refer Note 38 and 44 (B) of Financial statement

Management has made an assessment to determine the 

India and US and the uncertainty and application of 

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter include but 

are not limited to:

from the consultants representing the Company before 

management assumptions and evaluation provided by 

the management

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Other Matter

st

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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For MSKA & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Anita Somani 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF MAJESCO LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

For MSKA & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Anita Somani 
 
 

ANNEXURE A 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF MAJESCO LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

ANNEXURE B 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
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ANNEXURE B 
TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTD.)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

For MSKA & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Anita Somani 
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 ` 

Particulars Notes As at 
March 31, 2020

As at 
March 31, 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Financial assets
Investments

 331 

11
Total non-current assets  46,440  41,092 
Current assets
Financial assets

Investments
Trade receivables 13
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

 111 

Total current assets  78,315  70,057 
Total Assets  1,24,755  1,11,150 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company  69,799  67,701 

Total equity  84,473  80,517 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Total non-current liabilities  5,658  7,195 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Total current liabilities  34,624  23,438 
Total liabilities  40,282  30,633 
Total Equity and Liabilities  1,24,755  1,11,150 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty
Chartered Accountants

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

 ` 
Particulars Notes  For the year ended 

March 31, 2020
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2019
INCOME

Revenue from operations 31

Total income  1,06,220  1,01,620 
EXPENSES

33
Finance costs

Total expenses  95,987  91,614 
 10,233  10,006 

 11,730  10,280 
Income tax expense

Total income tax expense  2,708  3,106 
 9,022  7,174 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

 11 
 19  (91)

 3,953  104 
Total other comprehensive income for the year  3,972  13 
Total comprehensive income for the year  12,994  7,187 

Equity shareholders of the Company

Other comprehensive income attributable to :
Equity shareholders of the Company

Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to :
Equity shareholders of the Company

Earnings per share
`)

`)

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty
Chartered Accountants

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

 ` 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Finance costs  33 

Rental income

 14,877  11,945 

Changes in working capital

 111 

Cash generated from operations  15,863  7,850 

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)  11,945  4,771 

Rental income

Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities (B)  10,140  (2,078)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (CONTD.)

 ` 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Repayment of lease liability

 (936)  1,730 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  21,149  4,423 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 14)

Current accounts

EEFC accounts

Cash on hand

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year  34,295  10,986 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty

Chartered Accountants

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi

Company Secretary
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

 

 The company is a public limited company incorporated 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Name of the Company

Country of 
Incorporation

 % of 
effective 

voting power 
held as at

 March  
31, 2020 

 % of 
effective 

voting power 
held as at

 March  
31, 2019 

Subsidiary

USA

Step down subsidiaries

 USA

Canada
* USA

United 
kingdom

India

Malaysia

Thailand

Singapore

Ireland

Ireland

 

 The details of subsidiaries including step-down 

statements are:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation

(a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

 

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied 

accounting standard requires a change in the 

(b) Basis of measurement

 

measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind 

ii)  Share based payment transactions

 

operating cycle and other criteria set out in the 

rendering of service and their realization in cash 

(c) Use of estimates

 

management to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amount of assets and 

and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the 

are based upon the management’s evaluation of 

the relevant facts and circumstances as at the 

are revised and in any future years if the revision 

i)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

and intangible assets:

 

intangible assets at the end of each reporting 

ii)  The fair value measurements and valuation 

processes:

 

Information about the valuation techniques 

iii) Actuarial valuation:

 

is made through independent actuarial 

valuation including determination of amounts 

Such valuation depend upon assumptions 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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factors such as supply and demand factors in 

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

 

of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 

capitalized until the assets are ready for use and include 

 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

 

Property, plant and equipment Useful Life

Buildings

Computers

period of lease 

 

that the useful lives as given above best represent 

 

 

and equipment is provided up to the date preceding the 

 

2.3 Investment properties

 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

 

The management believes that these estimated useful 

 The fair value of investment property is disclosed in 

 

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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2.4 Intangible assets and amortization

 Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration 

paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at 

cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and 

 

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as 

Intangible assets Useful Life

Technology

Customer relationships

 

unless technical and commercial feasibility of the 

that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for 

2.5 Foreign Currency Transactions

 

currencies for its subsidiaries located in United States 

of foreign currency into Indian Rupees has been carried 

assets and liabilities including contingent liabilities 

are taken to reserves under Foreign Currency 

Translation Reserve through other comprehensive 

income until the disposal of the investment in 

2.6 Fair value measurement

 

 

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset 

advantageous market for the asset or liability 

 

active markets for identical assets or liabilities

measurement is directly or indirectly observable

measurement is unobservable

 The management determines the policies and 

procedures for both recurring fair value measurement 

the Company has determined classes of assets and 

risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 

2.7 Revenue recognition

 Revenue from Operations:

 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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 Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of 

promised products or services to customers in an 

 

 a)  Time and material contracts

 

recognized as the related services are performed 

and revenue from the end of the last invoicing 

to the reporting date is recognized as unbilled 

 b)  Fixed-price contracts

 

uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of 

revenue recognition is postponed until such 

 

 

ii)  Cloud Services/ Usage based Subscription 

Services

 iii)  Support and Maintenance Services

 

 i)  Professional Services:

 

They are considered as a distinct deliverable 

and recognized as a separate obligation 

over the period of delivery on a percentage 

ii)  Cloud Services/ Usage based Subscription 

Services:

 

period of time and is paid by the customer on 

a recurring monthly fee based on the service 

to this contract are met on an ongoing basis 

recognizes the revenue on a monthly basis 

based on the subscriptions earned for the 

the minimum subscription applicable based 

on the usage of the customer during that 

any variations to this at the end of quarter and 

iii)  Support and Maintenance:

 Support and maintenance are time bound 

the term of the contract and hence recognized 

 

revenue recognition criteria after identifying 

maintenance and related services as distinct 

performance obligations and income is 

 iv)  License Fee:

recognize revenue over the period of the 

the revenue recognition of all current 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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license fee and implementation fee is 

completed for implementation as they 

are considered integral part of sale of the 

is considered to be handed over to 

the customer on acceptance of the 

recognized for the entire initial term 

at a point of time after transfer to the 

for the customer for them to derive any 

revenue over the implementation period 

on a percentage completion method 

based subscription model included 

 

 

are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative 

 

 

current liabilities’ represents amounts received/

c)  Sales Commission

 

generated related to professional services 

Substantially all of our professional services 

contracts have durations of one year or less and 

as such commissions for these contracts are 

 

2.8 Other Income

 

income is recognized on time proportion basis taking 

into account the amount outstanding and the applicable 

straight line basis over the term of the lease as per the 

terms of the base contract or such other systematic 

investments are recognised periodically based on fair 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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2.9 Taxes

 

(a) Current income tax

 

correlation to the underlying transaction either in 

enforceable right to set off the recognized amount 

and there is an intention to settle the asset and 

(b)  Deferred tax

 

assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible 

or liability in a transaction that is not a business 

combination and affects neither accounting nor 

there is convincing evidence that the Company 

sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT 

no longer convincing evidence to the effect that 

there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets 

2.10 Borrowing costs

 

construction or production of an asset that necessarily 

takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost 

consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs 

2.11 Leases

 As a lessee

 The group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)
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corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements 

group recognizes the lease payments as an operating 

 

presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 

 Transition to Ind AS 116

 

 

group recorded the lease liability at the present value 

of the lease payments discounted at the incremental 

amount as if the standard had been applied since the 

applying this standard has been recognised as an 

 

of inclusion of present value of the lease payments for 

discounting of the lease liabilities as per the requirement 

 

been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance 

Economic Enviroment Discouting Rate (in %)

India

USA

UK

Malaysia

 

indication that an impairment loss recognized for an 

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 

2.13 Provision and contingent liabilities
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provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 

 

occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain 

 A contingent liability recognised in a business 

the requirements for provisions above or the amount 

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

 

risk of change in value and having original maturities 

2.15 Financial instruments

 

and payables are recognised net of directly attributable 

 

 

 

initially at fair value plus transaction costs 

and subsequently carried at amortized cost 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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 Amortised cost are represented by trade 

 

 A debt instrument is measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income if both 

achieved by both collecting contractual 

and

 

at each reporting period at fair value plus 

are recognised in other comprehensive 

Interest earned is recognised under the 

 All equity instruments are measured at fair 

irrevocable election to present subsequent 

 If the Company decides to classify an equity 

 

meet the criteria for categorization as at 

 In addition the Company may elect to 

 

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

and subsequently carried at amortized cost 

contingent consideration are measured at 

 

 

contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign 

Attributable transaction costs are recognized in 

value of the derivative hedging instrument 

recognized in other comprehensive income 

changes in fair value are recognized in 

hedging instrument no longer meets the 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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The cumulative gain or loss previously 

and loss upon the occurrence of the related 

currency derivative instruments not 

(a) Short-term obligations

 The undiscounted amount of short term employee 

services rendered by employees is recognized in 

absences such as paid annual leave and 

 

contribution plans established and 

contributions to all of these plans are 

in the year they are incurred and there are no 

further obligations under these plans beyond 

 

 Gratuity

method used by independent actuary for 

 Compensated absences

an annual basis for leave balance above 

the upper limit as per the Company’s 

of employment leave encashment vests 

equivalent to salary payable for number of 

by independent actuary for measuring the 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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(c) Share based payments

 Employee stock options:

 Stock options granted to employees of the 

Company and its subsidiaries under the stock 

option schemes are covered by Securities and 

the grant is made using an appropriate valuation 

employee’s requisite service period for the entire 

activity differs materially from the original 

2.17 Foreign currency

 Functional currency

 Transactions and translations

liabilities are translated into the relevant functional 

monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency 

and measured at fair value are translated at the 

monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency 

and measured at historical cost are translated at the 

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement 

of foreign currency transactions are included in 

items denominated in foreign currencies are translated 

into the relevant functional currencies using the 

subsidiaries to the presentation currency is performed 

such translation are included in currency translation 

entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign 

2.18 Business combination, goodwill and intangible assets

 Business combinations are accounted for using 

acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets 

cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any 

and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a 

business combination are measured initially at their fair 
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such acquisitions included in the carrying amount 

b)  Intangible assets

assets and contingent consideration to be fair 

valued in order to ascertain the net fair value 

required to be made in determining the value of 

Theses valuations are conducted by independent 

2.19 Contributed equity

 

 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue 

2.20 Earnings per share

 

average number of shares that could have been issued 

 The number of shares and potentially dilutive shares 

the effects of anti dilutive potential equity shares 

2.21 Rounding off amounts

 

2.22 Impact of COVID-19

 

its employee base rendering the physical infrastructure 

on the assumptions used and based on current indicators 

situtation does not materially impact this Consolidated 

to closely monitor any material changes to future 
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government assistance subsidies and certain other 

outside of the United States but does not anticipate 

3 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

 

or loss and each component of other comprehensive 

 Operating cycle

 

cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 

Financial Statements based on the nature of products 

processing and their realisation in cash and cash 

4 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

173

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW



5
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
, P

LA
N

T
 A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 `
 

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

 G
ro

ss
 b

lo
ck

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

 N
et

 b
lo

ck
 

A
s 

at
  

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

19

 A
dd

i-
ti

on
s/

 
A

dj
us

t-
m

en
ts

 

 A
ss

et
s 

A
cq

ui
re

d 

 D
ed

uc
-

ti
on

s/
  

A
dj

us
t-

m
en

ts
 

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
20

A
s 

at
  

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

19

 F
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 

O
n 

A
ss

et
s 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
 

D
ed

uc
-

ti
on

s/
  

A
dj

us
t-

m
en

ts

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
20

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
20

 

A
s 

at
 

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

19

A
) 

O
w

ne
d 

as
se

ts
 

B
ui

ld
in

gs

31

 
C

om
pu

te
rs

3
 

To
ta

l (
A

)
10

,2
22

53
8

-
(2

83
)

38
7

10
,8

64
7,

52
4

1,
10

3
-

(2
67

)
35

1
8,

71
1

2,
15

3
2,

69
8

B
) 

Le
as

ed
 a

ss
et

s

 
To

ta
l (

B
)

62
7

-
-

-
27

65
4

27
4

84
-

-
20

37
8

27
6

35
3

To
ta

l (
A

 +
 B

)
10

,8
49

53
8

-
(2

83
)

41
4

11
,5

18
7,

79
8

1,
18

7
-

(2
67

)
37

1
9,

08
9

2,
42

9
3,

05
1

 `
 

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

 G
ro

ss
 b

lo
ck

 
D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

 N
et

 b
lo

ck
 

A
s 

at
 

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

18

 A
dd

i-
ti

on
s/

 
A

dj
us

t-
m

en
ts

 

 A
ss

et
s 

A
cq

ui
re

d 

 D
ed

uc
-

ti
on

s/
  

A
dj

us
t-

m
en

ts
 

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
19

A
s 

at
 

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

18

 F
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 

O
n 

A
ss

et
s 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
 

D
ed

uc
-

ti
on

s/
  

A
dj

us
t-

m
en

ts

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
19

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
19

A
s 

at
 

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

18

A
) 

O
w

ne
d 

as
se

ts
 

B
ui

ld
in

gs

 
C

om
pu

te
rs

 3
 

 1
33

 
 

To
ta

l (
A

)
 9

,3
21

 
 1

,2
31

 
 3

7 
 (6

85
)

 3
18

 
 1

0,
22

2 
 6

,7
97

 
 1

,1
34

 
 3

 
 (6

09
)

 1
99

 
 7

,5
24

 
 2

,6
98

 
 2

,5
24

 
B

) 
Le

as
ed

 a
ss

et
s

 3
 

 
To

ta
l (

B
)

 6
20

 
 - 

 - 
 (7

7)
 8

4 
 6

27
 

 1
89

 
 8

7 
 - 

 (1
0)

 8
 

 2
74

 
 3

53
 

 4
31

 
To

ta
l (

A
 +

 B
)

 9
,9

41
 

 1
,2

31
 

 3
7 

 (7
62

)
 4

02
 

 1
0,

84
9 

 6
,9

87
 

 1
,2

22
 

 3
 

 (6
19

)
 2

07
 

 7
,7

99
 

 3
,0

51
 

 2
,9

55
 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

MAJESCO | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

174



6
O

T
H

E
R

 IN
TA

N
G

IB
LE

 A
SS

E
T

S 
A

N
D

 G
O

O
D

W
IL

L

(i
) O

th
er

 in
ta

ng
ib

le
 a

ss
et

s
 `

 

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

 G
ro

ss
 b

lo
ck

 
A

m
or

ti
za

ti
on

 N
et

 b
lo

ck
 

A
s 

at
  

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

19

 A
dd

i-
ti

on
s/

 
A

dj
us

t-
m

en
ts

  

 A
ss

et
s 

A
cq

ui
re

d 
 D

ed
uc

-
ti

on
s/

  
A

dj
us

t-
m

en
ts

 

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
20

A
s 

at
  

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

19

 F
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 
O

n 
A

ss
et

s 
A

cq
ui

re
d 

 

D
ed

uc
-

ti
on

s/
  

A
dj

us
t-

m
en

ts

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
20

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
20

 

A
s 

at
 

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

19

 3
1 

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

 C
us

to
m

er
 re

la
ti

on
sh

ip
s 

 
 1

3 
To

ta
l 

 9
,1

98
 

 2
1 

 - 
 (1

,9
60

)
 4

56
 

 7
,7

15
 

 3
,1

27
 

 1
,2

88
 

 - 
 (1

,9
61

)
 1

22
 

 2
,5

76
 

 5
,1

39
 

 6
,0

71
 

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

 G
ro

ss
 b

lo
ck

 
A

m
or

ti
za

ti
on

 N
et

 b
lo

ck
 

A
s 

at
 

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

18

 A
dd

i-
ti

on
s/

 
A

dj
us

t-
m

en
ts

  

A
ss

et
s 

A
cq

ui
re

d
(R

ef
er

 
N

ot
e 

53
)

 D
ed

uc
-

ti
on

s/
  

A
dj

us
t-

m
en

ts
 

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
19

A
s 

at
  

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

18

 F
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 
O

n 
A

ss
et

s 
A

cq
ui

re
d 

 (R
ef

er
 

N
ot

e 
53

)

D
ed

uc
-

ti
on

s/
  

A
dj

us
t-

m
en

ts

 F
or

ei
gn

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

tr
an

s-
la

ti
on

 
ad

ju
st

-
m

en
ts

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
19

 

A
s 

at
 

M
ar

ch
 

31
, 

20
19

 

A
s 

at
 

A
pr

il 
1,

 
20

18

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

 C
us

to
m

er
 re

la
ti

on
sh

ip
s 

 1
3 

 1
3 

To
ta

l 
 3

,4
32

 
 2

3 
 6

,7
67

 
 (6

70
)

 (3
54

)
 9

,1
98

 
 2

,9
44

 
 1

79
 

 5
58

 
 (6

70
)

 1
16

 
 3

,1
27

 
 6

,0
71

 
 4

88
 

(i
i)

  G
oo

dw
ill

 o
n 

co
ns

ol
id

at
io

n
 

T
he

 g
ro

up
 t

e

 `
 

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

A
s 

o
f  

M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 2

0
2

0
A

s 
o

f M
ar

ch
 3

1
, 2

0
1

9
 *

To
ta

l
 2

6
,1

6
0

 
 2

4
,7

0
6

 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

175

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUTORY REPORTS

CORPORATE OVERVIEW



EBIT Margins:  

Discount rate:

Growth rates: 

Capital expenditure: 

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS- NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Investments measured at amortised cost 
`  -  50 

Total  -  50 

Aggregate value of unquoted investments  -  50 
Aggregate value of impairment in the value of unquoted investments  -  - 

8 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

Total  357  332 

9 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

MTM gains recoverable on outstanding derivative contracts

Total  58  331 
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10 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total  1,037  769 

11 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Capital advance  1 

Unbilled revenue considered good

Total  1,703  447 

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS CURRENT - INVESTMENTS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

A. Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) (Refer note 12.2)

Total (A)  7,230  8,662 

B. Other investments - unquoted

Investments measured at amortised cost 

`

Total (B)  50  - 

Total (A+B)  7,280  8,662 
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` `

12.1 Aggregate value of quoted and unquoted investments is as follows:

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Aggregate book value of:

Unquoted investments

Aggregate market value of:

Aggregate impairment of:

Unquoted investments

12.2  Details of investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) designated at FVTPL:

Particulars Face Value  

(in `)
No. of Units

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019
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13 TRADE RECEIVABLE

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Unsecured

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Total  19,806  11,960 

Total Receivables

Movement in expected credit loss allowance : 

Effect of foreign currency translation  31 

Closing balance  821  1,288 

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

Current accounts *  24,454 

EEFC accounts  2,229 

Cash on hand  7,612 

 - 

Total  34,295  10,986 

*includes balance in special dividend account  11  3 
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15 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total  175  20,665 

`

16 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

MTM gains receivable on outstanding derivative contracts

Total  111  2,114 

17 INCOME TAX ASSETS 

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total  48  150 

18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Advances to suppliers

Advances to employees

Unbilled revenue

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Total  16,600  15,670 

*Note: Includes share of stamp duty ̀ `
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19 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has only one class of equity share capital having a par value of `

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Authorized

`

 2,500  2,500 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

`

Total  1,435  1,417 

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

No. of shares Amount in  

` Lakhs

No. of shares Amount in  

` Lakhs

 11 

Outstanding at the end of the year  2,87,01,947  1,435  2,83,45,441  1,417 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares: 

`

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 Number of 

shares 

 % of holding 

in the class 

 Number of 

shares

 % of holding 

in the class

Ketan Mehta

Total  92,99,956 32.40%  90,06,419 31.76%

(d)

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(e)

 

(f)

(g)
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20 OTHER EQUITY

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019
(A) Capital reserve

Closing balance

(B) Employee Stock options outstanding account (ESOOA)

options

Closing balance  8,137  6,429 

(C) Securities premium

Closing balance  31,383  29,970 

(D) General reserve 

Closing balance  3,931  3,988 

(E) Retained earnings

gratuity plan

during the year 

Closing balance  17,755  20,817 
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 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019
(F) Hedging reserve account - OCI

Closing balance  (632)  177 

(G) Foreign currency translation reserve - OCI

Closing balance  3,450  (316)

Total  68,364  66,284 

21 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Total  51  76 

22 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  

March 31, 2019

MTM losses on outstanding derivative contracts

Total  2,330  2,016 
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23 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - NON CURRENT

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Total  3,277  2,747 

24 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Unearned revenue

Total  -  2,356 

25 SHORT -TERM BORROWINGS

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Working capital loan from banks 

Total  -  287 

Advance fund against receivables

Security :

Charge holder

Amount

26 TRADE PAYABLES

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises*

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

Total  3,047  1,651 
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27 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Credit balances in bank accounts

MTM losses on outstanding derivative contracts

Current maturities of auto loan obligations

Capital creditors

Employee related payables

Unpaid special dividend  11  3 

Total  13,424  12,971 

28 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Unearned revenue

Advance from customer

Statutory dues payable

Total  17,490  6,839 

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - CURRENT

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total  663  758 

30 INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Total  -  932 
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31 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Information technology services

Total  1,04,048  98,810 

32 OTHER INCOME

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

 13 

Rental income

Miscellaneous income

Total  2,172  2,810 

33 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Total  69,413  66,107 

34 FINANCE COSTS

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

 311 

Interest on fair valuation of deferred consideration

Total  202  361 

`
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35 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Total  3,401  1,961 

36 OTHER EXPENSES

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Travelling and conveyance

Repairs and maintenance

Buildings

Rent

Advertisement and publicity

Communication charges

Insurance

Electricity

Membership and subscription

Total  22,971  23,185 
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37 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

 (1,497)  (274)

38 INCOME TAX

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(A) Deferred tax relates to the following: 

Deferred tax assets

 7,577  6,356 

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asset, net  6,523  5,179 

Cumulative MAT credit not recognised as at the Balance Sheet date

(B) Summary of deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability

Balance sheet

 6,523  5,179 
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 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(C) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net): 

Closing balance  6,523  5,179 

(D)

 (156)  (309)

 ` 

 Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

(E) Income tax expense

Total  2,708  3,106 

(F) Reconciliation of tax charge

MAT credit recognised

Income tax expense  2,708  3,106 

Notes:
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39 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The components of basic and dilut

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(a)
(b) Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares*     

(c) Earnings per share (Face value per share ` 5/- each(Previous year ` 5/-) each)
`)

`)

40 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 ` 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Contribution to social security

Contribution to provident fund

Contribution to national insurance fund

Contribution to superannuation fund

Contribution to national pension scheme

Contribution to employees' deposit link insurance 

Contribution to employees' state insurance corporation  3 

 1  1 
Total  3,600  3,130 

(B)

i) Actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in Salary

Attrition rate

ii)

Interest cost

NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

MAJESCO | ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

190



 ` 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Settlements

Current service cost

Present value of obligation at the end of the year  2,776  2,435 

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

iii) Change in fair value of assets

on planned assets

Employer's contribution

 2,421  2,027 
iv)

and Loss
Current service cost

Interest cost  13 

 367  275 
v)

vi) Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet:

Fair value of plan assets

Net liability / ( asset ) recognized in Balance Sheet  355  408 

vii) Expected contribution to the fund in the next year  355  210 

viii)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

In (%) In (`) Lakhs In (%) In (`) Lakhs

Rate of increase in salary
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 ` 

Particulars

ix)

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(C) 

i) Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet:

Amount paid during the year

Net liability recognised in Balance Sheet  3,580  3,097 

 663  758 

41 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME 

A         Employee stock option scheme of the Company

(a) Nature and extent of employee stock option scheme that existed during the year:

 Plan I

 The company int

 The Company has granted employee stock options to its employees and also to employees of its direct and indirect 

a fair valuation of all the unvested options as on that date and debited Retained earnings by ` `

stock option outstanding account considering the same as equivalent to cost of employee stock option granted by Mastek 
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` `

` `

during the year

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Number WAEP (`)  Number WAEP (`)  

Add:

Less:

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(b) Stock options exercised during the year :

`)

(c) For stock options outstanding at the end of the year, the range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining 
contractual life (vesting period + exercise period)

Particulars Options 
Outstanding

Weighted 
Average Exercise 

Price (`)

 Weighted Average 
remaining Contractual 

Life (years) 

As at March 31, 2020

Range of exercise price (`)

As at March 31, 2019

Range of exercise price (`)
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(d) Information on stock options granted during the year :

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

`)

`)

B       Employee stock option scheme of the subsidiary, Majesco, USA

(a) Nature and extent of employee share-based payment plans that existed during the year:

 Majesco 2015 Equity Incentive Plan

 

` `

(b)
during the year

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Number WAEP (`) Number WAEP (`)

Add:

Less:
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Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

(c) Stock options exercised during the year :

`)

(d) For stock options outstanding at the end of the year, the range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining 

contractual life (vesting period + exercise period)

Particulars Options 
Outstanding

Weighted 
Average Exercise 

Price (`)

 Weighted Average 
remaining Contractual 

Life (years) 

As at March 31, 2020

Range of exercise price (`)

`

`

As at March 31, 2019

Range of exercise price (`)

`

`

(e) Information on stock options granted during the year :

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

`)

`)  `  `
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42 LEASE

Group as a lessee:

` `  

Economic Enviroment Discouting Rate (in %)

India

USA

UK

Malaysia

Particulars Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020

Buildings 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2020

Buildings 

Interest on lease liabilities is `

`

`
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43  PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A) Key Management Personnel

Radhakrishnan Sundar

Farid Kazani

Kunal Karan

Company Secretary

Company Secretary

Mallinath Sengupta 

Manish Shah 

(B) Disclosure of transactions with key management personnel during the year:

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2020

 Year ended  
March 31, 2019

Radhakrishnan Sundar

Farid Kazani

Kunal Karan

 1 

Manish Shah

Mallinath Sengupta

 133 
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 ` 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2020

Provident 
Fund

National Pension 
Scheme

Gratuity  Leave 
encashment 

 Superannuation  Share based 

Farid Kazani  3 

Radhakrishnan Sundar  3  1 

Kunal Karan  1  1 

^  1 

Ketan Mehta

Adam Elster

Melissa Blankenbaker 

Mallinath Sengupta  33 

Manish Shah

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

Provident 
Fund

National Pension 
Scheme

Gratuity  Leave 
encashment 

 Superannuation  Share based 

Farid Kazani 

Radhakrishnan Sundar  3 

Kunal Karan  1  1  1 

 1 

 1 

Ketan Mehta

Adam Elster

 13 

Mallinath Sengupta

Manish Shah 

it is based on cost accounted by the Company
`

(C) Consideration received by Group on exercise of employee stock options by:

 ` 

Particulars  Year ended   
March 31, 2020

Year ended  
March 31, 2019

3

(D) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties  
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44 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

A. Guarantees:

B Contingent Liability

`

`

performance guarantee provided on behalf of AEs `

notice of `

`

`

 ` 

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

C Capital and other commitments

not provided for
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45 SEGMENT REPORTING

Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended March 31, 2019

Amount  
(` in Lakhs) 

% Amount  
(` in Lakhs) 

%

Segment Revenue

Europe

Total  1,04,048 100.00%  98,810 100.00%

Segment Results

Europe

Total  14,604 100.00%  14,435 100.00%

 10,233  10,006 

 11,730  10,280 

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Amount  
(` in Lakhs) 

% Amount  
(` in Lakhs) 

%

Segmental Assets

Europe

Segmental Assets

Unallocated Corporate Assets

Total Assets  1,24,755 100.00%  1,11,150 100.00%
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As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Amount  
(` in Lakhs) 

% Amount  
(` in Lakhs) 

%

Segmental Liabilities

Europe

Total Liabilities  40,282 100.00%  30,633 100.00%

Particulars As at March 
31, 2020

% of total 
revenue

As at March 
31, 2019

% of total 
receivables

Customer A

Revenue

Trade receivables and unbilled receivable

46

 ` 

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

 33 

47 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign currency (FC) As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

No. of 
Contracts

Amount of 
Forward 

contracts  
(FC in Lakhs)

Amount of 
Forward 

contracts  (` 
in Lakhs)

No. of 
Contracts

Amount of 
Forward 

contracts  
(FC in Lakhs)

Amount of 
Forward 

contracts  (` 
in Lakhs)

311
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 ` 

As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Unhedged foreign currency balance

Particulars Currency March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Foreign currency  
in Lakhs

` in Lakhs Foreign currency  
in Lakhs

` in Lakhs

I. Assets
II. Liabilities

33  1 

 33  1 
Unhedged payables  33  1 

48 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 ` 

Fair Value and Carrying Amount As at March 31, 2020

Fair value 

and loss

Fair value through 
Other comprehensive 

income

 Derivative 
instruments in 

hedging relationship

Amortised 
cost

FINANCIAL ASSETS- NON-CURRENT
Investments
Security deposits

FINANCIAL ASSETS- CURRENT

Investments

Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- NON CURRENT
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 ` 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- CURRENT

Trade payables

 ` 

Fair Value and Carrying Amount As at March 31, 2019

Fair value 

and loss

Fair value through 
Other comprehensive 

income

 Derivative 
instruments in 

hedging relationship

Amortised 
cost

FINANCIAL ASSETS- NON-CURRENT
Investments

FINANCIAL ASSETS- CURRENT

Investments

Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- NON CURRENT

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- CURRENT

Trade payables

49 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Level 1 (Quoted price in active markets)

Assets

Level 2

consolidated Balance sheet)
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NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Contd.)

 ` 
Particulars As at  

March 31, 2020
As at  

March 31, 2019

Liabilities

Level 3

Contingent consideration

Total

Additions

Total  -  - 

` `

`

`  

50  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

(A) Market risk

 (i) Interest rate risk
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 Interest rate sensitivity

` ` `

`

 (ii) Foreign currency risk

 ` 

Particulars (Rupee Equivalent of) USD GBP MYR Euro Others*

 ` 

Particulars (Rupee Equivalent of) USD GBP MYR Euro Others*

`
`

(B) Credit risk

total revenue and their outsta
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(C) Liquidity risk

` `
`

`

 We had trade receivable of ` `
` `

`

` `

`

` `
`

compared to `

`
`

` `
`

`
` `

`
`

 `  

March 31, 2020 upto 1 year Between 1 year to 5 years
Non Derivatives

Trade payables

Total  16,471  2,381 

March 31, 2019 upto 1 year Between 1 year to 5 years
Non Derivatives

Trade payables

Total  14,909  2,092 
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51 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

` `

`

value of `

` `

`

`

 ` 

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2020

As at  
March 31, 2019

Total equity

Total debt
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52 ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS OF AGILE TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 

`

` `

`

`

`

53 ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS OF EXAXE HOLDINGS LIMITED

`

` `

`

`

`

54 REVERSAL OF CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

`

`

`
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55 ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS OF INSPRO LIMITED

consideration of `

56 ACQUISITION EXPENSES

`

57 NEW ZEALAND BRANCH

58 MEXICO BRANCH

59 RIGHTS ISSUE OF SHARES BY MAJESCO USA

`

`

`

60 ACQUISITION OF MASTEK STAKE

`

61 CLOSURE OF MAJESCO (THAILAND) CO LTD.
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62 COVER ALL MERGER

63 SALE OF INDIA INSURANCE BUSINESS

consideration of `

64 MINORITY INTEREST (NON CONTROLLING INTERESTS)

65 DISAGGREGATE REVENUE INFORMATION

 ` 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Revenue by offerings

Cloud Implementation

Cloud Subscription

Total  1,04,048  98,810 

Revenues by contract type

Time and Material contracts 

Total  1,04,048  98,810 
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Changes in unbilled receivables are as follows:

 ` 

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year

Revenue recognised during the year

Invoice raised during the year

Effect of foreign currency translation

Balance at the end of the year  12,800  12,936 

Changes in unearned revenue are as follows:

 ` 

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2020

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Balance at the beginning of the year

balance at the beginning of the year

during the year

Effect of foreign currency translation

Balance at the end of the year  15,551  7,621 

66 STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS, PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

OWNERS AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Net Assets                        ` 

Name of the entity

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

As % of 
consolidated  

net assets

Amount As % of 
consolidated  

net assets

Amount 

Parent Entity

Subsidiary

Indian

Foreign

Non-controlling interest -21%  (14,674) -19%  (12,816)

Total 100%  69,799 100%  67,701 
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Share in Total OCI

 ` 

Name of the entity March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

As % 
consolidated 

Amount As %  
consolidated 

Amount 

Parent Entity

Subsidiary
Indian

Foreign

Non-controlling interest -32%  (3,136) -33%  (1,773)

Total 100%  9,857 100%  5,413 

 ` 

Name of the entity March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

As % 
consolidated 

Amount As %  
consolidated 

Amount 

Parent Entity

Subsidiary
Indian

Foreign

Non-controlling interest -30%  (2,108) -33%  (1,770)

Total 100%  6,914 100%  5,404 
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Share in OCI

 ` 

Name of the entity March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

As % 
consolidated 

Amount As %  
consolidated 

Amount 

Parent Entity
 1 

Subsidiary
Indian

Foreign

 1 

 13 
Non-controlling interest  (1,028) -39%  (3)

Total  2,943 100%  9 

67

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MSKA & Associates Farid Kazani Venkatesh Chakravarty
Chartered Accountants

Anita Somani Vasant Gujarathi Kunal Karan Varika Rastogi
Company Secretary
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`

Particulars FY 2019-20  FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17

Total revenue     1,06,220         1,01,620        81,696              83,577 

     13,836             12,328          3,352               3,330 

13.03% 12.13% 4.10% 3.98%

      9,022                7,174             280                    673 

`       24.28                19.14            2.60                   2.18 

`       23.45               18.36             2.47                  2.05 

4.53% 24.38% -2.25% 9.08%

8.49% 7.06% 0.34% 0.81%

11% 11% 15% 16%

        0.98                0.96             0.41                  0.51 

9.90% 7.98% 1.16% 1.73%

       0.00                 0.01             0.17                 0.29 

Current Ratio          2.26                2.99              2.71                  1.86 

            114                    92                 81                      79 

          0.11                  0.11             0.15                  0.16 

       1,203                     -                283  NA 

     11,945                4,771       (2,276)                8,752 

          437               3,427           1,289                2,467 

     41,750            40,313        39,857              17,565 

total assets
33% 36% 43% 27%

KEY STATISTICS (CONSOLIDATED)
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MAJESCO LIMITED
Registered Office: MNDC, MBP-P-136, Mahape, Navi Mumbai – 400 710, Maharashtra, India 

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L72300MH2013PLC244874 

Website: www.majesco.com; E-mail: investors.grievances@majesco.com   

Phone: +91-22-61501800; Fax: +91-22-27781320

NOTICE OF SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that 7th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Majesco Limited is scheduled to be held on 

Thursday, September 24, 2020 at 10:00 A. M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to 

transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	 To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (Stand-alone and Consolidated) 

for the financial year 2019-20 together with Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend on equity shares for the financial year 2019-20.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ketan Mehta (DIN: 00129188), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 

for re-appointment as a Director.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4.	 Appointment of Mr. Vasant Gujarathi (DIN: 06863505) as an Independent Director of the Company

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 149, 152, 160 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 

force], Mr. Vasant Gujarathi (DIN: 06863505) (IICA Registration No.: IDDB-DI-202003-017365), who was appointed as 

an Additional Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from March 3, 

2020 and who holds the said office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, who is eligible for appointment under the 

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 

member signifying his intention to propose him as a candidate for the office of the Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years 

from March 3, 2020 to March 2, 2025.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director, Managing Director & Group CFO of the Company, Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company and the Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 

matters and things and execute such documentation as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board 

For Majesco Limited

Place: Navi Mumbai Varika Rastogi

Date: August 14, 2020 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1.	 In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 

pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its 

General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read 

with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 

and General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 

and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) 

vide its circular dated May 12, 2020, permitted holding 

of the AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other 

Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without physical presence 

of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Circulars issued by MCA and 

SEBI, AGM of the Company is being held through VC/ 

OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate 

in the AGM through VC/ OAVM. National Securities 

Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) will be providing facility 

for voting through remote e-voting, for participation 

in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and e-voting 

during the AGM. The procedure for participating in 

the meeting through VC / OAVM is explained in the 

instructions.

2.	 Since AGM is being held through VC/ OAVM, the 

facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 

members is not available for this AGM and hence the 

Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this 

Notice.

3.	 Institutional/ Corporate members are encouraged 

to attend and vote at the AGM through VC/OAVM. 

Institutional / Corporate members intending to 

authorise their representatives to attend and vote at 

the AGM are required to send a certified scanned copy 

(pdf / jpeg format) of the Board Resolution / authority 

letter, with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pcsabhishekbhate@gmail.

com  with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

4.	 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM 

through VC will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 

2013.

5.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 

2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 

13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 the Company is providing 

facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect 

of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this 

purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement 

with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 

the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes 

by a member using remote e-voting system as well as 

e-voting during the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

6.	 In line with the MCA and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the 

AGM along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent 

only through electronic mode to those Members whose 

e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ 

Depositories/ Depository Participants. Notice of the 

AGM and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be made 

available on the website of the Company at https://

ir.majesco.com/, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. 

BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com 

respectively and the website of NSDL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-voting facility) i.e. https://www.

evoting.nsdl.com.

7.	 Members who have not registered their e-mail address 

with the Company / Depository / Depository Participant 

are requested to register their e-mail address by 

clicking on the below link and follow the registration 

process as guided thereat: https://ris.kfintech.com/

email_registration/. In case of any queries, members 

may write to einward.ris@kfintech.com.

8.	 As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, 

for the smooth conduct of proceedings of the AGM, 

Members are encouraged to submit their questions in 

advance mentioning their name, demat account number 

/ folio number, e-mail id, mobile number at investors.

grievances@majesco.com. Questions received by the 

Company till 5:00 p.m. on September 22, 2020 shall 

only be considered and responded during the AGM.

9.	 Members who would like to express their views or ask 

questions during the AGM may register themselves as 

a speaker by sending their request from their registered 

e-mail address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client 

ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at investors.

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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grievances@majesco.com from September 21, 2020 

(9:00 a.m. IST) to September 22, 2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). 

Those Members who have registered themselves as a 

speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the 

right to restrict the number of speakers depending on 

the availability of time for the AGM.

10.	 Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special 

Business in the Notice is annexed hereto and forms part 

of this Notice.

11.	 In pursuance of Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, 

details in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/ 

re-appointment at the AGM as given in Annexure I, form 

part of this Notice.

12.	 The members of the Company, holding shares in physical 

form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 

being Friday, September 18, 2020 may cast their vote 

through remote e-voting or voting at the AGM.

13.	 The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to 

the shares held by the members as on the cut-off date 

being Friday, September 18, 2020.

14.	 A person who acquires shares of the Company and 

becomes member of the Company after dispatch of 

AGM Notice via e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-

off date i.e. Friday, September 18, 2020 may obtain the 

User ID and Password by sending a request at evoting@

nsdl.co.in. However, if he / she is already registered with 

NSDL for remote e-voting then he / she can use his / her 

existing user ID and password for casting the vote.

15.	 A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date 

should treat this Notice for information purposes only.

16.	 In case of joint holders, the Member whose name 

appears as the first holder in the order of names as 

per the Register of Members of the Company will be 

entitled to vote at the AGM.

17.	 Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting 

prior to the AGM may also attend / participate in the 

AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to 

cast their vote again.

18.	 Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 

Company shall remain close from Saturday, September 

19, 2020 to Thursday, September 24, 2020 (both days 

inclusive), for the purpose of AGM.

19.	 Mr. Abhishek Bhate, Practicing Company Secretary 

(ICSI Membership No. ACS 27747) (Certificate of 

Practice No. 10230), has been appointed as Scrutinizer 

to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and e-voting 

at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

20.	 The results of e-voting and remote e-voting shall be 

declared not later than 48 hours of conclusion of AGM. 

The declared results along with Scrutinizer’s Report 

shall be placed on the website of the Company at 

https://ir.majesco.com/ and on the website of NSDL at 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. The results shall also be 

communicated to the Stock Exchanges on which shares 

of the Company are listed. Subject to receipt of requisite 

number of votes, resolutions set out in the notice will be 

deemed to be passed on the date of AGM.

21.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 

Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register 

of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors 

are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, certificate issued by Statutory 

Auditors of the Company as required under the SEBI 

(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 

and all documents as mentioned in the resolutions and/ 

or explanatory statement, are available for inspection 

through electronic mode, up to the date of AGM. Any 

member who wishes to inspect shall send a request for 

the same on the email id of the Company i.e. investors.

grievances@majesco.com.

22.	 Members who wish to claim dividends that remain 

unclaimed/ unpaid are requested to write to the 

Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent or the 

Company Secretary, at the Company’s Registered 

Office. Members are requested to note that dividends 

that are not claimed or remain unpaid for seven years 

from the date of transfer to the Company’s unpaid 

dividend account will be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, equity 

shares in respect whereof dividend remains unclaimed 

/ unpaid for seven consecutive years will also be 

transferred to the IEPF as per Section 124 of the Act 

read with Rules notified thereunder, as may be amended 

from time to time.

NOTICE (CONTD.)
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23.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Act read 

with the Rules made thereunder, Members holding 

shares in single name may avail the facility of nomination 

in respect of shares held by them. Members holding 

shares in physical form may avail this facility by sending 

a nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-13, to the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. Members holding 

shares in electronic form may contact their respective 

Depository Participant(s) for availing this facility.

24.	 Members may note that, mandated by SEBI, securities 

of listed companies can be transferred only in 

dematerialised form with effect from, April 1, 2019, 

except in case of request received for transmission 

or transposition of securities. In view of this and to 

eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and 

for ease of portfolio management, members holding 

shares in physical form are requested to consider 

converting their holdings to dematerialised form.

25.	 SEBI has mandated submission of Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities 

market. Members holding shares in dematerialized 

form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to 

their depository participants. Members holding shares 

in physical form are required to furnish PAN to the 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

26.	 The Company does not give gifts or gift coupons or cash 

in lieu of gifts to its members.

27.	 Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, Route 

Map is not annexed to this notice.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE 
AGM THROUGH VC/ OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the 
AGM through VC through the NSDL e-voting system. 
Members may access the same at https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com under members login by using the remote 
e-voting credentials. The link for VC will be available 
in members login where the EVEN of Company will be 
displayed. Please note that the members who do not 
have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have 
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the 
same by following the remote e-voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
Further members can also use the OTP based login for 
logging into the e-voting system of NSDL.

2.	 Facility of joining AGM through VC/ OAVM shall open 

30 minutes before the scheduled time of AGM and shall 

be open for 15 minutes after the scheduled time of 

AGM. The facility of participation at the AGM through 

VC/ OAVM will be made available for 1000 members 

on first come first served basis. This will not include 

large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more 

shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons 

of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Investors’ Grievance and Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed 

to attend the AGM without restriction on account of 

first come first served basis.

3.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through 

Laptops for better experience.

4.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and 

use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting.

5.	 Please note that Participants connecting from Mobile 

Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due 

to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

6.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting may register themselves 

as a speaker may send their request mentioning their 

name, demat account number/ folio number, e-mail id, 

mobile number at investors.grievances@majesco.com.

7.	 Members who would like to express their views/

have questions may send their questions in advance 

mentioning their name demat account number/

folio number, e-mail id, mobile number at investors.

grievances@majesco.com. The same will be replied by 

the Company suitably.

8.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as 

a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

questions during the meeting.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE 

E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, September 

21, 2020 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday, September 

23, 2020 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be 

disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
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How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists 
of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-voting system at https://www.

evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting 

system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 

by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.

com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, 

click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

“Shareholders” section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 

ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on 

the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. 
IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-voting and you 
can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. 	 Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding 
shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who 

hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 

Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID 

is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******.

b) For Members who 

hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary 

ID is 12************** then your 

user ID is 12**************

c) For Members 

holding shares in 

Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the 

Company

For example if folio number is 

001*** and EVEN is 101456 then 

user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Your password details are given below:

	 a)	 If you are already registered for e-voting, then you 

can use your existing password to login and cast 

your vote.

	 b)	 If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the first 

time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 

which was communicated to you. Once you 

retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter 

the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you 

to change your password.

	 c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

		  (i)	 If your e-mail ID is registered in your demat 

account or with the Company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your 

e-mail ID. Trace the e-mail sent to you from 

NSDL from your mailbox. Open the e-mail 

and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 

the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf 

file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 

last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or 

folio number for shares held in physical form. 

The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your 

‘initial password’.

		  (ii)	 If your e-mail ID is not registered, please 

follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose e-mail ids are not 

registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the 

‘Initial password’ or have forgotten your password:

	 a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you 

are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.

nsdl.com.

	 b)	 “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding 

shares in physical mode) option available on www.

evoting.nsdl.com.

	 c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by 

aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat 

account number/folio number, your PAN, your 

name and your registered address.

	 d)	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time 

Password) based login for casting the votes on the 

e-voting system of NSDL.
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7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms 

and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of 

e-voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-voting 
system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see 

the Home page of e-voting. Click on e-voting. Then, click 

on Active Voting Cycles.

2.	 After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to 

see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast 

your vote.

4.	 Now you are ready for e-voting as the Voting page 

opens.

5.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. 

assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 

for which you wish to cast your vote and click on 

“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” 

will be displayed.

7.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you 

by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

8.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will 

not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, 

HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/

JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 

letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pcsabhishekbhate@gmail.

com  with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your password 

with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 

will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key 

in the correct password. In such an event, you will need 

to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 

“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting 

user manual for Shareholders available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 

1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Process for those shareholders whose e-mail ids are not 
registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide 

Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 

share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by e-mail to investors.

grievances@majesco.com OR click on the link https://

ris.kfintech.com/email_registration/ to get e-mail id 

registered.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide 

DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 

ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 

Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy 

of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 

Aadhar Card) to investors.grievances@majesco.com 

OR click on the link https://ris.kfintech.com/email_

registration/ to get e-mail id registered.

3.	 Alternatively member may send an e-mail request to 

evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID and Password 

by proving the details mentioned in Point (1) or (2) as 

the case may be.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON 
THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM is 

same as the instructions mentioned above for remote 

e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members, who will be present in the AGM 

through VC facility and have not casted their vote 

on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 

vote through e-voting system in the AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-voting will 

be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be 

eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any 

grievances connected with the facility for e-voting on 

the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned 

for Remote e-voting.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

1.	 Based on recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors has appointed 

Mr. Vasant Gujarathi (DIN: 06863505) (IICA Registration No.: IDDB-DI-202003-017365) as an Additional Director in 

the category of Independent Director for tenure of five years with effect from March 3, 2020, subject to the approval of 

members of the Company.

2.	 Mr. Vasant Gujarathi has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(1) and 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Vasant Gujarathi fulfills the conditions specified in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder for appointment as an Independent Director.

3.	 The Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, proposing 

the candidature of Mr. Vasant Gujarathi for the office of Director of the Company.  

4.	 Mr. Vasant Gujarathi possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge and is independent of the management of the 

Company.

5.	 The copy of draft letter of appointment of Mr. Vasant Gujarathi setting out the terms and conditions of appointment is 

available for inspection by the members.

6.	 Details pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and Secretarial Standard - 2 are provided in Annexure I which forms part of the Notice.

7.	 None of the Directors except Mr. Vasant Gujarathi and his relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 

otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

8.	 The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at item no. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members.

By order of the Board 

For Majesco Limited

Place: Navi Mumbai Varika Rastogi

Date: August 14, 2020 Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE I

Information about the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment, as required under Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2)

Particulars Mr. Ketan Mehta Mr. Vasant Gujarathi

DIN 00129188 06863505

Category Non-Executive Director Independent Director

Date of Birth September 9, 1958 March 18, 1951

Qualification Management degree from IIM, 

Ahmedabad

B. Com (Hons.) & CA

Experience Appx. 35 years Appx. 35 years

Date of first appointment on the Board April 29, 2015 March 3, 2020

Shareholding in the Company  

(as on March 31, 2020)

27,19,361 Nil

Relationship with other Directors of the 

Company

None

Number of Board Meetings attended 

during FY19-20

5/6 1/1

Directorships* 1.	 Majesco Limited 1.	 Majesco Limited

2.	 Majesco Software and Solutions India 

Private Limited

Membership / Chairmanship of 

Committees **

1.	 Majesco Limited

	 a.	 Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee – Member

1.	 Majesco Limited

	 a.	 Audit Committee – Chairman

2.	 Majesco Software and Solutions India 

Private Limited

	 a.	 Audit Committee – Chairman

	 b.	 Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee – Member

	 c.	 Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee – Member

Terms and conditions of appointment or 

re-appointment

Non-Executive Director liable to retire 

by rotation

Independent Director, not liable to retire 

by rotation for a tenure of five years from 

March 3, 2020 to March 2, 2025.

Remuneration Details Nil Sitting Fees for attending Board and 

Committee Meetings

Nature of expertise in specific functional 

areas

Information Technology Finance

Brief Profile Brief Profile is given elsewhere in the Annual Report.

* Includes Companies under the Companies Act, 2013.

**Includes Chairmanship / Membership in Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Risk Management Committee.

MAJESCO | NOTICE OF SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

222



NOTES



NOTES



INDIA
NAVI MUMBAI NAVI MUMBAI PUNE

 

 

         

 

INTERNATIONAL
USA USA MIDWEST US

CANADA UK EUROPE

 

SINGAPORE MALAYSIA USA

OFFICE LOCATIONS OF MAJESCO GROUP



MAJESCO LIMITED
 


	Covering Letter_Annual Report_01092020.pdf
	Annual Report FY 2019-20

		2020-09-01T22:37:14+0530
	VARIKA RASTOGI




